C1TY COUNCIL AGENDA

Notice is hereby given that the Rockport City Council will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday,
February 24, 2015, at 6:30 p.m. The meeting will be held at Rockport City Hall, 622 E. Market,
Rockport, Texas. The matters to be discussed and acted upon are as follows:

Opening Agenda

1. Call meeting to order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Citizens to be heard.
At this time, comments will be taken from the audience on any subject matter that is not on the agenda. To
address the Council, please sign the speaker’s card located on the table outside the Council Chamber and deliver
to the City Secretary before the meeting begins. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes. In accordance
with the Open Meetings Act, Council may not discuss or take action on any item which has not been posted on
the agenda

Consent Agenda

All consent agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member so requests, in which event the item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.

4. Deliberate and act on approval of City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10,
2015.

5. Deliberate and act on Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement between the City of
Rockport and the County of Aransas for Roads.

Regular Agenda

6. Deliberate and act on Resolution opposing Senate Bill 343 and any other legislation which
would erode the authority of a home rule municipality.

7. Deliberate and act on a Resolution opposing a revenue cap and legislative interference with
local services.

8. Deliberate and act on presentation of Fiscal Year 2013-2014 City of Rockport
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

9. Deliberate and act on first reading of an Ordinance amending Article 4 of the City of
Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of land located at 1903
Mathis Street; also known as parts of Lots 5-13, 1.525 acres, Block 103, Manning Addition,
out of the John Kettle Survey A-91-92, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, from R-2 (2™
Single Family Dwelling District) to B-1 (General Business District).

10. Deliberate and act on first reading of an Ordinance amending Article 4 of the City of

Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of land located at 1124
Patton Street; also known as 1130-1150 Patton Street, 0.801 acre, out of the TT Williamson
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Survey A-221, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, from R-1 (1* Single Family Dwelling
District) to R-2 (2™ Single Family Dwelling District).

11. Hear and deliberate on presentation of City of Rockport Police Department 2014 Racial
Profiling Report.

12. Reports from Council and Staff

At this time, the City Council will report/update on all committee assignments which may include the
following: County Storm Water Committee; Community Park, Park & Leisure Advisory Board, Chamber of
Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of Governments, Coast Bend Bays & Estuaries, Texas Maritime Museum,
Fulton Mansion, Rockport Center for the Arts, Aransas County, Aransas County Independent School District,
Aransas County Navigation District, Town of Fulton, and Texas Municipal League. Staff reports include the
following: Building & Development — bi-weekly code enforcement, pending development report; Accounting
& Finance — update on liens collection, financial and investment information, monthly financial reports; Police
Department — grant update, quarterly police reports, Fulton law enforcement; Public Works — Building
Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park & Leisure Services — grant updates, park projects; Municipal Court;
Administration — interlocal agreements, public information, website, compressed natural gas fueling station, and
hotel occupancy report. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.

Executive Session

City Council will hold an executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in:

13. Section 551.071(1)(A) and Section 551.071(2) Consultation with Attorney: 1) Pending or
contemplated litigation; and 2) Jail Services Agreement.

14. Section 551.072 Deliberation about Real Property: Acquisition of property for public
purpose — Project Ibis.

15. Section 551.076 Deliberations Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits: Closed
Meeting.

16. Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - City Secretary evaluation.

Open Session

17. City Council will reconvene into open session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of
the Texas Government Code to take any actions necessary related to the executive sessions
noted herein, or regular agenda items, noted above, and/or related items.

18. Adjournment.

Special Accommodations

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s office at (361)
729-2213, ext. 225 or FAX (361) 790-5966 or email citysec@cityofrockport.com for further information. Braille is

not available. The City of Rockport reserves the right to convene into executive session under Government Code
§§ 551.071-551.074 and 551.086.

Certification
I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board at City Hall, 622 E. Market Street,
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Rockport, Texas on Friday, February 20, 2015, by 5:00 p.m. and on the City’s website at www.cityofrockport.com.
I further certify that the following News Media were properly notified of this meeting as stated above: The
Rockport Pilot, Coastal Bend Herald, and Corpus Christi Caller Times.

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary &
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 4
Deliberate and act on approval of City Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2015.
SUBMITTED BY: City Secretary Teresa Valdez

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: Please see the accompanying minutes of the Regular Meeting of February
10, 2015.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Minutes, as presented.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT
MINUTES

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
6:30 p.m., Tuesday, February 10, 2015
Rockport City Hall, 622 East Market Street

On the 10™ day of February 2015, the City Council of the City of Rockport, Aransas County,
Texas, convened in Regular Session at 6:30 p.m., at the regular meeting place in City Hall, and
notice of meeting giving time, place, date and subject was posted as described in V.T.C.A.
Government Code § 551.041.

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT CITY COUNCIL MEMBER(S) ABSENT
Mayor Charles J. Wax

Mayor Pro-Tem Pat Rios, Ward 3

Council Member Rusty Day, Ward 1

Council Member J. D. Villa, Ward 2

Council Member Barbara Gurtner, Ward 4

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT
Edward Bellion

Shawn Johnston

Graham Wilson

Brian Olsen

Frank Lynch

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT ELECTED OFFICIALS
City Manager Kevin Carruth

City Attorney Terry Baiamonte

City Secretary Teresa Valdez

Police Chief Tim Jayroe

Public Works Director Mike Donoho

Finance Director Patty Howard

Parks & Leisure Services Director Tom Staley

Opening Agenda

1. Call to Order.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the Regular Meeting of the Rockport City
Council was called to order by Mayor Wax at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, February 10, 2015, in the
Council Chambers of the Rockport City Hall, 622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

City of Rockport, Texas
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Council Member Villa led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Citizens to be heard.

At this time comments will be taken from the audience on any subject matter that is not on the agenda. To address
the Council, please sign the speaker’s card located on the table outside the Council Chamber and deliver to the City
Secretary before the meeting begins. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes. In accordance with the Open
Meetings Act, Council may not discuss or take any action on any item that has not been posted on the agenda.

Carlos Lopez also known as Charles Kote of 1105 Highway 35 South, Rockport, Texas,
addressed the Council and read the following (below):

I came as soon as [ could to point out how wrong you people are about the
police Dept......I know how Racist your Police Dept had become in the past.
I thought they had learned by now . Then I received the City Manager’s E-
mail stating I could not be placed on the agenda for today’s meeting because
the Police Commanders have already determined no wrong was done when
their Veteran Officer Perkins came to my store, the only car stereo shop in
town , a 25 year minority owned business ,...during business hours ,
...without a noise meter to harass me and gives me a Noise Ordinance
Citation! Then takes time to scours the neighborhood to find complaints ,
knowing full well we have no such History of Noise complaints !

Hey , Amigos ! This is Racism !

This is not only Racist, . it is harassment...who here today does not find it
odd to give a car stereo business a noise ordinance ticket!!

People , In case you don’t know ... just 3 years before you got here
...there was so much racism ,.... I had to change my name and become a
white guy 8 years ago! I became Charles Kote to out smart the Racist
committees some of the police themselves warned me and my wife about. I
had to save my business . And it worked!!! These racist committees are not
made up.

Hey, wait just a minute ... this is the same racist police dept that has also
arrested me 22 times before , 11 of those for stealing broken Tvs’ from white
folks only....all under the direction of Chief Jayroe...as he orchestrated the
violation my civil and Human rights.

By the way ...this is not my take on it alone. ..these are the words of every
lay person that hears about this...including the EX. Chief of Police of
Rockport before Tim Jayroe.

Wake up ladies and gentlemen ...do you not know that America is having
Racial issues with police. Rockport is no different . The system is broke
...has been for a long time now and now you need to leave your comfort zone
and do your job. What was once a place of honor has been turned into a
bunch of Cheerleaders watching each others back ... It is time to rid ourselves
of our Chief of Police...not officer Perkins. She was just following her
“Targeting” orders about my business” . She Never got the Memo!!!!!

Last time [ was here was Dec 10, 2011, as I told you this Chief was a racist
and how I was being Targeted. I have backup on this claim. .. Recall the letter
I'read that a CD Recording from the County Attorney of a police officer
coercing a complaining party to file theft charges. As Targeting was the police
dept goal....IS THIS EPISODE WITH PERKINS ANY DIFFERENT |
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By the way since that day, in 2011 when I was last here , all harassment has
basically stopped... No more arrests, no more complaints from anyone, both
my business are with the Chamber of Commerce... What Happened !

Il tell you... simply put... because of computer software I no longer need to
outsource my TV repairs causing delays ... you see to Racist Police Racial
Profiling is all they know . In their warped thinking...... I had to be stealing
because T am Hispanic. A racist as chief of police CAN NOT comprehend
that this was all civil matters ...something that could have been avoided if he
were a real chief of police.

Something is very wrong here ...is the City Manager Racist as well...or
just plain wrong cause he doesn’t know better as a white person....

I expect to be invited to your chambers in the future and talk about this nasty
problem we have of not Knowing what Racism is...Let’s talk about
MLK...let’s talk “SPIRIT OF THE LAW™!

Consent Agenda

All consent agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member so requests, in which event the item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.

4.

Deliberate and act on approval of City Council Planning Workshop Minutes of
January 20, 2015, Workshop Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2015, and Regular
Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2015.

Deliberate and act on request from Fulton Oysterfest for temporary closure of sections
of Traylor Boulevard and South Fulton Beach Road for parade on March 7 2015, and
permission to display a banner across Highway 35 Business for the 36" Oysterfest
event.

Deliberate and act on a Resolution setting the Capital Recovery Fee owned by the
Town of Fulton and setting the interest rate for the period of February 1, 2015, to
January 31, 2016.

Deliberate and act to confirm Mayoral appointments to City of Rockport YMCA
Committee.

Deliberate and act to appoint citizen to the Environmental Committee for Water
Issues.

Mayor Wax called for requests to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for separate
discussion. There being no requests, Mayor Wax called for a motion.

MOTION: Council Member Villa moved to adopt the Consent Agenda Items as presented.
Mayor Pro-Tem Rios seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearing

9.

Call to Order - Rockport Planning & Zoning Commission.

City of Rockport, Texas
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With a quorum of the Rockport Planning & Zoning Commission present, the meeting of the
Rockport Planning & Zoning Commission was called to order by Chairman Frank Lynch at
6:37 p.m. on Tuesday, February 10, 2015, in the Council Chambers of the Rockport City Hall,
622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas.

10. Conduct and deliberate a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning & Zoning
Commission to consider a request for rezoning from R-2 (2" Single-Family Dwelling
District) to B-1 (General Business District) on property located at 1903 Mathis Street;
also known as parts of Lots 5-13 (1.525 acres) out of the John Kettle Survey A-91-92,
Block 103, Manning Addition, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas.

Mayor Wax opened the Joint Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m.

Greg Walsh addressed the Council. Mr. Walsh stated he is the applicant and the rezoning
request includes the vacated railroad right-of-way and also the vacated portion of Sixth Street.

Council Member Day asked Mr. Walsh what he intends to do with the property if rezoned.

Mr. Walsh stated he intends to sell as commercial property. Mr. Walsh stated the business
zoning is consistent with the other properties located in the same area.

Mayor Wax stated the Planning & Zoning Commission will consider this request at its meeting
on Monday, February 16, 2015.

Mayor Wax closed the Joint Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m.

11. Conduct and deliberate a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning & Zoning
Commission to consider a request for a conditional use permit on property located at
2501 San Antonio Street, also known as Lot 5, being the northeast corner of Tract 71,
Block 250 (0.452 acres) Foor and Swickheimer Subdivision, Rockport, Aransas
County, Texas.

Mayor Wax opened the Joint Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m.

Tammy Stewart addressed the Council. Ms. Stewart stated she is the applicant requesting the
conditional use permit to place a manufactured home on the property because her daughter, who
has four children, has been diagnosed with a disease that has no cure. Ms. Stewart said the
disease causes her daughter to have spells where she is paralyzed and leaves her unable to do
anything, so she needs help close by.

Brief discussion was held among Council and Ms. Stewart.

Mayor Wax stated the Planning & Zoning Commission will consider this request at its meeting
on Monday, February 16, 2015.
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Mayor Wax closed the Joint Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m.

12. Conduct and deliberate a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning & Zoning
Commission to consider a request for rezoning from R-1 (1% Single Family Dwelling
District) to R-2 (2" Single Family Dwelling District) on property located at 1124
Patton Street; also known as 1130-1150 Patton Street (0.801) acre) out of the TT
Williamson Survey A-221, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas.

Mayor Wax opened the Joint Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m.

Alan Lee Copeland and William (Bill) Fisher addressed the Council. Mr. Copeland informed the
Council that he and Mr. Fisher are representing W. Dale Morris, the owner of the property.
Mr. Copeland stated they are requesting rezoning to allow construction of six (6) affordable
homes.

Mr. Fisher showed the Council a rendering of the type of home they are planning to construct.
Mr. Fisher stated these homes would be centrally located within Rockport, making them close to
HEB and other amenities.

Discussion was held among Council, Mr. Copeland and Mr. Fisher.

Matthew Baird of 1210 Lady Claire addressed the Council. Mr. Baird stated he appreciates
Mr. Copeland and Mr. Fisher's desire to build affordable homes but the abandoned piece of
property in that area is actually a drainage ditch that moves water from the property for which
they are requesting the rezoning. Mr. Baird voiced concerns in regard to flooding and the
amount of traffic that will increase in that neighborhood. Mr. Braid added that if the rezoning is
approved it would set a precedent for the pasture across the street where the neighborhood enjoys
the wildlife. Mr. Baird stated he did not feel this property was suitable for more than two (2)
homes.

Lynn Baskind of 1118 Patton Street addressed the Council. Ms. Baskind stated she lives directly
next door to the property and does not have a problem with the applicants' are request for
rezoning. Ms. Baskind said property rent in Rockport is sky high and because of this, people live
outside of Rockport. Ms. Baskind added that if this area is not appropriate for affordable homes,
she was sure they would come up with other areas.

Planning & Zoning Commission Chair Frank Lynch reminded everyone that the Planning &
Zoning Commission will be addressing only the rezoning request at the Monday, February 16,
2015, Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. Mr. Lynch added that if the rezoning is
approved, the developers will have to acquire the proper permits before construction of the
homes and the City has a process whereby drainage is reviewed.

Mayor Wax closed the Joint Public Hearing at 6:58 p.m.

13. Adjourn - Rockport Planning and Zoning Commission.
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At 6:58 p.m., the Rockport Planning & Zoning Commission adjourned.

Regular Agenda

14. Reports from Council and Staff.

At this time, the City Council will report/update on all committee assignments which may include the following:
Aransas County Storm Water Committee, Community Park Committee, Park & Leisure Advisory Board, Chamber
of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of Governments, Coastal Bend Bays & Estuaries, Texas Maritime Museum,
Fulton Mansion, Rockport Center for the Arts, Rockport Tropical Christmas, and Texas Municipal League. Staff
reports include the following: Building & Development — Bi-Weekly Code Enforcement, Proposed Development
Report; Accounting & Finance — Update on Liens Collection, Financial & Investment Information, Monthly
Financial Reports; Police Department — Grant Update, Quarterly Police Reports; Public Works — Building
Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park & Leisure Services — Grant Updates, Miscellaneous park projects;
Municipal Court; Administration — Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, and Hotel Occupancy Report. No
formal action can be taken on these items at this time.

Discussion was held among Council and Public Works Director Mike Donoho in regard to the
Code Enforcement Report.

Discussion was held among Council, Mr. Carruth and Mr. Donoho in regard to the Building &
Development Report.

Finance Director Patty Howard stated the Monthly Financial Reports for the period ending
January 31, 2015, were included in the Agenda packet. Ms. Howard asked if the Council had
any questions or comments.

Brief discussion was held among Council and Ms. Howard in regard to the Financial Reports.
Police Chief Tim Jayroe addressed the Council. Chief Jayroe informed the Council that the
Police Department has made several presentations to homeowners associations regarding
preventing theft and burglary. Chief Jayroe added that if there were any groups or entities that
would like the Police Department to do a presentation, please let him know.

Parks & Leisure Services Director Tom Staley showed the Council the T-shirt that will be given
to volunteers and participants for the Whopping Crane Strut to be held on March 7, 2015.

Executive Session

City Council will hold an executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in:

15. Section 551.071(1)(A) and Section 551.071(2) Consultation with Attorney:
1) Pending or contemplated litigation; 2) Texas Railroad Commission; and 3) Jail
Services Agreement.

16. Section 551.072 Deliberation about Real Property: 1) Acquisition of property for
public purpose - Project Ibis; and 2) Lease of 301 Main Street.

City of Rockport, Texas
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17. Section 551.074 Personnel Matters - City Manager evaluation.

At 7:27 p.m., Mayor Wax convened the Rockport City Council into an executive session
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, in accordance with the
authority contained in Section 551.071(1)(A) and Section 551.071(2) Consultation with
Attorney: 1) Pending or contemplated litigation; 2) Texas Railroad Commission and 3) Jail
Services Agreement; Section 551.072 Deliberation about Real Property: 1)Acquisition of
property for public purpose - Project Ibis and 2) Lease of 301 Main Street; Section 551.074
Personnel Matters - City Manager evaluation.

Open Session

18. City Council will reconvene into open session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
551 of the Texas Government Code to take any actions necessary related to the
executive sessions noted herein, or regular agenda items, noted above, and/or related
items.

At 8:21 p.m., Mayor Wax reconvened the Rockport City Council into open session pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code to take any actions necessary
related to the executive sessions noted herein, or regular agenda items, noted above, and/or
related items.

Mayor Wax recommended the Council authorize him to negotiate and execute a lease with Texas
A&M Agrilife Research, Regents Fellow, for City property located at 901 E. Main Street,
Rockport, Texas.

MOTION: Council Member Villa moved to authorize the Mayor to negotiate and execute a
lease with Texas A&M Agrilife Research, Regents Fellow, for City property located at 901 E.
Main Street, Rockport, Texas. Mayor Pro-Tem Rios seconded the motion. Motion carried
unanimously.

19. Adjournment

At 8:22 p.m., Council Member Villa moved to adjourn. Motion was seconded by Mayor Pro-
Tem Rios and carried unanimously.

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

Charles J. Wax, Mayor
ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

City of Rockport, Texas
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 5

Deliberate and act on Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement between the City of Rockport
and the County of Aransas for Roads.

SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Kevin Carruth

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: The proposed Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement is the same in
content as the 2014 Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, with an automatic renewal each
year unless either party herein provides written notice of termination to the other party 30 days in
advance of the expiration of the Agreement therein effect. The City gave notice to the County at
the end of November 2014, to allow time for discussion of the addition of charges for County
labor and equipment that was added last year.

Prior to the 2014, the agreement maximized the use of public equipment already paid for by city
residents through their county taxes and provided a less expensive alternative for the City to
maintain roads and drainage, compared to contracting with a private vendor or acquiring and
maintaining its own equipment. Under those terms, the City paid for materials and the County
provided the labor and equipment. The 2014 agreement eliminated the County’s contribution
and required the City to compensate the County for their time and equipment in addition to the
materials the City was already paying for.

Although the agreement is used throughout the year, it is primarily utilized for our annual
sealcoating project. Planning for the 2015 sealcoat project will begin before discussions with
Aransas County on the terms of the agreement will conclude, so staff recommends approving the
agreement as written in order to maintain the City’s options for the 2015 sealcoat project.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: Unable to determine at this time, although it is expected that charges
from Aransas County will bring project costs much closer to private contractor fees.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the agreement, as presented.

Roads.Agrmt - Feb. 24, 2015 Council Mtg. Page 1 of 1 Pages
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THE STATE OF TEXAS 8

8 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF ARANSAS 8

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT
CITY OF ROCKPORT - ROADS

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS (“County”) and the
CITY OF ROCKPORT, (“City”), each acting by and through its duly elected officials.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, said County and City have determined that it would be to the best interest of such County and City that
the following provisions be made to-wit:

NOW, THEREFORE: said County and the City agree as follows:

1.

Pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 791 and the Texas
Transportation Code, Section 251.012 the County agrees to provide personnel, equipment and materials for
the purposes of construction, improvement, maintenance, and/or repair of any street, alley, parking or
drainage within the corporate city limits of the City of Rockport, subject to the approval of the County
Engineer and provisions set forth in the following sections of this Agreement.

All charges for work approved and performed for the City will be based on materials, equipment charges and
labor, including overhead (payroll taxes, health insurance, retirement, etc.). Labor charges will be determined
by personnel working on the job site documented by daily worksheets. The labor rate will be based on
personnel salary at the time of work performed. All charges for material will be based on summaries
documented by the daily worksheets. Loose material quantities will be based on estimated capacities of
vehicles and number of loads hauled. Charges for material will be based on actual cost to the County whether
delivered to the County Service Center at 1931 F. M. 2165 or directly to job site. Material charges will
include any and all expenses associated with delivery to the designated site. Equipment charges will be based
on hourly rates that will cover the costs of equipment over their useful life. It is the County’s intent that the
total charges will reflect County costs as closely as possible. Fuel charges will be calculated by filling
equipment prior to moving it to the designated job then refilling the equipment after it has left the job and
computing the difference. The per-gallon price of the fuel will be based on the last delivered price to the
Aransas County Service Center.

The City agrees to provide construction water at a convenient location at no charge to the County or will
make arrangements with the local utility for the water if it is deemed necessary to provide the service
requested by the City.

The City will have the right to supplement labor, equipment or materials to offset project costs with the
approval of the County Engineer.

The parties intend that the County in performing such services, shall act as an independent contractor and
shall have control of the work and the manner in which it is performed. During the performance of requested
services the City will be required to provide a responsible employee to verify performance, clarify
ambiguities and act as intermediary to the public. The County shall not be considered an agent, employee, or
borrowed servant of the City.

The parties further agree that such work will be performed in a workmanlike manner, but County grants no
warranties of any kind to the City or any third party.

During the term of this Agreement, work requests will only be received from an agent of the City authorized
by the Mayor. The request for work will be submitted to the County Engineer. The work request will be
submitted in writing which will include the type, location, and time frame of the assistance requested pursuant
to the conditions of this Agreement. It is expressly understood between the parties that the County shall have
no authority or obligation to provide any service or work on any City street, alley or property not so agreed to
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10.

11.

in writing. The County Engineer is authorized to sign an acceptance statement for each project at the
appropriate time and authorize the work be completed subject to the work schedule of the County Road and
Bridge Department. Any work requests that are supplemental to the original request will be accompanied by
written follow-up documentation. Failure to furnish the required follow-up documentation will not eliminate
the City’s obligation to provide payment for said supplemental services. The seal coat program will be
completed by October 1 of each year.

To the extent authorized by law, the City of Rockport hereby agrees to assume the risk of, defend, hold
harmless, and fully indemnify the County, its officers, agents and employees from any and all loss damage,
cost demands or causes of action of any nature or kind for loss or damage to property, or for injury or death to
person, arising in any manner from the performance of the above referenced work.

All materials, services, and charges therefore shall be paid for from current resources available to the paying
parties. County shall provide to the City a monthly detailed report showing the work provided under this
Agreement and the charges allocated for said work. Payment schedules for such work will be determined
prior to start. The payments will be monthly or by project as agreed by County Engineer and the
representative of the City. Bills for completed work will be paid for by the City within thirty (30) days of the
date of billing.

Purchase of materials (excluding fuel) not associated with contract work done by the County will be charged
at cost plus 10% to offset handling, preparation, and administrative costs. Fuel purchases will be reimbursed
for the actual number of gallons used. The price per gallon will be equal to the costs paid by Aransas County
for the fuel plus 5cents/gallon facility charge.

The County and City may further agree to work in a cooperative effort whereby from time to time labor,
materials and maintenance equipment may be exchanged when mutually convenient for the County and the
City on an emergency basis. The charges assessed to the County for said service will be reimbursed as
outlined in the above Sections 1 through 9.

This AGREEMENT shall be effective for a period of one (1) year or part thereof, effective from January 1, 2015, to
December 31, 2015. This Agreement shall automatically renew each year unless either party herein provides written notice of
termination to the other party 30 days in advance of the expiration of the Agreement therein effect.

This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement between Aransas County, Texas, and the City of Rockport,
Texas. Neither party hereto is bound by an agreement, condition, stipulation, understanding or representation made by any
agent or members not herein contained. This Agreement supercedes all prior agreements to exchange labor and maintenance
equipment executed by the parties to the agreement.

SIGNED this the 23 day of February, 2015.

ATTEST:

ARANSAS COUNTY:

VALERIE K. AMASON, COUNTY CLERK

C.H. “BURT” MILLS, COUNTY JUDGE

SIGNED this the day of , 2015.

ATTEST:

CITY OF ROCKPORT:

TERESA VALDEZ, CITY SECRETARY CHARLES J. WAX, MAYOR
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 6

Deliberate and act on Resolution of the City Council of Rockport, Texas opposing Senate Bill
343 and any other legislation which would erode the authority of a home rule municipality.

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor CJ Wax

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: Regarding the current legislative session, Senator Don Huffines (Dallas
area) filed Senate Bill 343. Senate Bill 343 would have the effect of turning home rule cities into
general law cities.

This bill erodes the powers of a home rule municipality to adopt ordinances affecting the City's
ability to govern its citizens. Under the bill, city voters and locally-elected officials would have
to get the state legislature's permission to enact any local ordinance, rule, or regulation.

The Texas Municipal League has written to Senator Huffines and also published a white paper
regarding this bill. Both are attached for review.

Should Council adopt this Resolution, a copy will be sent to all elected representatives for the
City and to Senator Huffines.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of the Resolution, as presented.

SB 343 Resolution — Feb 24, 2015 Council Meeting Page 1 of 1

15



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS,
OPPOSING SENATE BILL 343 AND ANY OTHER LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD
ERODE THE AUTHORITY OF A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY; FINDING
COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS LAW; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF.

WHEREAS, in 1868 a federal judge named Dillon issued a ruling that cities can do only what
their state government expressly authorizes them to do; and

WHEREAS, after that federal court decision, the people of Texas decided centralized
government is not the way to go and, in 1912, adopted a constitutional amendment affirming
Texas” commitment to local decision making; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Constitution, in Article XI, Section 5, authorizes cities over 5,000
population to adopt by election a home rule charter, which charter grants the citizens of that city
the power of self-government; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rockport adopted its Home Rule Charter in April 1983; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 343, filed by Senator Don Huffines during this the 84" Texas
Legislative Session, would totally upend the relationship between Texas cities and state
government by causing Texas to revert to the rule created in Dillon’s 1868 federal court decision
and would require City of Rockport voters and local elected officials to get the Texas state
legislature's permission to enact any local ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT:

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rockport strongly opposes Senate Bill 343 and
any legislation that would erode the authority of a home rule municipality.

Section 2. The City Council of the City of Rockport officially finds, determines, recites and
declares that a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of this meeting of the
City Council is posted at a place convenient to the public at the City Hall of the City for the time
required by law preceding this meeting, as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code;
and that this meeting has been open to the public as required by law at all times during which
this Resolution and the subject matter thereof has been discussed, considered and formally acted
upon. The City Council further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the
contents and posting thereof.

Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon its passage and approval.

Resolution No. Page 1 of 2

16



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKPORT
THIS 24™ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2015.

Charles J. Wax, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Resolution No. Page 2 of 2
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By: Huffines S.B. No. 343

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT relating to the conformity of local law with state law.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION 1.Chapter 1, Local Government Code, is amended by
adding Section 1.006 to read as follows:

Sec.1.006. CONFORMITY WITH STATE LAW. (a) Where the
state has passed a general statute or rule regulating a subject, a
local government shall restrict its jurisdiction and the passage of
its ordinances, rules, and regulations to and in conformity with
the state statute or rule on the same subject, unless the local
government is otherwise expressly authorized by statute.

(b) Unless expressly authorized by state statute, a local
government shall not implement an ordinance, rule, or regulation
that conflicts with or is more stringent than a state statute or

rule regardless of when the state statute or rule takes effect.

SECTION 2. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives

a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as
provided by Section 39, Article lll, Texas Constitution. If this

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this
Act takes effect September 1, 2015.
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TEXAS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

President Nelda Martinez, Mayor, Corpus Christi
Executive Director Bennett Sandlin

February 29, 2015

The Honorable Don Huffines
Texas Senate

P.O. Box 12068

Austin, Texas 78711-2068

Dear Senator Huffines:

I am writing on behalf of the Texas Municipal League to express our concerns with Senate Bill 343,
which would upend the relationship between Texas cities and state government. Under the bill, city
voters and locally-elected officials would have to get the state legislature’s permission to enact any
local ordinance, rule, or regulation.

Rather than pursue this legislation, we ask that you recognize that cities have to make decisions at the
neighborhood level and not every neighborhood in a state of 26 million people is the same. That is
why Texans recognize that there is a role for state government and a role for local government.
Current law balances city authority to enact reasonable regulations to protect health and safety and
property values with ensuring that the will of the local voters is heard and that our state’s economy
remains vibrant.

Many refer to current law by stating that “cities are creatures of the state.” That’s a true statement,
but it’s not entirely accurate. Without boring you with too many historical details, you should know
that there are two types of cities in Texas: (1) general law; and (2) home rule. General law cities are
purely creatures of the state legislature, but home rule cities are creatures of the Texas Constitution.

The approximately 800 general law cities might not be affected by your bill. These are cities under
5,000 inhabitants that can do only what the state legislature expressly authorizes them to do. In other
words, your bill isn’t needed to limit these cities because they already are limited.

The approximately 350 home rule cities would clearly be affected by your bill. Keep in mind that
over 18 million Texans, which is approximately 75 percent of the state’s population, live in these
cities. The Texas Constitution (Article XI, Section 5) authorizes cities over 5,000 population to
adopt — by election — a home rule charter. The charter grants the citizens of that city the power of
self-government. These “home rule” cities can regulate however they choose, so long as not
preempted by state or federal law from doing so. By approving the home rule amendment to the

1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400, Austin, Texas 78754
P 512-231-7400 ¢ F 512-231-7490 « www.tml.org
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Constitution in 1912, the voters of Texas approved the idea that larger cities don’t need the state’s
“permission” to act.

Your bill would undo 100 years of home rule in Texas, and it is probably unconsitutional. That may
indeed be the goal of your legislation, but please allow us to explain why eliminating home rule
authority is bad public policy. Some might argue that home rule in Texas is a ruse because the state
legislature so frequently preempts what home rule cities do. The status of home rule authority is
academically debatable, but we posit a more practical need for it. That need relates to the checks and
balances, the “process,” that eventually leads to reasonable regulations. Rather than a blanket policy
change, like S.B. 343 would enact, the home rule process leads to compromise.

Here are some examples of that compromise:

¢ In the 1960s, home rule cities could annex unilaterally, and some in the legislature believed
that some cities were acting unreasonably. The Municipal Annexation Act was passed to
limit how, when, and where home rule cities can annex. The authority wasn’t simply taken
away. It wasn’t taken away because most legislators recognize that municipal annexation is
crucial to the state’s economy.

* Inthe 1980s, one home rule city adopted an ordinance prohibiting pit bulls in its city limits in
response to a number of brutal incidents. The city was sued by dog owners, and the Texas
Supreme Court upheld its home rule authority to prohibit specific breeds. The following
legislative session, a law was passed to stop any city from banning specific breeds. However,
the law also contains language expressly authorizing cities to regulate dogs that are actually a
danger. That authority was granted because most legislators recognized the need to control
dangerous animals in populated areas,

o In the 2000s, two home rule cities implemented red light photo enforcement systems. Over
the next decade, several bills to preempt this authority were filed. As more cities expressed
interest in the systems, the legislature compromised in 2007 and passed a law governing the
how, when, and where of the systems, and filled state coffers with half of the civil penalty
revenue from each violation. The authority was retained because most state legislators saw a
way to fund state trauma care programs by revenue-sharing with cities.

The passage of S.B. 343 would also affect some current home rule regulations. In many cases, cities
regulate when the Texas Legislature doesn’t. City councils often step up to the plate to protect the
quality of life, and even save the lives, of Texans Here are just a few examples of cities moving
ahead when the state won’t:

¢ Sex offender residency restrictions
e Synthetic drug regulations

e Texting while driving limitations

* Payday lender regulations

Page 2 of 3
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¢ QOil and gas well ordinances
e Panhandling regulations

All of these would be wiped out by your bill. For example, the state has taken no action related to
where child sex predators can five, If your bill passes, a sex offender in Lewisville will then be able
to live right next door to an elementary school.

Preemption may indeed be your goal for some of the current regulations, like a fracking ban perhaps.
But legislation has already been filed to deal with that specific example (and many others that
legislators consider wrong). And we believe that it will result in a compromise that balances quality
of life and the state’s economy.  One home rule city in Texas has adopted a resolution (rule)
prohibiting the use of its staff or resources to house undocumented immigrants. Your bill would
preempt that resolution as well.

You should also consider that S.B. 343 would also ban future regulations a city might pass. We
obviously can’t predict the future. We can’t predict which political party will hold the majority, and
we can’t predict what cities may need to regulate to protect their citizens. That is why S.B. 343 —a
blanket preemption that would completely alter the system of local decision making that’s been in
place for over 100 years — isn’t needed. The unintended consequences and the uncertainty it would
bring to the law are simply too great.

The League’s position is that your bill is unnecessary. The bill, effectively a “super-preemption bill,”
would be another step in the centralization and consolidation of government power, which would
seem contrary to your political ideals. Its passage would be akin to abolishing cities and centralizing
government in Austin.

We hope you will instead consider working alongside us as we seek to protect city authority to enact
reasonable regulations to protect health and safety and property values, while ensuring that the state’s
economy remains vibrant.

Thank you for your consideration and please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of any

assistance to you.

Sincerely,

Shanna Igo
Deputy Executive Director

Page 3 of 3
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S.B. 343

Abolish Local Control. Centralize Power in
Austin.

Just like New York.

S.B. 343 would totally upend the relationship between Texas cities and
state government, making Texas like the State of New York. City voters
and locally-elected officials would have to get the state legislature’s
permission to enact any local ordinance.

e In 1868, a federal judge named Dillon issued a ruling that cities can do only what
their state government expressly authorizes them to do. The State of New York
follows Dillon’s Rule, and what’s good for New York definitely isn’t good for
Texas.

e Shortly after that federal court decision, the people of Texas decided centralized
government isn’t the way to go and in 1912 adopted a constitutional amendment
affirming Texas’ commitment to local decision making. Cities, the government
closest to the people, embody the idea that “We the People” should be in control.

e The Texas Constitution (in Article XI, Section 5) authorizes cities over 5,000
population to adopt — by election — a home rule charter. The charter grants the
citizens of that city the power of self-government. Over 350 Texas cities have done
SO.

e S.B. 343 would make Texas revert to the rule created in Dillon’s 1868 federal court
decision and provide that a city may not enact an ordinance relating to anything
governed by state law, unless expressly authorized to do so.

e The bill, effectively a “super-preemption bill” that adopts Dillon’s Rule for Texas,
would be another step in the centralization and consolidation of government power.

City councils often step up to the plate to protect the property values, the quality
of life, and even save the lives, of Texans. In many cases, cities have to make
decisions at the neighborhood level and not every neighborhood in a state of 26
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million people is the same. That is why Texans recognize there is a proper role
for state government and a role for local government.

S.B. 343 would abolish Home Rule cities and end local
control
If you like the way New York operates, this is the bill for you
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 7

Deliberate and act on a Resolution opposing a revenue cap and legislative interference with local
services.

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor CJ Wax

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: Several revenue cap bills have been filed in the Texas Legislature, including
S.B. 182 and its companion H.B. 365. See the accompanying copy of the bill and a paper by
TML on revenue caps for additional details. Some legislators reportedly have said that they are
not hearing opposition from the cities in their respective districts. What to pay for and how
much is a matter of local control.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: As the Rockport community and our tourism economy grow and
unfunded State and Federal mandates expand, demands on critical City resources increase.
Without the latitude to decide the appropriate tax burden, local citizens may be faced with
diminished critical services.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of the Resolution, as presented.

SB 343 Resolution — Feb 24, 2015 Council Meeting Page 1 of 1
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS, IN OPPOSITION TO A
REVENUE CAP AND LEGISLATIVE INTERFERENCE WITH LOCAL SERVICES.

WHEREAS, bills have been introduced to cap the amount of property tax revenue cities can
collect each year in a misguided effort to reduce the property tax burden on homeowners and
businesses; and

WHEREAS, currently, if a Texas city increases property tax collections by more than eight
percent over the previous year, voters can petition for an election to rollback the increase; and

WHEREAS, bills have been introduced to replace that eight percent "rollback rate” with a hard
cap of four percent and require mandatory elections on an increase over four percent - all with
the claim that this would provide property tax relief; and

WHEREAS, according to the state comptroller's latest survey of property tax rates in 1,002
cities in Texas, 67 percent of cities raised their property taxes by less than four percent from
2012 to 2013 and 37 percent of cities actually reduced their property taxes; and

WHEREAS, that means property owners in at least 669 Texas cities would have seen no
reduction in their city property taxes if the four percent cap had been in effect; and

WHEREAS, while the savings to individual taxpayers are very small or even non-existent, a
four percent cap could represent a significant impact to vital city services; and

WHEREAS, cities collect just 16 percent of the property taxes levied in Texas, and most of the
property taxes paid by Texans (55 percent) go to school districts; and

WHEREAS, according to the comptroller's report, the total amount of property taxes collected
by cities rose 3.61 percent between 2012 and 2013, while school district tax collections rose by
more than twice that rate or 7.72 percent; and

WHEREAS, school property taxes have been rising because the legislature continues to reduce

the state's share of funding for schools which forces districts to get more revenue from property
taxes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT, TEXAS:

1. That all of the above recitals are true and correct;

2. That the City Council of Rockport, Texas, is OPPOSED to the legislative imposition
of a revenue cap and legislative interference with local services; and

Resolution No. Page 1 of 2
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3. That imposing a revenue cap on cities: (a) does not provide meaningful tax relief;
(b) robs cities of the ability to meet local needs; and (c) diverts attention from the real
cause of higher property taxes, which is the legislature's failure to address the problem
of school funding.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKPORT
THIS 24™ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2015.

Charles J. Wax, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Resolution No. Page 2 of 2



27

MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

Revenue Caps on Cities:
The $2.75 Property Tax Cut

Bills have been introduced to cap the amount of property tax revenue cities can collect each year as a way to reduce the
property tax burden on homeowners and businesses. Currently, if a Texas city increases property tax collections by more
than eight percent over the previous year, voters can petition for an election to rollback the increase. Bills have been
introduced to reduce that cap or “rollback rate” from eight percent to four percent and require mandatory elections on an
increase over four percent with the false claim that this would provide property tax relief.

You Call This Tax Relief?

If the four percent cap on city property tax increases had been in effect in 2013, the owner of a homestead in the City of
Dallas with an assessed value of $250,000 would have seen a “cut” in city property taxes of $33.10 annually or about $2.75
per month. The tax savings would have been even less if the homeowner was disabled or elderly and qualified for
additional exemptions.

How about Zero Tax Relief?

According to the state comptroller’s latest survey of property tax rates in 1,002 cities in Texas, 67 percent of cities raised
their property taxes by less than four percent from 2012 to 2013 and 37 percent of cities actually reduced their property
taxes. That means property owners in at least 669 Texas cities would have seen no reduction in their city property taxes
if the four percent cap had been in effect.

The Impact on City Services Can Be Large

While the savings to individual taxpayers are very small, a lower cap could reduce revenue by tens of millions of dollars in
a large city. The current eight percent rollback rate gives the elected city leaders the flexibility to raise additional revenue
to pay for the services their citizens want. They may want to hire more police officers, repair more damaged streets,
replace more leaking water lines, or hire more building inspectors to avoid delaying construction projects.

Cities Are Not the Cause of High Property Taxes

Cities collect just 16 percent of the property taxes levied in Texas. Most of the property taxes paid by Texans (55 percent)
go to school districts. According to the comptroller’s report, the total amount of property taxes collected by cities rose by
3.61 percent between 2012 and 2013, while school district tax collections rose by more than twice that rate or 7.72 percent.
School property taxes have been rising because the legislature continues to reduce the state’s share of funding for schools
which forces districts to get more revenue from property taxes.

Reducing the rollback rate for city property taxes:
Does not provide meaningful tax relief
Robs cities of the flexibility to meet local needs
Diverts attention from the real cause of higher property taxes

To learn more, visit www.tml.org or call 512-231-7400
Legislative direct contact: Shanna lgo 512-750-8718
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By: Bettencourt S.B. No. 182

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED
AN ACT
relating to the calculation of the ad valorem rollback tax rates of
certain taxing units.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Section 26.04, Tax Code, is amended by amending
Subsection (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and (c-2) to read as
follows:

(c) An officer or employee designated by the governing body
shall calculate the effective tax rate and the rollback tax rate for
the unit, where:

(1) "Effective tax rate" means a rate expressed in
dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the
following formula:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = (LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)

; and

(2) "Rollback tax rate" means a rate expressed in
dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the
following formula:

ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [3-68]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE

(c-=1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04"

in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:
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S.B. No. 182

(1) any part of the taxing unit is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTION 2. Section 26.041, Tax Code, is amended by amending
Subsections (a), (b), and (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and
(c=2) to read as follows:

(a) In the first year in which an additional sales and use
tax is required to be collected, the effective tax rate and rollback
tax rate for the unit are calculated according to the following
formulas:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] -
SALES TAX GAIN RATE
and
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND
OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [3-68]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE -
SALES TAX GAIN RATE
where "sales tax gain rate" means a number expressed in dollars per
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will

be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the following

year as calculated under Subsection (d) [ef—this—seection] by the

current total value.

(b) Except as provided by Subsections (a) and (c) [ef+this
seetion], in a year in which a taxing unit imposes an additional
sales and use tax the rollback tax rate for the unit is calculated
according to the following formula, regardless of whether the unit

levied a property tax in the preceding year:
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S.B. No. 182
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S MAINTENANCE AND
OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [+-08]) / ([®STAL] CURRENT
TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + (CURRENT DEBT
RATE - SALES TAX REVENUE RATE)
where "last year's maintenance and operations expense" means the
amount spent for maintenance and operations from property tax and
additional sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year, and
"sales tax revenue rate" means a number expressed in dollars per
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will

be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the current year

as calculated under Subsection (d) [ef—+this—seetion] by the current
total value.

(c) In a year in which a taxing unit that has been imposing
an additional sales and use tax ceases to impose an additional sales
and use tax the effective tax rate and rollback tax rate for the
unit are calculated according to the following formulas:

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY

LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] +

SALES TAX LOSS RATE
and

ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S MAINTENANCE AND

OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [1-08]) / ([®OTAL] CURRENT

TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE) ] + CURRENT DEBT RATE

where "sales tax loss rate" means a number expressed in dollars per
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the amount of sales
and use tax revenue generated in the last four quarters for which

the information is available by the current total value and "last

30



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B. No. 182
year's maintenance and operations expense" means the amount spent
for maintenance and operations from property tax and additional
sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year.

(c-1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04"

in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:

(1) any part of the taxing unit is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTION 3. Section 26.08, Tax Code, is amended by amending
Subsections (a), (b), (d), (d-1) and (d-2) to read as follows:
Sec. 26.08. ELECTION TO RATIFY [SCHOOEL] TAXES. (a) If the

governing body of a taxing unit [secheoeol-distriet] adopts a tax rate

that exceeds the taxing unit's [ddstxiet's] rollback tax rate, the

registered voters of the taxing unit [distxiet] at an election held

for that purpose must determine whether to approve the adopted tax

rate. When increased expenditure of money by a taxing unit [seheoolt

distxriet] 1s necessary to respond to a disaster, including a

tornado, hurricane, flood, or other calamity, but not including a

drought, that has impacted a taxing unit [seheeoldistriet] and the

governor has requested federal disaster assistance for the area in

which the taxing unit [seheoeol distriet] is located, an election is

not required under this section to approve the tax rate adopted by
the governing body for the year following the year in which the
disaster occurs.

(b) The governing body shall order that the election be held

in the taxing unit [seheoeoldistriet] on a date not less than 30 or
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S.B. No. 182
more than 90 days after the day on which it adopted the tax rate.
Section 41.001, Election Code, does not apply to the election
unless a date specified by that section falls within the time
permitted by this section. At the election, the ballots shall be
prepared to permit voting for or against the proposition:
"Approving the ad valorem tax rate of $_  per $100 valuation in

(name of taxing unit [seheootdistxriet]) for the current year, a rate

that is $_  higher per $100 valuation than the school district
rollback tax rate." The ballot proposition must include the
adopted tax rate and the difference between that rate and the
rollback tax rate in the appropriate places.

(d) If the proposition is not approved as provided by
Subsection (c), the governing body may not adopt a tax rate for the

taxing unit [seheoeol distriet] for the current year that exceeds the

taxing unit's [seheoolt-distriet's] rollback tax rate.

(d-1) 1If, after tax bills for the taxing unit [secheool

dist¥riet] have been mailed, a proposition to approve the taxing

ict's] adopted tax rate is not approved by the

unit's [scheool dist

iy

voters of the taxing unit [distriet] at an election held under this

section, on subsequent adoption of a new tax rate by the governing

body of the taxing unit [distxiet], the assessor for the taxing unit

[sehoeoet] shall prepare and mail corrected tax bills. The assessor
shall include with each bill a brief explanation of the reason for
and effect of the corrected bill. The date on which the taxes
become delinquent for the year is extended by a number of days equal
to the number of days between the date the first tax bills were sent

and the date the corrected tax bills were sent.

32


http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us//GetStatute.aspx?Code=EL&Value=41.001&Date=11/14/2014

10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

S.B. No. 182

(d-2) If a property owner pays taxes calculated using the

originally adopted tax rate of the taxing unit [seheol distriet]

and the proposition to approve the adopted tax rate is not approved

by voters, the taxing unit [seheeol—distriet] shall refund the

difference between the amount of taxes paid and the amount due under
the subsequently adopted rate if the difference between the amount
of taxes paid and the amount due under the subsequent rate is $1 or
more. If the difference between the amount of taxes paid and the
amount due under the subsequent rate is less than $1, the taxing
unit [sehoel—distriet] shall refund the difference on request of
the taxpayer. An application for a refund of less than $1 must be
made within 90 days after the date the refund becomes due or the
taxpayer forfeits the right to the refund.

SECTION 4. Section 49.236, Water Code, as added by Chapters
248 (H.B. 1541) and 335 (S.B. 392), Acts of the 78th Legislature,
Regular Session, 2003, is reenacted and amended to read as follows:

Sec. 49.236. NOTICE OF TAX HEARING. (a) Before the board
adopts an ad valorem tax rate for the district for debt service,
operation and maintenance purposes, or contract purposes, the board
shall give notice of each meeting of the board at which the adoption
of a tax rate will be considered. The notice must:

(1) contain a statement in substantially the following
form:
"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX RATE

"The (name of the district) will hold a public hearing on a

proposed tax rate for the tax year (year of tax levy) on (date and

time) at (meeting place). Your individual taxes may increase or
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decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of your
property in relation to the change in taxable value of all other
property and the tax rate that is adopted.

"(Names of all board members and, if a vote was taken, an
indication of how each voted on the proposed tax rate and an
indication of any absences.)";

(2) contain the following information:

(A) the district's total adopted tax rate for the
preceding year and the proposed tax rate, expressed as an amount per
S100;

(B) the difference, expressed as an amount per
$100 and as a percent increase or decrease, as applicable, in the
proposed tax rate compared to the adopted tax rate for the preceding
year ;

(C) the average appraised value of a residence
homestead in the district in the preceding year and in the current
year; the district's total homestead exemption, other than an
exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of
age or older, applicable to that appraised value in each of those
years; and the average taxable value of a residence homestead in the
district in each of those vyears, disregarding any homestead
exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of
age or older;

(D) the amount of tax that would have been
imposed by the district in the preceding year on a residence
homestead appraised at the average appraised value of a residence

homestead in that vyear, disregarding any homestead exemption
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available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or
older;

(E) the amount of tax that would be imposed by the
district in the current year on a residence homestead appraised at
the average appraised value of a residence homestead in that year,
disregarding any homestead exemption available only to disabled
persons or persons 65 years of age or older, if the proposed tax
rate is adopted; and

(F) the difference between the amounts of tax
calculated under Paragraphs (D) and (E), expressed in dollars and
cents and described as the annual percentage increase or decrease,
as applicable, in the tax to be imposed by the district on the
average residence homestead in the district in the current year if
the proposed tax rate is adopted; and

(3) contain a statement in substantially the following
form:
"NOTICE OF TAXPAYERS' RIGHT TO ROLLBACK ELECTION
"If taxes on the average residence homestead increase by more
than four [eight] percent, the qualified voters of the district by
petition may require that an election be held to determine whether
to reduce the operation and maintenance tax rate to the rollback tax
rate under Section 49.236(d), Water Code."
(b) Notice of the hearing shall be:
(1) published at 1least once in a newspaper having
general circulation in the district at least seven days before the
date of the hearing; or

(2) mailed to each owner of taxable property in the
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district, at the address for notice shown on the most recently
certified tax roll of the district, at least 10 days before the date
of the hearing.

(c) The notice provided under this section may not be
smaller than one—-quarter page of a standard-size or tabloid-size
newspaper of general circulation, and the headline on the notice
must be in 18-point or larger type.

(d) If the governing body of a district adopts a combined
debt service, operation and maintenance, and contract tax rate that
would impose more than 1.04 [+-68] times the amount of tax imposed
by the district in the preceding year on a residence homestead
appraised at the average appraised value of a residence homestead
in the district in that year, disregarding any homestead exemption
available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or
older, the qualified voters of the district by petition may require
that an election be held to determine whether [e¥xet] to reduce the
tax rate adopted for the current year to the rollback tax rate in
accordance with the procedures provided by Sections 26.07(b)-(qg)
and 26.081, Tax Code. For purposes of Sections 26.07(b)-(g) and
this subsection, the rollback tax rate is the current year's debt
service and contract tax rates plus the operation and maintenance
tax rate that would impose 1.04 [3-68] times the amount of the
operation and maintenance tax 1imposed by the district in the
preceding year on a residence homestead appraised at the average
appraised value of a residence homestead in the district in that
year, disregarding any homestead exemption available only to

disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or older.
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(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the board may substitute "eight percent" for "four percent" in

Subsection (a) and "1.08" for "1.04" in Subsection (d) if:

(1) any part of the district is located in an area

declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the

United States during the current tax year.

SECTION 5. Section 26.07, Tax Code is repealed.

SECTION 6. (a) The change in law made by this Act applies
to the ad valorem tax rate of a taxing unit beginning with the 2015
tax year, except as provided by Subsection (b) of this section.

(b) If the governing body of a taxing unit adopted an ad
valorem tax rate for the taxing unit for the 2015 tax year before
the effective date of this Act, the change in law made by this Act
applies to the ad valorem tax rate of that taxing unit beginning
with the 2016 tax year, and the law in effect when the tax rate was
adopted applies to the 2015 tax year with respect to that taxing
unit.

SECTION 7. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives
a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as
provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this
Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this
Act takes effect on the 91lst day after the last day of the

legislative session.

10
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ROCKPORT CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 8
Deliberate and act on presentation of Fiscal Year 2013-2014 City of Rockport Audit.
SUBMITTED BY: Finance Director Patty Howard; Auditor Mike Arnold

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

SUMMARY STATEMENT: State Law requires that, at the close of each fiscal year
but in no later than 180 days, an independent audit shall be made of all accounts of the
City government by a certified public accountant selected by the governing body. City
Auditor Michael Arnold, CPA, has completed his annual independent audit of the City’s
financial records. A copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Statement for the
Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2014 is included in the agenda packet.

Mr. Arnold states in his Independent Auditor’s Report, based on the audit of financial
statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, no instances of
noncompliance were observed and no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and operation were found to be of material weakness.

Mr. Arnold will be present at the Council Meeting to review the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Statement with Council.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends acceptance of the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Statement for FY 2013-2014, as presented.

13-14 Audit Presentation Page 1
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City of Rockport, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Prepared by

Patty Howard, Finance Director
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February 18, 2015

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Rockport, Texas

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Rockport, Texas for
the year ended September 30, 2014, is submitted. This report was prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles on a basis consistent with the
prior year. The preparation of the annual financial report and all financial information in
the report is the responsibility of the City. The scope of the independent auditor’s
examination is to render an opinion on the financial information in the Annual Financial
Report. Complete details concerning the City’s fiscal year activities and related costs
are presented in the enclosed narratives and financial statements.

This Letter of Transmittal and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis are
management’s opportunity to communicate aspects of the overall financial condition,
details of which are frequently obscured or submerged in financial statements,
schedules, and/or tables. The attached organizational chart provides a pictograph of the
lines of authority and responsibility with the system.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Charter of the City of Rockport requires that the City Council appoint
certified public accountants, who will be responsible to the Council, to perform an
independent audit of all funds and group of accounts of the City on an annual basis.
The firm of Michael Arnold P.L.L.C. was selected by the Council to perform this
function. Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the
General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the auditors
in conducting the engagement. The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements
and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial

section of this repott.

622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382 Phone: (361) 729-2213  Fax: (361) 790-5966

www.cityofrockport.com

44



MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The report is published to provide to the City Council, to our citizens, and to
representatives of financial institutions and other interested persons, detailed
information concerning the financial condition of the City government. To that end, the
report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The City’s accounting system has been designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding:

o The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
and

e The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgment by management. All internal control evaluations occur
within the above framework.

GOVERNING BODY

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1871 under the laws of the State of Texas
and adopted the Council-Manager form of government on April 12, 1983. The City
Council is composed of the Mayor and four council members. The City Council and
Mayor are responsibie for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations governing
the City, appointing members of various statutory and advisory boards and the City
Manager, City Secretary, City Attorney, Municipal Judge and Alternate Municipal
Judge. As chief administrative officer, the City Manager is responsible for enforcement
of laws and ordinances and appoints and supervises the heads of departments of the City
Organization.

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

The Department of Finance operates under the direction of the Finance Director,
who is appointed by the City Manager; with the consensus of the City Council.
Activities of the Department of Finance are control of, custody and disbursement of
City funds. Other activities of the department include risk management, payroll,
purchasing, computer management and the preparation of the annual budget and interim
and annual financial reports.

il
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CITY OF ROCKPORT AND ITS SERVICES

Services provided by the City under the general governmental functions include
police, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning, engineering,
traffic control, parks operation and maintenance, code enforcement, building permits,
floodplain management, building, plumbing, electrical inspections and general and
administrative services. A private firm provides solid waste collection and disposal
services under a contract with the City. In addition, water, natural gas, and sewer, and
the community aquatic park services are provided under an Enterprise I'und concept,
with user charges set by the City Council to ensure adequate coverage of operating
expenses and payments on outstanding debt.

The Community Aquatic Park is considered to be a blended component unit of
the City. The City acts as the “managing partner” of the County wide governmental
“joint venture” consisting of the City of Rockport, Aransas County, and the Town of
Fulton. Policy is set by a Swimming Pool Operations committee which consists of a
voting member from the city and county, plus a citizen member of the City Parks Board
and the Director of Parks and Leisure Services.

The City of Rockport and Aransas County entered into an Interlocal Agreement
creating the City/County Communications Center, combining dispatch services. The
agreement created a Dispatching Services Board consisting of one representative from
each entity and the Dispatch Administrator.

Additional Interlocal Agreements between the City of Rockport and Aransas
County help to eliminate the duplication of services, and help reduce costs for both
entities. These include Animal Control Services, Jail and Detention Services, Road
Construction and Maintenance within the city limits of Rockport, Septic System
Inspections, Sanitation Services and Tax Collection.

A countywide Geographic Information System (GIS) was created with the City
of Rockport, Aransas County and Aransas County Appraisal District. Each entity will
be responsible for the creation and maintenance of their own overlays.

The Aransas County and City of Rockport Public Safety Center completed a
joint law enforcement office building housing the Rockport Police Department and the
Aransas County Sheriff’s Office. This is another example of the City and County
joining together to save taxpayers dollars. Created by an Interlocal Agreement, the
venture is a 50/50 split between the City of Rockport and Aransas County for all
maintenance and expenses related to the Public Safety Center.

iii
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On May 30, 2008 the City purchased Aransas Natural Gas Company, a privately
owned natural gas company located in Rockport. The Natural Gas Division provides
service to Rockport, the Town of Fulton and Aransas County as far north as Lamar.
(See more in the Management, Discussion and Analysis section)

BUDGETING

In accordance with the City Charter, on or before the first regular scheduled
meeting in August, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget
and budget message for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The
proposed budget shall contain the budget message prepared by the City Manager,
detailing estimates of all revenue and expenditures, debt requirements, and a draft of the
budget ordinance. The City Council shall review the proposed budget and make any
appropriate changes prior to publishing the final budget.

The budget message explains the budget in fiscal terms and in terms of the work
submitted with the budget. It outlines the proposed financial programs of the City for
the ensuing fiscal year, the capital program, and capital projects for the budget year.
The budget message will describe the important features of the budget and indicate any
major changes from the current year in financial policies, expenditures and revenues
including the reasons for such changes.

The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all City funds and
activitics and shall be in such form as the City Manager deems desirable or the City
Council may require. The detailed line item budget is presented for administrative
control. It shall be arranged to depict proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them for the upcoming year, along with comparative figures for actual and budget
income and expenditure for the preceding fiscal year; budgeted and estimated income
and expenditure for the current fiscal year; and actual income and expenditure of the
current year projected to year estimates for the current years.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance on or before
September 27. Please refer to Note “A” in Notes to the Financial Statements for more

detail on budgets and budgetary accounting.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The City of Rockport is the county seat for Aransas County and is located 30
miles northeast of Corpus Christi. There are approximately 15.0 square miles of land
within the City’s corporate boundary.

iv
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LECONOMIC TRENDS

Ranked in The 100 Best Small Art Towns of America, and recognized among the
top retirement spots in the nation by America’s Best Places fo Retire, Rockport is a
wonderful place to live and visit alike. Gulfscapes Magazine’s “2011 Readers Choice
Best Gulf Coast Towns” listed Rockport number four in the top ten. In 2009 Rockport
was hailed as a coastal dream town by Coastal Living Magazine. Better Homes and
Gardens in its April 2007 issue listed Rockport-Fulton the number five destination as a
“long weekend hotspot” for spring migration bird watching. 7Tevas Meetings and
Events list Rockport-Fulton as a great Gulf Coast getaway for a business meeting, board
meeting, etc. The Today in America television show, hosted by Terry Bradshaw
featured Rockport and Fulton as one of the “Best Places to Live and Visit.” The
segment can be found at http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pub_cqu2QaY .

Property values in the City of Rockport increased from $538,391,491 in 2000 to
$1,468,534,983 in 2014. This can be attributed to the annexation of several areas,
increased property values, as well as, the increase in development within the City.

Permits for single family homes have increased from approximately 66 annually
to 78 in 2014, largely due to the economic conditions of the country realizing a slight
improvement. Rockport is made up largely of second homes, with the slight growth in
the market these home starts have increased. The population of Rockport has grown by
27% in the last ten (10) years going from 7,385 in the U.S. Census Bureau 2000 Census

to 9357 as of 2011,

Sales tax revenues have increased from $1,117,080 in 2000 to $2,183,768 in
2014, This is an 83% increase in sales tax revenues over a twelve (12) year period.
Winter Texans and summer visitors have helped in the increase of sales tax.

The City has taken several steps in recent years to enhance the quality of life for
the citizens of Rockport. In the past few years the City has purchased 50 acres of land to
keep as green space and several acres behind the Memorial Park for expansion of that
park in the future. The Hike and Bike Trail that was partially funded by a TxDOT grant
has been completed and very well utilized for the Tule Park. A grant from Texas
Department of Agriculture (Texas Yes) helped complete a beautification project on
Austin Street. The project converted the four lane boulevard to a two lane street with
diagonal parking, which provides greater pedestrian and handicapped street crossing
safety.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City’s staff, following specific directives of the City Council and the City
Manager, has been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These projects
reflect the City’s commitment of ensuring that its citizens are able to live and work in a
highly desirable community and include the following:

South Rockport Regional Drainage GI.O 100% Grant— The City of Rockport
received a $1,000,000.00 grant from General Land Office (GLO) for purchasing
and upgrading existing storm water sewer system including storm sewer pipe
ranging in size from twenty-four inches to forty-two inches, concrete box
culverts ranging in size from four feet to eight feet wide, road and driveway
culverts, junction boxes, End Slope Treatments (EST), and concrete headwalls.
In addition, the City of Rockport will perform repairs to city sireets and state
highways, adjust impacted waterlines, and perform site work associated with the
construction. Construction will take place at the following locations: [ street
from Bronte street (SH35) to S. Ann street; Intersection of 2™ street and Bronte
street (SH 35); Intersection of E. 5% street and S. Mathis street; Intersection of E.
5™ street and S. Pearl street. Proposed improvements will significantly increase
the capacity of the storm sewer system and reduce flooding.

South Side Wastewater system Improvement — Construction of a sewer
collection system off-site force main began in December, 2012 and has been
completed. Cost of the project was $1,284,530 and was paid from 2007
Construction bond funds. The city constructed the sewer collection system off-
site force main which included the existing lift stations, other than the Islands of
Rockport Lift Station which the Developer constructed upon approval by the
city. The city also constructed all force mains from the Islands of Rockport Lift
Station to the existing lift station on First Street and gravity collection lines. To
recover some of the costs associated with the project, the City intends to collect
pro rata fees from developers who request sewer service from the city and must
connect to the sewer collection system off-site force main in order to obtain such
service. This project greatly increases the ability to receive sewer service on the
south part of Rockport.

vi
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BUDGET AS COMPARED TO ACTUAL

General Government Fund Revenues — Budget as Compared to Actual

The General Government Fund Revenues are budgeted based on historical
information and the current economic climate of the City. For a detailed comparison of
actual General Governmental Fund revenues with budget amounts, see “Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget (Non-
GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Governmental Fund Types and
Governmental Expendable Trust Funds: in the financial section of this report (Exhibit

A-2).

General Governmental Fund Expenditures — Budget as Compared to Actual

The proposed expenditures in the General Governmental Funds are budgeted
based on historical demand for services and inflationary trends. For a detailed
comparison of actual General Governmental fund Expenditures with budgeted amounts,
see “Combined State or Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Government Fund Types and
Governmental Expendable Trust Funds” in the financial section of this report (Exhibit

A-3),

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The City had no fiduciary funds at September 30, 2014.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Proprictary Funds are those funds that are self-supporting. The Proprietary
Funds of the City include the Utility Fund, Sanitation Fund, Natural Gas Fund, and
Community Aquatic Park Fund. The Utility System Fund operates with revenues
generated by the sale of water and wastewater setvices. The Natural Gas Fund operates
with revenues generated by the sale of natural gas. The Sanitation Fund is used to
record all revenues and expenditures for the Solid Waste contract. The Community
Aquatic Park Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures for the community

aquatic park.

The operating expenditures are those incurred by the delivery of those services.
A more complete discussion of the financial operations of this fund can be found in
Notes A and L. As shown below, both the revenues and expenditures were increased

from the prior year.

vii
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AD VALOREM TAXES

State statutes require the value of the propetty as of January 1 of each year be
used as the basis for calculating ad valorem tax for the ensuing fiscal year, The
estimated adjusted taxable value of property in the City at January 1, 2013 was
$1,434,887,615 and was taxed at $.327728 per one hundred dollars of assessed value
resulting in an adjusted tax roll (taxes receivable) of $4,702,528.

Collections

Current taxes of $4,330,781 representing 98.03% of the adjusted tax roll were
collected during fiscal year 2013-2014. The collection rate was comparable to the year
end. Current tax collections have exceeded 97% in cach of the last ten years.

Allocation of Ad Valorem Taxes

The revenue to be received from current tax collections is distributed between
the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund according to the rates for allocation set
when the budget ordinances are adopted. Allocation of property tax revenues by
purpose for fiscal year 2012 and the preceding four years is given in the following table.
The amounts in the table are per one hundred dollars of assessed value.

Soao o008 0 20000 - 20100 2011 0002012 2013

General .168320 165133 157307 158338  .172497 185090

Fund

‘GO.Debt 130680 " 133548 152701 150552 - .153327 = .142638

Total 299000 298681 310008 308890 325824 327728
AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the year ended September 30, 2013. This is the eleventh year
that the City has applied for and received this prestigious award, In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently
organized basic financial report. This report satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate

viii
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of Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget
Presentation for its annual appropriated budget since October 1, 2002, The budget for
October 1, 2014 has been submitted for review and notification of an award is awaited.
In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget
document is judged on proficiency in several categories including policy
documentation, financial planning and organization.
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The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the
Finance Department, The City Manager, the entire City staff, and the City Council for
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in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Patty Howard
Director of Finance
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54

CITIZENS OF ROCKPORT

Mayor & City Council
Boards & Commissions City Attorney City Engineer
City Secretary Municipal Couit Judges
: I Dispatching
Oy a0 | 1 services Board _
E
Information Technology d

Public Safety

Communications

Public Works Building & Development l Finance I f Police ) I Parks & Lelsure Services
— | Streels & Diainage H| Inspection PayrollfAccounting = I Patrof l B l Parks/Sport Complex I
—i| Building Maintenance H] Code Enforcement Utitity Customer Service m CiD -t Bay Education Cenler
| - Administration Administration -1 Aquatic Center/Skate Park

" Utiiities

| Nalural Gas i LI Woater/\Wastewater

Xi




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Eiected Officials

55

Name

Office

Charles J. Wax
Patrick R. (Pat) Rios

J.D. Vvilla

James Russell (Rusty) Day, Jr.

Barbara Gurtner

Appointed Officials

Mayor

Mavyor Pro-Tem
Council Member
Counci Member

Council Member

Name

Position

Kevin Carruth
Teresa Valdez
Patty Howard
Mike Donojo
Tim Jayroe

Tom Staley

Xii

City Manager

City Secretary
Finance Director
Director of Utilities
Chief of Police

Parks and Leisure
Services Director



Financial Section

56



Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 E, MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3545

P.0O.BOX 1266

FAX {361} 790-9692

ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

Independent Auditor's Report

To the City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial slatements of the governmental activities, the business-lype
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rockport, Texas ("the City")
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes lo the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as lisied in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements hased on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require thal we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the GCity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Woe believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinfons.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental aclivilies, the business-lype activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Gily of Rockport, Texas as of September 30, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Reguired Supplementary
information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial siatements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriale operalional, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the Required Supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepled in the United States of America, which consisled of inquiries of managemsnt about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses o our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial slatements that collectively
comprise the City of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements. not required parts of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presenled for purposes of additional analysis
as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmen!s,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expendilures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from ang relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such Information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
olher records used fo prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respecls in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

The statistical information section not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial slatements and, accordingly, we do nol express an opinion or provide any assurance

on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmernt Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 18,
2015 on our consideration of City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial reporling and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matlers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

%‘///dM/OLLC

Michael A. Arnold, PLL.C

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015
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" MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Rockport’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page i and the City’s financial

statements, which begin on page 13,
Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City of Rockport exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2014 by
$39,851,854(net assets). Of this amount, $3,165,832 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

¢ The government’s total net assets increased by $3,031,774 in 2014,

* At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $11,929,368, a decrease of 6% in comparison
with the prior year, Approximately $3,011,065 (23%) of this total amount is
available for spending at the government’s discretion.

¢ The General fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $3,011,065 or, 49% of
total general fund expenditures.

o The City’s total long-term debt increased by $2,829,396 (17%) during the current
fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) notes to financial statements, and 3) combining
and individual funds. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of

the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related

4
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cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but

uhused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Rockport that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, tourism, culture and recreation and interest and fiscal charges. The business-type
activities of the City include the Water, Wastewater and Natural Gas Utility System,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic and Skate Park.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rockport, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rockport can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Cutrently, the City does not have any fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-tern financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds

and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances for a General Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and the Capital Improvements Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
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presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance

with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 through 15 of
this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains four different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for
its Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community Aquatic Park.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community
Aquatic Park. Only the Utility System Fund is considered to be a major fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 27 of this
report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28

through 47 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of
Rockport’s operations. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual
fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 48 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Rockport, assets exceeded liabilities by
$39,851,854 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

$35.9 million or 90%, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire these assets which is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
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repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Assets at September 30, 2014

Table 1
Governmental Activities ~ Business Type Activities Total Government
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
Assets
Current and Other Assels % 5,172,754 § 5,880,655 $ 7.020865 & 4,897,447 §$12,202,619 § 10,778,102
Restricted Assets 8,134,648 7.046,943 1,624,448 7,587,807 9,759,094 14,634,750
Capital Assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 23,300,485 24,859,317 33,701,551 34,117.818 57,002,036 58,977,135
Total Assets 36,607,887 37,786,915 42,355,862 46,603,072 78,063,749 84,380,987
Deferred Outfiow of Resources $ 518,371 537,914 $ 290,206 428876 $ 808577 966,790
Total Assets and Deferred $37,126,258  § 38,745,503 $42,646,068 47,043,182 $79,772,326 % 85,788,685
Liabilities
Current & Due Within One
Year 2,279,449 2,603,114 3,208,829 3,490,459 5,488,278 6,093,573
Due in More Than One Year 21,103,471 20,495,391 16,248,675 19,260,414 37,352,146 39,755,805
Total Liabilities 23,382,920 23,098,505 19,457,504 22,750,873 42 840,427 45,849,378
Deferred Inflow Resources - - 96,467 96,467 96,467 96,467
Total Liabilities and Deferred 23,382,920 23,098,505 19,553,971 22,847 696 42,936,894 45,936,831
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Refated Debt 12,137,914 13,739,958 16,147,438 22,172,880 28,285,353 35,012,848
Restricted for:
Debt Service 451,153 581,101 183,366 182,073 634,519 773,174
Capital Projects
Unrestricled 1,184,271 1,325,309 6,761,292 1,840,523 7,915,563 3,165,832
Total Net Assets $13,743,338  $15,656,368 $23,092,007 24,195,486 436,835,435 $ 39,851,854
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An additional portion of the City’s net assets (2%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets (8%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. It has been the practice of the City to finance major maintenance and
rehabilitation of infrastructure or invest in new capital assets by issuance of long term debt
and cautious and conservative draws on these unrestricted net assets. It is anticipated that
this will continue to be our practice in the future.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. These positive balances are indicative of the
conservative fiscal practices of the City with combine careful budgeting procedures and
moderate operating activities at all staff levels.

Changes in Net Assets
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Table 2
Governmental Activities Business-type Activilies Total Government
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 622,316 $ 986,491 $ 10,798,384 $ 11,791,143 $11,420,700 § 12,777,634

Operating grants and contributions 366,214 234,191 42,000 51,250 408,214 285,441
Capital grants and contributions 739,309 699,802 256,450 - 995 759 699,802
Total program revenues 1,727,839 1,920,484 $ 11,006,834 $ 11842393 $12,824,673 13,762,877
General revenues
Property taxes 4,379,318 4,546,433 - - 4,379,318 4,546,433
Sales taxes 2,051,342 2,231,798 - - 2,051,342 2,231,798
Franchise and other taxes 860,734 803,439 - - 880,734 803,439
Occupancy taxes 698,934 839,931 - 608,934 839,931
interest 48,287 42,240 16,076 11,848 64,363 54,088
Miscellaneous 54,618 173.247 - - 54,618 173,247
Total revenues 8,093,233 8,637,088 16,076 11,848 8,109,309 8,648,936
Expenses
General government 1,534,488 1,464,770 - 1,534,488 1,464,770
Public safety 3,390,096 4,035,843 - 3,390,096 4,035,843
Public Works 1,563,687 1,576,188 - 1,663,687 1,576,188
Culture and recreation 914,460 961,048 - 914,460 961,048
Tourism 536,505 640,589 - - 536,505 640,588



Environmental - - -
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Waler and Sewer - - 7,840,317 7,672,619 7,840,317 7,672,619

Sanitation - - - -

Beach Park - - - - - -

Community Aguatic Center - - 333,267 397,675 333,267 397,675

Natural Gas - - 1,256,075 1,844,475 1,266,075 1,844,475

interest and fiscal charges 908,935 755,689 - - 908,935 -

Total expense 8848171 9,434,127 0429659 _ 9914769 18,277,830 _ 19,348,896

Change in net assets
Increase(Decrease) before transfers 972,901 4,123,445 1,683,251 1,839,472 2,656,152 3,062,817
Loss on disposition of assets - - - - - -
Transfers 849,138 804,938 (849,138) {836,081) - {31,143)
Prior Period Adj {246,115} - (352,622) - (598,737} -
Net assets at beginning of year $12,167,414 $13,727,986 22,718,064 23092095 34,778,020 36,820,080
Net assets at end of year $13,743,338  $15,656,368 $23,092,097 $24,195486  $36,8354356 39,851,854

The table above illustrates the comparative detail of changes in net assets of the City of
Rockport.

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities include the functions of general
government, tourism, cultural and recreations, public safety and public works. Payment of
interest on long-term debt is also considered a governmental activity and it is considered a
class of activity but not a function of government. These are the basic services and cost
centers any city provides to its citizens.

As shown in Table 2 and the Exhibit A-2 of the Basic Financial Statements, the expenses
incurred in providing these services are netted against the program revenues received by
the City for these services. Because the City is not a for-profit entity, the cost to deliver the
services far exceeds the program revenues generated. This deficit of new expenditures,
$7,513,643, is overcome by the general revenues of taxes, investment earnings,
miscellaneous income and transfers in totaling $9,442,026. The overall change in Net
Assets resulting from governmental activities at the end of the year was $1,928,383.

Business-Type Activities. As shown in Table 2 and in the Statement of Activities,
program revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $11,842,393 for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014. Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were
$9,914,769, resulting in net revenues of $1,927,624. After the non-program expenses,
$836,081 and revenues, $11,848 are added in, the total change in net assets for the business
type activities was $1,103,391.



In the Utility System Fund, the City has little control over the costs of the two products:
water and natural gas delivered to the City’s customers, Water is purchased from the San
Patricio Municipal Water District, and natural gas is purchased from two sources, South
Cross Energy and Gulf Coast Gas Gathering. Water rates were increased by 6.75% this
year, other than pass through increase due to increases from the supplier, The additional
revenue generated will be used to pay debt service for capital improvements, Wastewater
rates were also increased this year by 6.75%. The additional funds generated by this
increase will be used to make payments on the Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Project portion
of the 2007 Bond Issue and other projects. The City purchased Aransas Natural Gas
Company, a privately owned company, on May 30, 2008. Natural Gas rates were not
increased this year. The fuel adjustment rate is calculated each month based on the rate
natural gas is purchased for. The City contracts with McLain Decision Support Systems
cach year to do a rate study to ensure that the revenues generated by the Utility System
Fund will support the associated expenditures. This study includes the natural gas revenue

aiso.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Rockport uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City’s funds fall into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending balances of $11,929,368, a decrease of $692,667 compared to the prior year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,011,065. This fund balance is the
amount available without constraints from outside of the City to fund the City’s normal
operations. In order to illustrate the City’s ability to withstand a major disaster such as a
hurricane, it is worthwhile to measure the unreserved fund balance in terms of the number
of days of operations is could sustain, For 2014, the daily cost of operation in the general
fund was $16,364 (total current expenditures of $5,972,894 divided by 365 days in the
year). The City of Rockport’s unassigned general fund balance would be able to sustain
184 days in the event of disaster that interrupted normal revenue generation. The City of
Rockport makes every effort to keep the unreserved fund balance at 180 days.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

During FY 2013-14, the General Fund budget was not amended.
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Proprietary Funds. The proprietary funds ended 2014 with combined net assets totaling
$24,195,486. The proprietary funds include the Utility System Fund, Natural Gas Fund,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic & Skate Park. The Water and Sewer Fund and the

Natural Gas Fund are the only major funds in this group.

Proprietary Fund Budgetary Highlights.
During FY 2013-14, the proprietary finds were not amended.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City of Rockport’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities as of September 30, 2014 totals at $58,977,716 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes, land, buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year

was 3%.

Major capital asset events during 2014 include the following:

¢ South Rockport Regional Drainage GLO 100% Grant- The City of Rockport
received a $1,000,000.00 grant from General Land Office (GLO) for purchasing
and upgrading existing storm water sewer system including storm sewer pipe
ranging in size from twenty-four inches to forty-two inches, concrete box culverts
ranging in size from four feet to eight feet wide, road and driveway culverts,
junction boxes, End Slope Treatments (EST), and concrete headwalls. In addition,
the City of Rockport will perform repairs to city streets and state highways, adjust
impacted waterlines, and perform site work associated with the construction,
Construction will take place at the following locations: 1% street from Bronte street
(SH35) to S. Ann street; Intersection of 2" street and Bronte street (SH 35);
Intersection of E. 51 street and S. Mathis street; Intersection of E. 5™ street and S.
Pearl street. Proposed improvements will significantly increase the capacity of the
storm sewer system and reduce flooding.

¢ South Side Wastewater system Improvement — Construction of a sewer collection
system off-site force main began in December, 2012 and has been completed. Cost
of the project was $1,284,530 and was paid from 2007 Construction bond funds.
The city constructed the sewer collection system off-site force main which included
the existing lift stations, other than the Islands of Rockport Lift Station which the
Developer constructed upon approval by the city. The city also constructed all
force mains from the Islands of Rockport Lift Station to the existing lift station on
First Street and gravity collection lines. To recover some of the costs associated
with the project, the City intends to collect pro rata fees from developers who

11
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request sewer service from the city and must connect to the sewer collection system
off-site force main in order to obtain such service. This project greatly increases the
ability to receive sewer service on the south part of Rockport.

For a complete analysis of the changes in capital assets, the reader is encouraged to review
Note D of the Notes of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-Term Debt. The City of Rockport issued $3,610,000 in new Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 on June 24, 2014, The proceeds from the
sale of the certificates will be used for the purpose of paying the City’s combined
waterworks and sewer system (including but not limited to rehabilitation of water tanks),
the City’s gas system (including but not limited to the construction and equipping of a
condensed natural gas fueling facility and funding a distribution integrity management
program line replacement), to pay all or a portion of the legal, fiscal and engineering fees in
connection with the Projects, and to pay costs of issuance of the Certificates.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATLES

During the budget process for fiscal year 2014-15 the elected and appointed officials
considered many factors including the forces driving the economy in their budget
decisions. The housing starts, development, and raw land being turned into retail and
housing can each be measured by the number of new water connections recorded. An
increase in Hote! Occupancy Tax and sales tax indicate an increase in tourism. There has
been an increase in registered voters since 2000, going from 5,987 in 2006 to 6186 in 2010,
equating to a 4% increase. The population for Rockport is 9,357 as of 2011 which is up

from 8,766 in the 2010 U, S. Census.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City
of Rockport as well as its investors and creditors about the City’s finances and to provide
accountability for the public support that it receives. If you have any questions about the
report or need additional {inancial information, contact the Finance Director’s Office at the
City of Rockport, 622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and invesimenis

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Properly laxes
Ohher taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Internal balances
invenlories
Reslicled assets:
Cash and investmenis
Capilal assets:
Land
Conlruction in progress
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Utility sysiem
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure
Accumutaled depreciation
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Qutflow of
Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued liabitities

Accrued interest payable

Payable from restricled assels

Customer Deposits

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources

Tolat Liabitities and Deferred Inflow of
Resources

NET POSITION:
Net investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Debt Service
Unrestricted
Total Net Posilion

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stalement.

EXHIBIT A-1

Governmental Business-lype
Activilies Aclivities Totai
$ 4,914,286 $ 3,450,731 8,365,017
143,202 143,202
492,108 -- 492,108
93,458 1,331,202 1,424,660
7,208 4,137 11,345
115,086 -- 115,086
356 {356} -

114,851 111,733 226,684
7,046,943 7,687,807 14,634,750
4,902,767 214,953 5,117,720
120,877 1,095,682 1,216,559
4,842,944 4,237,938 9,080,882
1,884,604 1,944,240 3,828,844

-- 44,185,689 44,185,689
3,800,620 2,205,397 6,106,017
15,023,833 - 16,023,833
(5,816,328} {19,766,081) {25,582,409)
37,786,915 46,603,072 84,389,987
537,914 428,876 966,790
537,914 428,876 966,790
38,745,503 47,043,182 85,788,685
615,963 1,129,321 1,745,284
95,694 35,465 131,159
98,605 78,871 178,476

- 22,696 22,696
1,004,105 1,004,105

1,791,852 1,130,001 2,921,853
20,495,391 19,260,414 39,755,805
23,098,505 22,750,873 45,849,378
-- 96,467 96,467

- 96,467 96,467
23,089,135 22,847,696 45,936,831
13,739,958 22,172,890 35,912,848
591,101 182,073 773,174
1,325,308 1,840,523 3,165,832

5 15,656,368 $ 24,195,486 39 851,854
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

71

Program Revenues

Operating Capilal
Charges for Grants and Granis and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Aclivities
General government $ 1,464,770 % 16,624 § - $ -
Pubtic safety 4,035,843 727,069 214,664 102,508
Pubtic works 1,576,188 242,798 - -
Culture and recreation 961,048 -- 19,527 597,294
Tourism 640,589 - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 755,689 -- - -
Total governmental activities 9,434,127 986,491 234,191 699,802
Business-type Activities:
Sanitation - 16,994 - --
Water & Sewer 7,672,619 9,219,874 10,500 --
Community Aquatic Genter 387,675 165,231 40,750 --
Natural Gas 1,844,475 2,389,044 -- --
Total Business-type Activities 9,814,769 11,791,143 51,250

Total Primary Government

$ 19,348,898 $ 12,777,634 § 285441 § 699,802

General Revenues:
Properly Taxes, Leived for General Puposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Services
Sales Taxes
Franchise Taxes and Other Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Cther Revenues
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this stalement.
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Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nel Position

Governmental Business-type
Aclivities Activities Tolal
$  (1,448,146) $  (1,448,146)
{2,991,602) (2,991,602)
{1,333,390) {1,333,390)
(344,227} (344,227)
(640,569} (640,569)
(755,689} (755,689)
(7,513,643} (7,513,643)
- $ 16,994 16,994
- 1,557,755 1,557,755
- {191,694) (191,694}
- 544,569 544,569
-- 1,927,624 1,927,624
{7,513,643) 1,927,624 (5,586,019)
2,582,426 -- 2,582,426
1,964,007 1,964,007
2,231,798 2,231,798
803,439 803,439
839,931 839,931
73,853 - 73,953
42,240 11,848 54,088
99,294 - 99,294
804,938 (836,081) {31,143)
9,442,026 {824,233) 8,617,793
1,928,383 1,103,391 3,031,774
13,727,985 23,092,095 36,820,080
$ 15656368 $ 24195486 & 39,851,854

15
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assetls:
Cash and investimenis

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncolleclibles):

Property taxes

Other taxes

Accounls

Special assessments

Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
inventories
Restricled assets:

Cash and invesimenis

Total Assels

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expendiiures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Outffows of Resources
Unavailable property taxes
Unavailable special assessmenls
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge
Total Deferred Cutflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Cutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Totat fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

General
Fund

$ 2,679,280

79,905
203,221
1,654

421,030
58,047

3,443,137

$ 211,969
82,151

294 120

79,905

79,905

374,025

58,047

3,011,065

3,069,112

5__ 3363292

16

Debt
Service

528,104

63,297

63,297

63,297

63,297

528,104

528,104

528,104
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2007
Certificate of

Obligation

4,555,475

4,565,475

126,410

iz 4i0

126,410

4,429,065

T 4,428,085

4,555,475

Qther
Governmental
Funds

1,706,902

288,887
16,804
7,208
115,086

2,481,468

4,626,355

267,812
10,818
420,674

699,304

7,208
16,756

23,964

723,268

3,538,344
(63,911)
428,654

3,803,087

4,602,391

17
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EXHIBIT A-3

Total
Governmental
Funds

4,914,286

143,202
492,108
18,458
7,208
115,086
421,030
58,047

7,046,943

_ 13216368

$

606,191
92,969
420,674

1,119,834

143,202
7,208
16,756
167,166

1,287,000

58,047
8,495,513

(63,911)
428,654
3,011,065

11,929,368

$

13,049,202
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $

Amounts reported for governmental activilies in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds.

Property taxes receivable unavaltable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.

The assets and liabifities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNP.
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.

Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.

Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.

Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Other tong-term liabililies which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and are defetred in the funds.
Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.

OBEP Obligation is not reported in the funds.

Utility bill taxes unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.

Assessments receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deterred in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position $

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.

18

EXHIBIT A-4

11,929,368

24,850,593
143,202
53,131
(19,120,953)
(962,000)
(99,605)
(346,024)
169,804
537,914
75,000
(1,598,026)
16,756
7,208

15,656,368
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permils
Intergovernmentat
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recrealion
Tourism

Capitaf outlay

Debt service:
Principat
tnterest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cosi

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency} of revenues {under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in
Transfers oul
issuance of certificates of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sold
Payment {o refunding escrow agent

Total other financing sources {uses}

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

$ 3,069,112

19.

General
Fund

5,593,714
218,504
54,765
24,294
200,845
17,039
92,661

6,210,822

1,317,705
2,715303
1,176,409

763,477

202,793

6,175,687

35,135

937,003
{751,430)

185,663

220,798

2,848,314

Debt
Service

1,967,017

551

1,967,568

1,274,138
664,781
106,527

2,045,446

(77,878}

43,012

4,503,642
563,678
6,949
(4,062,452)

154,829

76,951

451,153

528,104
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2007
Cedificate of

$ -

73,953

11,278

85,231

1,305,682

T 1305582

(1,220,351}

(1,220,351}

5,649,416

$ 4,429,065

Other
Governmental
Funds

$ 1,041,457

1,183,560
44,940

6,423

6,633
2,283,013

27,558
1,008,758

50,902
640,589
833,084

31,694
3,924

2,597,409

(314,396)

587,343
(43,012)

544,331
229,935

3,673,152
$ 3,903,087

20

EXHIBIT A-5

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 8,602,188
218,504
1,312,278

24,294

254,785

35,291

99,294
10,546,634

1,345,263
3,724,061
1,176,409
814,379
640,589
2,342,359

1,305,832
668,705
106,527

(1,577,490)

1,567,448
(794,442)
4,503,642
563,678
6,949

(4,962,452)
884,823

(692,667)

12,622,035
$ 11,929,368
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EXHIBIT A-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (692,667)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
{"SOA™) are different because:
Capital ouflays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 2,342,359
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. {778,782}
Centaln properiy tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 2,993
Revenues in he SOA not providing current financial resources are not reported as revenues In the funds. 19,543
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 6,268,284
THe change in the OBEP liabifity is nol reported in the funds. {161,202}
The net revenue (expense) of interal service funds is reported with governmental activities. {4,183)
Compensated absences are reporied as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds. {1,638)
Cerlain utility bill receivables are deferred In the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 996
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reporied as current resources in the funds. (4,503,642)
Bond premiums are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. {563,678}

Change in net position ol governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ 1,928,383

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
tntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
fnterest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Guiture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency} of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-7

Variance with

Finai Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negalive)
$ 5365632 § 5365632 $ 5593714 § 228,082
174,500 174,500 218,504 44,004
80,000 62,500 54,765 {7,735}
23,000 23,000 24,294 1,294
251,500 251,500 209,845 {41,655}
14,000 14,000 17,039 3,039
32,000 31,000 92,661 61,661
5,940,632 5,922,132 6,210,822 288,680
1,325,951 1,325,951 1,317,705 8,246
2,632,556 2,632,556 2,715,303 (82,747}
1,466,664 1,466,664 1,176,409 290,255
750,017 750,017 763,477 {13,460}
216,793 216,793 202,793 14,000
6,391,981 6,391,981 6,175,687 216,294
{451,349) {469,849} 35,135 504,984
1,083,072 1,083,072 937,093 (145,979}
{589,029) {589,029} {751,430) (162,401}
494,043 494,043 185,663 308,380
42,694 24,194 220,798 196,604
2,848,314 2,848,314 2,848,314 --
$ 2891008 $ 2872508 $_ 3,069,112 $ 196,604

22
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assets:
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Special assessments
Inventories
Total current assels

Noncurrent assets:
Reslricted assats:

Cash and cash equivalents
Agcounts receivable - noncurrent
Capital assets:

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Waler system
Sewer system
Natural gas system
Machinery and equipment
Accumelated depreclation
Total noncusrent assets

Tolal Assets

Deferred Cutflows of Raesources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Qulifows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Curren! Liabilities:
Accounis payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other tunds
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposils
Payable from reslricted assets
Compensated absences
Bonds and cerlificates of obtigation -
currant poriion
Total currant liabilities

Noncurrent liabitities:
Bends and certificates of cbligation payable
Compensaled absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabifities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET ASSETS:
lnvestment in Capilal Assets, Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted Net Assels
Total Net Assets

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of this statement,

Enterprisa
Fund

Waler & Sewer
Fund

8 2,242,360

904,887

4,137

69,328
__az071z

5,063,842
81,874

110,653

4,237,938
23,740,054
18,556,425

2,185,708

{18,524,136)
35,462,358

38,683,948

428,876
§__ 438876

$ 625,685
29,765

78,871
1,093,407

10,000
15,793
1,853,521

16,830,960

73,609
16,904,569
18,821,222

96,467
96,467

20,195,135
§__20,195,135

23

Enierprise
Fund
Naitural
Gas
Fund

958,161

139,665

42,405

T itd0201

2,523,985

1,095,682

1,889,210

(388,458)

5,120,399

6,260,630

76,139
3,765

22,695

104,208

206,808

3,030,718
14,710

T 3085426
3,499,521

2,761,108

2,761,108
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EXHIBIT A-8

Noamajor
Internal Service
Fund
Nonmajor Total
Enterprise Enterprise Fleat
Funds Funds Furnd
250,210 $ 3,450,731 $
204,776 1,249,328
-- 4,137 -
- 111,733 56,904
454,986 4,815,929 56,904
.- 7,587,807 -
- 81,874 -
104,300 214,953 --
. 1,095,682 -
- 4,237,938 --
1,944,240 1,944,240 -
- 23,740,054 -
18,556,425 -
. 1,889,210 -
19,689 2,205,397 17,448
(853,487) {19,766,081) {8,724}
1,214,742 41,787,499 8,724
1,669,728 46,614,306 65,628
- 428,876 -
S $ 428,876 $ -
427,497 % 1,128,321 $ 9,772
1,935 35,465 2,725
356 356 -
78,874 -
698 1,084,105 -
- 22,696 -
10,000 --
. 120,001 --
430,486 2,490,815 12,497
- 19,861,678 --
- 88,319 -
-~ 19,948,995 --
430,486 22,751,229 12,497
-- 96,467 -
96,467 -
{100,809} 22,855,435 53,131
1,239,242 $ 24,195,486 $ 53,131
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Total Opserating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contraciual services
Maintenance
Supplies
Other
Deprecialion

Total Operating Expenses

Operaling Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES).

Interest income
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest expense
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers

Capital Contributions
TRANSFERS:
Interfund transfers in
Interfund teansfers out

Change in Net Assels

Net Assels, beginning of year
Net Assels, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise
Fund

Water & Sewer
Fund

$ 9,219,874

25

1,612,383
419,789
414,902

3,628,589

37,313
897,034
7,010,010

2,209,864

11,163

(662,609)

{651,446)
1,568,418

10,500
266,261

(1,069,813)

T 765366

19,429,769
$_20,195,105.

Enterprise
Fund
Natural
Gas
Fund

2,389,044

2,389,044

374,519
105,710
148,808
1,135,011
17,453
62,974

© 1844475

544,569

685

685

545,254

$

(164,684}

380,570

2,380,539

2,761,109
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Nonmajor
Enterprise
Funds

182,225

182,225

173,743
26,471
27,418

102,593

1,384
66,066

1

(215,450)

40,750

40,750

{174,700}

132,155

(42,545)

1,281,787

1,239,242

EXHIBIT A-g
Nonmajor
internal Service
Fund
Total
Enterprise Fleet
Funds Fund N
11,791,143 $ 504,134
11,791,143 504,134
2,160,645 160,486
551,870 18,783
581,128 19,017
4,866,193 339,917
56,150 3
1,026,074 1,745
8,252,160 540,249
2,538,983 (36,115)

11,848 -

40,750 -
{662,609) -
(610,011) -

1,928,972 {36,115)

10,500

398,416 34,432
(1,234,497) (2,500)
1,103,391 {4,183)

23,082,095 57,314

24,195,486 $ 53,131

$
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Enterprise Funds

EXHIBIT A-10

Cash Flows from Operating Actlvities:
Cash Received from Customers $
Cash Receipts {Payments} for
Oparating Transactions with Other Funds
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services

Nel Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activilies:
Operating Granis Received
Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers To Other Funds

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Noen-capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Aclivitfes:
Procesds from Issuance of Long-term Debt
Principal and Interest Paid
Acquisition or Conslruction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assels
Amounts paid for bond issuance

Contributed Capital
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Maturing of Investments
Interest and Dividends on Investments

Net Cash Provided {Used) for Invasting Activities

Ne! Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Baginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $

Reconcillation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Aclivities
Depreciation and Amortization
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Dacrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease {Increases) in Inventories
Decrease {Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
tncrease (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
tncrease (Decrease) in Payroll Deductions
tncrease {Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable
fncrease {Decrease) in Interfund Payables
fncrease {Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

Increase {(Dacrease) in Unearned Revenue
Totat Adjustmants

Net CGash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $

Summary of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalenis - operating 8
Cash and cash equivalants - restricted

Water & Natural Nenmiajor Service
Sewer Gas Enter, Funds Totals Funds
9,156,262 § 2,362,713 182,225 § 11,701,200 $ 504,135
{1,588,009) {365,288) {173,643} (2,126,938) {160,486)
{4,318,227) (1,346,826} (171,514} (5,836,567) {379,708)
3,250,026 650,601 (162,932} 3,737,695 (36,059)
- 40,750 40,750
266,261 v 132,155 388,416 34,432
(1,069,813) (164,684) - (1,234,497} {2,500)
(803,552} (164,684) 172,505 {795,331) 31,932
1,381,815 3,134,924 -- 4,516,739
{1,666,814} . -- (1,666,814} -
(340,136} (1,005,682} (6,597) (1,442,415} -
10,500 - -- 19,500
{614,635) 2,039,242 (8,597} 1,418,010 -
100,000 - 100,000 -
11,163 685 - 11,848 -
111,163 685 141,848 -
1,943,002 2,525,844 3,376 4,472,222 {4,127}
5,363,200 708,995 246,834 6,319,029 4,127
7,306,202 $ 3,234,839 250,210 $ 10,791,251 % -
2,209,864 $ 544,569 {182,875)% 2,571,558 % (36,115)
897,034 62,974 65,740 1,025,748 1,745
{161,719} (26,331} (13,447} (201,497) -
20,788 19,453 -- 40,241 {10,944}
176,870 40,703 3,222 220,795 9,772
24,874 9,233 - 34,107 -
- - 17,740 37,740 -
98,107 - - 98,107 -
(15,292) 437 {14,855) (518}
1,040,662 106,032 73,692 1,220,386 {1,690}
3,250,526 $ 650,601 {109,183}% 3,791,944 § (36,060)
2,242360 $ 958,161 $ 250,210 $ 3,450,731 § 4,127
5,063,842 2,523,865 .- 7,687,807 -
7308202 $ 3,482,126 $ 250,210 & 11,038,538 § 4,127

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.
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A.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The combined financial stalements of City of Rockport, Texas {the "City") have been prepared in conformily with
accounting principles applicable to governmental unils which are generally accepted in the Uniled States of America.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"} is the accepied standard setling body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1.

Reporting Entity

The Cily's basic financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The Cily evaluated whether any
other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for Including organizations as
component units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statemeni No, t4, "The Financial

Reporting Entity,” include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name})

the City holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the City appoints a voling majority of the organization's board

- the City is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the potential lo impose a financial benefiburden on the City

- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

the exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statements

The City also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt arganization whose resources are used principally to
provide suppert 1o the City to determine if its emission from the reporting enlity would result in financial statements
which are misleading or incomplele. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an organization as a
component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the Cily, its component units or its constituents; and 2} The City or its component
units is entitled to, or has the abllity to otherwise access, a majorily of the economic resources received or held by
the erganization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant {o the City.

Based on these criteria, the City has no compeonent unils. Additicnally, the Cily is not a component unit of any
other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Slalement.

Basls of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Stalements: The stalement of net assels and the statement of aclivities include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. These slatemenis distinguish betwesn the governmental and business-type activities of
the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmenial revenues, and
other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or In part by fees charged

to external parties.

The slatement of activities presenis a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
dilferent business-type aclivities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particutar function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses in the slatement of
activities. Program revenues include {a} fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipienis of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeling the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues thal are not classified as program revenues,

including alf taxes, are presenied as general revenues.

28

85



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2014

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the GCity's funds, with
separate statements presented for each fund calegory. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operaling revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange lransactions
assoclated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
resull from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The Cily reports the following major governmental funds:

General Eund. This is the City's primary operaling fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debi Service Fund. This fund is used to account for resources accumulated to make principal and interest
payments on outstanding bonds.

2007 Certificate of Obligation Fund. This fund is used to account for the proceeds and related expenditures
of the 2007 Cerlificate of Obligation issue.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water & Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for the activities of providing water and sewer services
to the citizens of the Cily.

Natural Gas Fund. This fund is used to account for the activities of providing natural gas to the citizens of
the City.,

in addition, the Gity reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: Thess funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
to parties inside the City. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the users of suppor
services on a costreimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
Cily's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental Activities" column of the
government-wide financial statements.

b. Measuremenl! Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Slatements: These financial stalements are reporled
using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprielary fund financial
statements are reporled using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time labilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take
place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Gity gives (or receives) value without direclly receiving {or
giving) equal value In exchange, include property taxes, granis, enlittements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from properly taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the laxes are levied,
Revenue from grants, entillements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been salisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Stalements: Governmental funds are reporled using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the madified accrual basis of accounting. Under lhis method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end.
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3.

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of properly taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues
received from the Slale are recognized under the susceptible-fo-accrual concept.  Miscellaneous revenues
are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until aclually
received. investment earnings are recorded as eamed, since they are both measurable and available.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability Is incurred, excepl for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensaled absences, which are recognized as
expendilures to the exlent they have malured. General capital assel acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term deb! and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” all proprietary funds will continue to follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from thal date forward, proprietary funds will have the option of either 1} choosing not to apply
future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2} continuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unless they contlict with GASB guidance. The Gity has chosen not to apply future

FASB standards.

Financial Statement Amounts

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalénts

For purposes of the slatement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they
have a malurily of three months or less when purchased.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January t for alt real
and business personal properly in conformity with Subtitie E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in
which imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien altaches to property to secure the payment of all
taxes, penalties, and interest ultimalely imposed. Properly tax revenues are considered availabfe (1)
when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period and (2) when they are
expecled to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of the fiscal year.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based upon
hislorical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically
reviewed and written off, but the Cily is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific
statutory authority from the Texas Legistature,

Inventories and Prepald ltems

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, ufilizing the purchase method of
accounting for invenlory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.
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Capital Assels

Purchased or constructed capital assels are reported at cost or estimated historical cosl. Donated fixed assels
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization

threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straighi-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
tnfrastructure 560
Buildings 20-40
Improvements other than
Buildings 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

Receivable and Payable Balances

The City believes thal sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
stalements lo avoid the obscuring of significant componenis by aggregation. Thareiore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the stalements of financial position {the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separale financial stalement element, deferred outffows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position andfor fund balance that applies 1o one or more future periods and so will not
be recognized as an outitow of resources (expensefexpenditure) untit then,

In addition to liabilities, the statemenis of financial position will somelimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred infiows of resources,
reprasents an acquisition of nel position that applies to one or more fulure periods and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Compensated Absences

On retirement or death of certain employees, the City pays any accrued sick leave and vacation leave in a
jump case payment to such amployee or his/her estate.

interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transters betwsen funds. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at markel or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiling fund and
reduces ils related cost as a reimbursement. All other interiund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Qut are netted and presented as a single "Transfers” line on the government-wide statement of
activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are neited and presented as a single "Intarnal Balances"
line of the government-wide statement of net assels.
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Balan - Governm | Fun
Fund balances of the governmentat funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounis that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form {such as inventory or prepaid insurance} or fegally required to remain intact (such as nofes
receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represenis amounls that are constrained by extemnal parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a
formal action by the Clty's City Council. Commilted amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Gily Council removes those constraints by taking the same fype of formal action. Cormilted fund
palance amounls may be used for other putposes with appropriate due process by the City Gouncil.
Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance
amounts differ from restricted bafances in that the consiraints on thelr use do not come from outside
parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legistation. Only the most binding constraint should be
considered a commitment for fund balance classification purposes. Committed fund balance are
determined by the Gity Coungil throuh resolttion.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the Gity intends to use for a specific purpose, but that
do nol meet the criteria to be classified as resticled or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the City
Council or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates the authority. Specific amounis that are
not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capilal projects, debt service or permanent fund are
assighed for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose.
Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific
purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the City itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in thal they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds
might report a negative balance in this classificalion because of overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incuired for a purpose for which bolh restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts {o
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.

4, Budgetary Data

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial
statements:

a.

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City Manager presents {o the Cily Council a budget for the next
succeeding fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them. The City Council may make adjusiments to the budget.

A mesting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budgel. At least ten
days' public notice of the meeting must have been given.

Prior to the starl of the fiscat year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the
City Council,

32

89



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

B.
i
2.
3.
C. D

Once a budgel is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of the City Council.
As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflecled in the official minutes of the City
Council and are not made after fiscal year end. During the year, the budget was amended as necessary. The
budget is adopted at the level of lotal revenues and expenditures by fund. Alf budgel appropriations lapse at

year end.

The following funds have legally adepled budgets: General Fund, Utility Surcharge Fund, HotelMotel Occupancy
Tax Fund, Municipal Court Security & Technology Fund, City/County Dispatch Fund and Debt Service Fund.

The Cily prepares all budgets on a "GAAP" basis.

Encumbrance Accounting

Encumbrance accounting is not used by the Gity,
ran nd A ntabili

Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

in accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reporled below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported Not applicable

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assels of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
Operation Stone Garden 3 64,010 Temporary shortage.
Bay Education Center 773  Temporary shoriage.

Both deficits will be replenished by Gensral Fund.

Budgets

The Cily over expended budgeted amounts in the following funds:

Utility Bill Surcharge $ 2,875

City County Dispatch 57,503

Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax 47,444

Municipal Court Security and Tech 7,454

Debt Service Fund 67,226
i vestm

The Gily's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository
bank deposits for safokeeping and trust with the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient
fo protect City funds on a day-lo-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only lo the extent of the deposilory bank’s dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")

insurance.
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h Deposits:

Al September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Cily's deposils (cash, cerlificates’ of deposit, and interest-bearing
savings accounts) included in temporary investments was $19,325,226 and the bank balance was $19,835,616. The
total deposits were covered by Federal Depository Insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in the City's agent bank in the

City's name,

Investments:

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Invesiment Act, to adopl, implement, and
publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety of principat and liguidity; address
investment diversification, yleld, and malurily and the quality and capability of invesiment management; and Include a
list of the types of authorized invesiments in which the invesling entity's funds may be invesled; and the maximum
allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.

The Public Funds Investment Act {"Acl") requires an annual audil of investment practices. Audil procedures in this
area conducted as a part of the audit of the general pwrpose financial stalements disclosed that in the areas of
investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the Gity adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Addilionally, investment praclices of the Cily were in accordance with [ocal policies.

The Act determines the types of invesiments which are allowable for the Gity. These include, with cerlain restrictions, m
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the Slate of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) cerlain
municipal securiies, {4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (8) bankers acceptances, (V)
mutual funds, {8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and (10) common tiust funds.

The City's investment at September 30, 2014 are shown below.

Carrying
Invesimenl or Investment Type Maturity Value Fair Value
TexPool N/A $ 7,544 § 7,544
Texas Term Daily N/A 34,585 34,585
Cerlificates of Deposit 2 years 1,965,000 1,965,000
Total investments $ 2,007,129 $ 2,007,129

The Certificates of Deposit are included in cash deposits listed above.

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk thal an issuer or other counterparly to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of
securitiss by nationally recognized raling agencies are designed lo give an indication of credil risk. At year end, the
City was not significanily exposed lo credit risk.

At September 30, 2014, the City's investments, other than those which are obligations of or guaranteed by the UL
S. Government, are rated as 1o credit quality as follows:

Inv n Rafting Ratin n
TexPool AAAM Standard and Poor's
Texas Term AAAL Standard and Poor's

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
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uncolfateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial inslitution's lrust department or agent but not in the City's name.

Investmen! securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterpanly's trust department or agent but not in the
City's name.

At year end, the City was not exposed 1o custodial credit risk.
¢.  Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of lass atiributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the
City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e.  Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the Cily was
not exposed 1o foreign currency risk.

invesimen nling Poli
The City's general policy is to report money market investmenis and short-term paricipating interest-earning investment

contracts al amortized cost and to repont nonparticipaling interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based
measura. However, if the fair value of an investment Is significantly affected by the impairment of the credil standing of
the issuer or by other faclors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a fegal
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "shori-term” refers to investments which have a remaining
term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating” means that the investment's value does not
vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating
interest-earning investment coniracts.

Public Funds investm I
Public funds investment pools in Texas {"Pools") are established under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act,

Chapler 79 of the Texas Government Gode, and are subject to the provisions of the Public Funds Invesiment Act {the "Acl’},
Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addilion to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and
safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other
persons who do not have a business relationship with ihe poo! and are qualified to advise the pool; 2} maintain a continuous
rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3)
maintain the market value of its underlying invesiment portfolio within one half of one percent of the value of its shares.

The City's investmenls in Pools are reported al an amount determined by the fair value per share of the pool's
underlying portiolio, unless the pool Is 2a7-lke, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one
which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission {"SEC") as an investment company, but
nevertheless has a policy that it wil, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the

Investment Company Act of 1940.
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D. Capilal Assels
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Bafances
Governmental aclivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,902,767 $ -- $ -- $ 4,902,767
Construction in progress 120,877 - - 120,877
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,023,644 -- - 5,023,644
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastruclure 12,972,057 2,051,777 -- 15,023,834
Buildings and improvements 4,942,944 -- - 4,842 944
improvemenis other than buildings 1,884,804 -- 1,884,604
Magchinery and Equipment 3,664,282 290,582 51,244 3,903,620
Total capital assets being depreciated 23,464,087 2,342,359 51,244 25,655,002
Less accumutated depresciation for:

- Infrastruciure {1,237,083) (273,629} - (1,510,712}
Buildings and improvemenis (1,197,684) {125,332} - (1.323,0186)
improvements other than buildings (440,710} (85,645) - (526,355)
Machinery and Equipment {2,214,001) (295,921) (51,244} {(2,458,678)

Total accumulated depreciation (5,089,478} {780,527} {51,244) (5,818,761)
Tolal capital assets being depraciated, net 18,374,609 1,561,832 -- 19,836,241
Governmenial aclivities capital assets, net $ 23,398,253 % 1,561,832 -- $ 24,859,885
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets nol being depreciated:
Land $ 214,954 $ - $ - $ 214,954
Consleuction in progress -- 1,095,682 -- 1,085,682
Total capital assets not being depreciated 214,854 1,095,682 - 1,310,636
Capitat assets being depreciated:
Buitdings and improvements 4,192,187 45,751 -- 4,237,938
Improvements other than buildings 1,944,240 -- -- 1,944,240
Utitity System 43,990,074 195,622 - 44,185,696
Machinery and Equipment 2,100,088 105,300 -- 2,205,398
Total capital assets being depreciated 52,226,599 346,673 - 52,573,272
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {360,467) (107,281) - (467,748)
improvements other than buildings (776,112) {64,308) -~ (840,420)
Utility System {15,747,802) (768,489) - {16,536,291)
Machinery and Equipment (1,855,622} {65,9986) -- {1,921,618)
Total accumulated depreciation {18,740,003) (1,026,074} -- (19,766,077}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,486,596 (679,401} -- 32,807,185
Business-type aclivities capital assets, net $ 33,701,550 % 416,281 $ - 3 34,117,831
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Depreciation was charged to funclions as follows:

Governmenlal activities:

General Government $ 37,268
Public Safety 231,181
Public Works 363,664
Culture and Recrealion 146,669
$ 778,782

Business- ivities:
Water and Sewer System $ 897,034
Natural Gas System 62,874
66,066

GCommunity Aguatic Center

$_ 1,026,074

Capital Leases

Included in the govermnmental activities capital assets listed above are the following capitalized leased assets:
Buildings $ 1,607,000
Less accumulated amortization (401,750)
Capitalized leases, net $ 1,205,250

Inferfund Bal n ivi
1.  Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2014, consisied of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 354,559 Shor-term loans

General Fund Other Enterprise Fund - Short-term [oans
Total $ 354,559

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds
Transters to and from other lunds at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Fransfers In

General Nonmajor Nonmajor Water &

Transfers Oul Total Fund Governmental Propristary Sewer
Naiural Gas Fund $ 164,684 $ $ - $ 164,684
Water and Sewer Fund 915,408 915,409
General Fund 775,831 712,616 63,215
Nonmajor Governmental 42,893
Internal Service Fund 1,800 1,800

$ 1,800,617 $ 915,409 $ 712,616 § 63,215 § 166,484
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The General Fund received funds from the Water & Sewer and Nalural Gas Funds to cover allocated amounts of

administrative charges.

Other transfers were made to supplement other funds operations.
Short-Term Debt Activi
The City had no short-term debt activity for the year ended Seplember 30, 2014.

Restii A

Cash and cash equivalents were restricted for the following purposes at September 30, 2013:

Governmental  Business-type

Aclivities Activities
Bond Construction Funds $ 7,046,943 § 7,405,734
Debt Service . 182,073

$ 7,046,943 $ 7,587,807

Long-Term Obligation

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annuai Reports and Malerial Event Nolices
to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required under
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operalions of the Gily.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at September 30, 2013:

General Long- Enterprise
Interest Rate Term Debt Fund Debt
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificales of
Obtigation, Series 2005 4.00-4.50% 271,472 198,528
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificales of
Obligation, Series 2007 4.25-5.25% 7,676,276 1,583,062
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 3.00-4.00% 858,186 611,814
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Ohbligation, Series 2009 3.00-4.50% 8,725,000
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 2.00-4.00% 1,054,184 1,050,816
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 1.00-3.00% 3,893,024 2,846,976
General Obtigation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 2.00-4.25% 4,413,160 906,739
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2014 2.00-3.00% -- 3,610,000
Total Bonded Debt 18,166,302 19,532,935
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Unameortized bond premium
Capital leases payable
OPEB obligation payable

Pansion obligation payable

Compensated absences

Totat Long-Term Debt $

Long-Term Obiigation Activily

537,934 348,109
962,000
1,598,027
260,240

346,024 87,878

21,870,527 $ 19,868,922

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
September 30, 2014, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
Cerlificates of obligation $ 13,063,805 % -- $ 5,116,057 § 7,947,748 769,119
General obligation bonds 6,233,414 4,503,642 518,502 10,218,554 444,704
Bond premium 519,654 115,943 87,683 537,914 49,000
Capital leases 1,037,000 - : 75,000 962,000 78,000
Pension obligation 260,240 5,829 - 266,069 -
OPEB obligation 1,436,824 377,393 216,190 1,598,027 388,715
Compensated absences * 344,386 155,520 153,882 346,024 140,000
Total governmental activities  § 22,805,323 § 5,158,327 § 6,177,314 & 21,876,336 1,869,538
Business-lype aclivilies;
Cerlificates of obligation $ 12,631,195 § 3,610,000 $ 1,184,605 $ 14,956,590 420,881
General obligation bonds 4,436,586 906,739 766,980 4 576,345 795,296
Bond premium 348,109 277,185 48,503 576,791 49,000
Compensated absences * 87,878 127,680 92,120 123,438 80,000
Total business-lype activities $ 17,403,768 $ 4921604 $ 2092,208 $ 20,233,164 1,345,177

* Other long-term liabilities

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liabitity Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental  General Fund
Claims and judgments Governmental  General Fund

Compensated absences
Claims and judgmentls
Pension Obligation
OPEB

Debt Service Requirements

Business-type
Business-type
Governmental
Governmental

Water and Sewer Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2014, are as follows:

Year Ending S mher
2015 $

Governmeantal Activities

Principal

Interest Total

1,213,823 §

524223 § 1,738,046
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2016 1,412,611 477,324 1,889,935
2017 1,386,931 427,624 1,814,555
2018 1,389,579 376,345 1,765,924
2018 1,388,064 323,283 1,711,347
2020-2024 §,910,189 762,720 7,662,909
2024-2027 1,092,784 63,232 1,156,016
Totals $ 14,793,981 § 2,944 751 $ 17,738,732

Business-type Aclivilies

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 1,216,177 § 769,727 § 1,985,904
2016 1,267,389 724,619 1,992,008
2017 1,258,069 684,856 1,942,925
2018 1,265,421 641,779 1,907,200
2019 1,266,936 598,006 1,864,942
2020-2024 6,287,739 2,285,918 8,573,657
2025-2029 5,791,204 871,666 6,662,870
2029 1,180,000 129,203 1,309,203
Totals $ 19,532,935 § 6,705,774 $ 26,238,709

Advance Refunding of Debt

in July 2014, the Cily issued $5,430,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds io defease $5,225,000 of
Combination Tax and Revenue G,0.'s Series 2007. $4,358,497 of the refunded debt was serviced by the Debt
Service Fund and $896,503 was debt of the Water and Sewer Enterptise Fund.

The proceeds from the refunding bonds have been deposiled in irrevocable trusts which, together with interest
sarnings on those deposits, will provide amounls sufficient for future redemplion or payment of principal and
interest of the issues refunded. The trust account assels and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not
included in the City's financial stalements. At September 30, 2014, $5255,000 of bonds outstanding

were considered defeased.

The present value of the debt savings was $496,720, $411,979 was atlibutable to Governmental Activities and
$84,740 to the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

Capital Leases

Commilments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for minimum future lease payments
as of September 30, 2014, as follows:

Year Ending Septembear 30,

2015 $ 120,182
2016 120,911
2017 120,414
2018 120,661
2019 120,680
2020-2024 603,629
Total Minimum Rentals 1,206,477
Less amount representing interest {244 ,477)

Present value of minimum lease payments

Rental Expenditues in 2014

$ 962,000

$ 120,222
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The effeclive interest rate on capital [eases is 4.39%.
l. mmitments Under Noncapitalized L

The City had no material commilments under operating {noncapitalized) tease agreements at September 30, 2014.

J.  Risk Management

The Cily is exposed to various risks of loss related 1o torts, theft, damage or destiuction of assets, errors and omissions,
injuries 1o employees, and nalural disasters. During fiscal year 2014, the City oblained general fiability coverage at a
cost that is considered to be economically justiliable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as
a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool ("TML"). TML is a self-funded poot operating as
a common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its above insurance
coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceplable risk tevels; howevet, each category
of coverage has its own feve! of reinsurance. The Cily continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss.
There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

K. Pension Plan
1. Plan Description

The City's pension plan ("Plan") Is a non-tradilional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan which provides
retirement, disability and death Denefits to Plan members and beneficiaries through its afiiliation with Texas
Municipal Relirement System ("TMRS"), an agent mulliple-employer public employee refirement system. TMRS
operates under the authority of Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtite G. The Texas legislature has the
authorily to establish or amend benefil provisions and the governing body of the City adopts the plan provisions
within the oplions and consfraints established by the legisiature. TMRS issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for TMRS. That report may be oblained
by writing to Texas Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or calling {800)
924-8677, Additional nonauthoritative information is available at the TMRS web site, hitp//www.tmrs.org.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the oplions available in the state governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year Plan Year
2012 2013

Employee deposit rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching ratio(city to employee) 2t01 2101
Years required for vesling 10 10
Service retiremant efigibility
exprass as agefyears of service 60/10,0/20 60/10,0/20
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating 100% Repeating

Transfers Transfers
Annuity Increase (o employees) 70% of CPI Repeating 70% of CPi Repeating

2 Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary,
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using the Prejected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cosl contribution rate
and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculaled to be a level percent of payroll from year to year.
The nommal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rate amorlizes the unfunded {overfunded) actuarial lability (asset) over the
applicable period for that city. Both the normal costs and prior service contribution rates include recognition
of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuily Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the Gity make
contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know ils contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes,
there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valualion that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar
year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation{asset) are as follows:

Annual Pension Cosl:

Annual required confribution {ARC)} 3 758,836
interest on Net Pension Obligation 22,765
Adjustment to ARC (22,765)
Annual Pension Cost 758,836
Coniributions Made (758,836)

Increase in net pension

NPO at beginning of year 260,240
NPO at End of Year $ 260,240

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2014 were determined as part of the December 31, 2012
actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2013, aiso follows:

Acutuarial Valuation Date

12/31/11

12131712

1213113

Actuarial Cost Method

Projected Unil

Projected Unit

Projected Unit

Credit Credit Credit
Amoriization Method Level Percent  Level Percent  Level Pescent
of Payroll of Payroll of Payroll
Remaining Amorlization Period 26.4 years: 25.4 years: 26 years:

Amottization Period for new

closed period

closed period

closed period

Gains/losses 30 years 30 years 30 years
Asset Valuation Method 10-year 10-year 10-year
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed
Market Market Market
tnvestment Rate of Return 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Projected Salary Increases Varles by age  Varies by age  Varies by age
and service and service and service
Inflation Rate 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
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Cost of Living Adjusiments

3 Funding Status and Funding Prograss:

21%

2.1%

21%

The funding status as of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31113
Actuarial Value of Assets $ 20,004,129
Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 23,420,794
Percentage Funded 85.4%
Untunded (Over-funded) Aciuarial Accrued
Liability {UAAL}) $ 3,416,665
Annual Covered Payroll $ 4,369,466
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 78.2%
Trend Information for the Plan:
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost {APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/11 $ 719,061 95.50% % 254,411
09/30/12 8679157 89.43% 260,240
09/30/13 758,836 100.00% 260,240
Schedule of Funding Progress:
UAAL as a
Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percentage
Value Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability(AAL) {UAAL) Hatio Payroll Payroll
12/31/11 16,183,038 § 19,865,789 § 3,682,751 81.48% $ 4,476,201 82.3%
12/31112 17,585,134 21,103,487 3,518,363 83.33% 4,654,360 75.6%
12/31/13 20,004,129 23,420,794 3,416,665 85.41% 4,369,466 78.2%

The City also pariicipates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benelit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal Relirement System (TMRS} known as the Supplemental Death Benefitls Fund
(SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired
employees. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopling an
ordinance before November 1 of any year 1o be effeclive the following January 1.

The death benefil for active members provides a lJump-sum paymeni approximately equal to the employee's annual
salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earmnings, for the 12-month peried preceding the month of death),

retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit " or OPEB.

Heal I VeI

During the year ended September 30, 2014, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (ihe Plan).
The City pald premiums of $413 per month per employee and dependenis lo lhe Plan.
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Employees, at their option,
authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid {o a third party administrafor,
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acling on behall of the licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was
documented by contraclual agreement.

The contract between the City and the third parly adminisivator is renewable October 1, 2013, and terms of coverage
and premium cosis are included in the contractual provisions.

M. Post Employment Benefits Other Than_Pensions

Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions:

Before 4/24/2001 - Retirement from City, employee eligible for health insurance, Gity pays 100% of premium,

After 4/24/2001 - Relirement with ten years of service with the City of Rockport a retiree is eligible for 50% of the
premium. The percentage ol premium paid increases annually and al twenly years of service eligible for 100% of
premium. H retiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thinly days of retirement.

At age 65 must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy

Heaith Care Benefit Provided by the Plan
Member: Medical
Spouse: N/A
Dependen  N/A

Earl i Beneli

Heaith Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Relirement from City, employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium,

After 4/24/2001: Relirement with ten year of service with the City of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and at twenty years of service eligible for 100% of premium. if retiring

after Apiit 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days of their retirement. Al age 65 must apply for
Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplementai Policy.

I re Benefit Provi Pl
Member: Medical
Spouse: N/A

Dependen  N/A

Deferred Retirement Bensfits

None.

D nd Non-Duty Death i ice Reliremant Benefi

None.

Duty Disabled Retirement Benefits

Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Relirement from City employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium.

Afler 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the Cily of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium. The

percentage of premium paid increases annually and at twenty years of service efigible for 100% of premium. If retiring
after Aprit 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days of their relirement. At age 65, the refiree must
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apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

Health Care Benefit Provided by Plan
Member:  Medical

Non-Duty Disabled Retirement Benelits

Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Refirement from City employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium.

After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the City of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium, The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and at twenty years of service retirees are eligible for 100% of
premium. {f retiring atller April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days. At age 65 must apply for
Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemenial Policy.

Health Care B it Provi
Member: Madical

Benefiis for Spouses of Retired Employees

Benefits are paid by the retiree

Non-Medicare and Medicare-Eligible Provisions

Al age 65 must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

Vision Coverage
Benefits are pald by retiree
Dental Coverage
Benefits are paid by retiree

Life Insurance Coverage

The City of Rockport provides $2,000 basic life insurance for refirees.

No dependent life is covered by the City of Rockport.

Retiree Opt-Out
N/A
Funding Policy and Annuat OPEB Cost

The City's annual other post employment benefits (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameter of GASB Statement No. 45.
The ARC represents a fevel of accrual that is projected to recognize the normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The Cily had its OPEB
acluarial valuation performed for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2011 as required by GASB and is required to
have additional valuations every three years. The annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013

was determined as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 377,393
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Interest on OPEB obligation

Adjustment o ARC

Annual OPEB cost (expense end of year)
Net employer contiibutions (pay as you go)
Increase in net OPEB

Net OPEB obligation - as 09/30/13

Net OPEB obligation {asset)- as of 09/30/14

11,322
{11,322}

377,393
(216,190)

161,203

1,436,824

S___1508,027

The end of year net OPEB obligation is shown as a non-current liability on the Government-wide Statement

of Net Asssts in the Governmental Governmental Activities.

The City's annual OPEB cosl, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and nel OPEB obigation for the

current and two preceeding years were as follows:

Percentage
of OPEB Net
Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
September 30 Cost Conlribuled Obligation
2012 $ 355,729 39.18% $ 1,239,418
2013 366,401 46.12% 1,436,824
2014 377,393 57.28% 1,598,027
ndin nd funding pr

The funded status of the Cily's retiree health care plan, under GASB statement No. 45 as of December 31, 2011,

it's most recent actuarial valuation is as foliows;

Acluarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 3,722,633
Actuarial value of assets -
Unfunded AAL{LUAAL) $ 3,722,633
Funded rafio

Covered Payroll % 4,654,360
UAAL as % of covered payroll 79.98%

Under the reporting parameters, the Clty's retiree health care plan is 0% funded with an estimated actuarial
acerued labllity exceeding actuarial assets by $3,722,633 at December 31, 2011.

rial meth mpiion

The Projected Unit credit actuarial cost method is used fo calculate the GASB ARC for the City's reliree health care
plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial assumplions, the anticipated future
payment are projected. The projecled unit credit method then provides for a systemalic recognition of the cost of these
anticipated payments, The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefils being earned by covered members as
well as to amorlize a portion of the unfunded accrued liability.

Projections of healih benefits are based on the plan as undersicod by the City and include the types of benelits in
jorce at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and ils employees to that
point,  Actuariat  calculations reflect a long-term  perspective and employ methods and  assumptions
that are designed fo reduce short-term volalility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the acluarial value of assels.
Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Measurement date December 31, 2011

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Amortization method Level as a percentage of payroll
Amorlization period 30 years, open

inflation rate 3.0% per annum

Medical inflation 8.5% initial rate, 4.5% ullimate rate,
Payroll Growth rate 3% annually

Actuarial valuations invoive estimates of the value of reported amounis and assumplions about the probability of
gvenls in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the annual required contributions of the
City's refiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expeciaions and
new estimates are made about the fulure. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required
suplementary information provides mulliyear trend informalion that shows whether the acluarial value of plan assels is
increasing or decreasing over {ime relalive to the actuarial accrued fHability for benefits.

N.  Commitments and Contingencles

t.  Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Cosls charged lo the respective gran! programs are subject to audit and adjusiment by the grantor
agencies; lherefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any refated receivable may be
tmpaired. In the opinion of the Cily, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respeclive grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

2. Litigation

No reportable litigation was pending against the Cily at September 30,2014,

O. Subsequent Events

No events occurred subsequent to September 30, 2014 that require disclosure in the financial statements.
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Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial slatements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
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EXHIBIT B-1

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds {See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-3)
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 994,546 $ 712,356 $ 1,706,902
Recelvables ( net of allowances for unceltectibles):
Other taxes 288,887 -- 288,887
Accounts 16,756 48 16,804
Special assessments 735 6,473 7,208
Intergovernmental 115,086 - 115,086
Resfricted assels:
Cash and invesiments - 2,491,468 2,491,468
Total Assels 1,416,010 3,210,345 4,626,355
Liabilities:
Accounts payable % 267,812 $ - $ 267,812
Accrued expendilures 10,818 - 10,818
Due to other funds 169,233 261,441 420,674
Total Liabilities 437,863 261,441 699,304
Deferred Quiflows of Resources
Unavailable spacial assessments 735 6,473 7,208
Unavaitable taxes - Ulilily Surcharge 16,756 -- 16,756
Totat Deferred Qutflows of Resources 17,491 6,473 23,964
Total Liabilities and Deferred Outfiows of
Resources 455,354 267,914 723,268
Fund balances:
Restricted 1,026,319 2,512,025 3,538,344
Committed {65,663) 1,752 (63,911}
Assigned - 428,654 428,654
Total fund balances 960,656 2,942,431 3,903,087
Totat Liabilities and Fund balances $ 1,398,518 $ 3,203,872 $ 4,602,391

48
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projecis Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-5)
Revenue:
Taxes $ 1,041,457 $ - $ 1,041,457
Intergovernmentat 586,266 597,294 1,183,560
Fines 44,940 - 44,940
Interest - 6,423 6,423
Miscellaneous 6,633 -- 6,633
Total revenues 1,679,296 603,717 2,283,013
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 27,537 21 27,558
Public safety 1,008,758 1,008,758
Culture and recreation 50,902 50,902
TFourism 640,589 - 640,589
Capital outlay 102,508 731,476 833,984
Debt service:
Principal 31,694 31,694
Interest and fiscal charges 3,924 -- 3,924
Total expenditures 1,865,912 731,497 2,587,409
Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expenditures (186,616) (127.780) {314,396)
Other financing sources (Uses):
TFransfers in 397,643 189,700 587,343
Transfers out (43,012) -- (43,012)
Totat other financing sources {uses) 354,631 189,700 544,331
Net change in fund balance 168,015 61,920 229,935
Fund balance, beginning of year 792,641 2,880,511 3,673,152
Fund balance, end of year $ 960,656 $ 2,942,431 5 3,903,087
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assels:
Cash and invesimenis
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Other laxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Total Assels

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deterred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge

Tolal Deferred Qutiiows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Comimitted
Total fund balances

Tolal Liabifities and Fund balances

Utility Bay Juvenile
Bilt Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
197813 § $ $
16,756 . -
-- 100,500 - -
214,569 100,500 - -
128,992 & 5277 § 773§
-- 159,233 - --
128,992 164,510 773 --
16,756 - - -
16,756 - -
145,748 164,510 773
68,821 -- - -
-- (64,010) (773) -
68,821 {64,010} {773) --
197,813 § 100,506  $ $
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City/County Pubtic
Contripution Dispatch Access Hotel/Motel
Fund Service TV Qccupancy
2,080 $ - $ 119,092 $ 525,152
- - 288,887
- 14,588 - --
2,080 14,586 119,092 814,039
- $ 15,0386 $ - $ 99,200
- 10,818 - -
-- 25,854 -- 89,200
25,854 - 99,200
2,080 .- 119,092 714,839
- {11,268) - --
2,080 {11,268) 119,092 714,839
2,080 $ 14,586 $ 119,092 $ 814,039
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Key Allggro

Propenrty Impr.

Distriot

232

735

967

735

735

735

232

232

232
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and investments

Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Other taxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Intergovernmental
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Delerred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Fund bafances:
Restricted
Commitied
Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances
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Border
Star
Grant

10,388

10,388

10,388
10,388

10,388

Chilg
Safely

2,142

2,142

2142

2,142

2,142
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Forfeitura

16,392

16,392

16,392

29,494

29,494

$ 45,886

Tech. Fund

$

91,761

91,761

$

Municipal Court

Security &

91,761

91,761

91,761
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EXHIBIT 8-3
Page 2 of 2

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See

Exhibit B-1)

994,546

288,887
16,756
735
115,086

1,416,010

267,812

10,818
159,233
437,863

735
16,756
17,491

455,354

1,026,319
(65,663)

960,656

1,398,519



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGCES
NONMAJOR SPEGIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

112

Utility Bay Juvenile
Bill Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
Revenue:
Taxes $ 183,580 § - $ $ -
Intergovernmental - 306,934 -
Fines - - - 7,315
Miscellaneous -- " 35 -
Total revenues 183,580 306,934 35 7,315
Expenditures:
Cuirent:
General government -- - - 18,883
Pubiic safety 128,992 277,138 -- -
Culture and recreation - -- 50,023 --
Tourism - - -
Capital outiay - 162,508 -
Debt service:
Principal 31,694 -- -
Interest and fiscal charges 3,924 -- -- --
Total expenditures 164,610 379,644 50,023 18,883
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 18,970 (72,710} {49,988) (11,568}
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - -- 50,085 11,568
Transfers out -- -- --
Total other financing sources {(uses} 50,085 11,568
Net change in fund balance 18,970 (72,710} 97 -
Fund balance, beginning of year 49,851 8,700 {870)
Fund balance, end of year $ 68,821 § (64,010) $ (773) §
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City/County Public
Contribution Dispatch Access Hotel/Motel
Fund Service TV Qccupancy
- - $ 17,946 $ 839,931
279,332 - --
2,679 3,469 - 450
2,679 282,801 17,946 840,381
590,259
874 - - --
- - - 640,589
879 590,259 -- 640,589
1,800 {307,458} 17,946 198,792
- 335,980 --
) - {43,012) .
335,990 - {43,012)
1,800 28,532 17,946 156,780
280 {39,800} 101,146 558,059
2,080 {11,268} % 118,092 $ 714,839
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EXHIBIT B-4
Page 1 of 2

Key Allegro

Propenty Impr.

District

232
232
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Border
Star
Grant

Revenue:
Taxes 3 -
Intergovernmentat -
Fines
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public salety
Gulture and recreation
Tourism

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures -
Other financing sources {uses}:
Transfers in
Transters oul
Total other financing sources {Uses)
Net change in fund balance -

Fund balance, beginning of year 10,388

Fund balance, end of year $ 10,388
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Child
Safety

3,063

3,063

3,088

(25)

(25)

25
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Forfaifure

25,253

25,253

9,283

15,870

15,970

13,524
29,494

Municipal Court
Security &

Tech. Fund

9,309

9,309

8,654

8,654

655

655

91,106
91,761
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EXHIBIT B-4
Page 2 of 2

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See

Exhibil B-2}

1,041,457
586,266
44,940
6,633

T 1879288

27,537
1,008,758
50,802
640,589
102,508

31,694
3,924

1,865,912

(186,616)

387,643
(43,012}
354,631

168,015

792,641
960,656
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
UTILITY BILL SURCHARGE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency} of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 167,490 3% 167,490 § 183,580 & 16,090
167,490 167,490 183,580 16,090
123,525 123,525 128,992 {5,467)
30,661 30,661 31,694 (1,033)
4,859 4,859 3,924 935
159,045 159,045 164,610 (5,565)
8,445 8,445 18,970 10,525
(8,375) {8,375) -- 8,375
{8,375) {8,375) - (8,375}
70 70 18,870 18,900
49,851 49,851 49,851 -
3 49921 §% 49,921 % 68821 § 18,900
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
CITY/COUNTY DISPATCH SERVICE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDBGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Intergovernmentat
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-6
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual {Negative)
253,455 § 253,455 & 279332 § 25,877
-- -- 3,469 3,469
253,455 253,455 282,801 29,346
532,856 532,856 590,259 {57.403)
532,856 532,856 590,259 {57,403)
{279,401} (279,401} {307,458) (28,057)
279,401 279,401 335,990 56,589
279,401 279,401 335,990 (56,589)
-- 28,532 28,532

(39,800} {39,800} {39,800) -

$ (39,800} $ {39,800} $ (11,268) $ 28,532
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS EXHIBIT B-7
HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenue:

Taxes $ 665,000 $ 665,000 § 839,931 § 174,931

Miscellaneous - -- 450 450
Total revenues 665,000 665,000 840,381 175,381

Expenditures:
Current:

Tourism 593,145 593,145 640,589 (47,444)
Totat expenditures 583,145 593,145 640,589 (47,444)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expendilures 71,855 71,855 199,792 127,937

Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers out {43,012) {43,012) (43,012} --
Tolal other financing sources (uses) {43,012) (43,012) (43,012} -
Net change in fund balance 28,843 28,843 156,780 127,937
Fund balance, beginning of year 431,721 431,721 558,059 126,338

Fund balance, end of year $ 460,564 % 460,564 § 714,838 § 254,275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY & TECHNOLOGY FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

EXHIBIT B-8

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenue:

Fings $ 16,000 $ 16,000 § 9,309 § (6,691}

Total revenues 16,000 16,000 8,309 {6,691}
Expendifures:
Current:

General government 1,200 1,200 8,654 {7,454)
Total expendilures 1,200 1,200 8,654 (7,454)
Excess {deficiency} of revenues {under) expendilures 14,800 14,800 655 {14,145}

Other financing sources (uses):
Total other financing sources {(uses} -- -~
Net change in fund balance 14,800 14,800 655 (14,145}
Fund balance, beginning of year 91,106 91,106 91,106 --
Fund balance, end of year $ 1059206 $ 105,906 & 91,761 § (14,145)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

61

119



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Debt service:
Principat
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cost
Total expendilures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transters in
Issuance of cerlificates of obligation
Promium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sold
Payment to refunding escrow agent
Tolal olher financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-9

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ $ 1949033 $ 1967017 § 17,984
1,000 551 {449)
- 1,850,033 1,967,568 17,535
1,178,656 1,274,138 (95,482)
- 797,564 664,781 132,783
-- 2,000 106,527 (104,527)
- 1,978,220 2,045,446 (67,226)
- (28,187) (77.878) (49,691)
- 42,893 43,012 119
- B 4,503,642 {4,503,642)
- 563,678 (563,678)
- 6,949 (6,949}
- {4,962,452) (4,962,452)
42,803 154,829 (111,936)
- 14,706 76,951 62,245
451,153 451,153 451,153 --
$ 451,153 % 465,859 % 528,104 § 62,245
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assels;
Cash and investmenis

Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Accounts
Special assessments
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Due to other funds
Totat Liabilities

Deferrad Outflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessmenis
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Total Liabitities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Commitied
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances
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Flamingo/
Luau Road

Assessment

1,704

48
3,911

5,663

3,911
3,811

3,911

1,762

1,752

1,752

$

T aaz103.

261,441

~ 264,003

178,100

General
Capilal
_Improvement _

439,541

2,562

261,441

2,562
2,562

178,100

e 439,541
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$

$

Bay Education
Center

Construction

20,557

Vehicle and
Equipment

Replacement

250,554

250,554

250,554

250,554

250,554
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Obligation

2,491,468

2,491,468

$

2005
Certlificate of

2,491,468

2,491,468

2,491,468

EXHIBIT B-10

Totai
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds {See

Exhibil B-1}

712,356

48
6,473

2,491,468

_ 3210345

261,441
261,441

6,473
6,473

267,914

2,512,025
1,752
428,654

2,942,431

3,203,872




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Flamingo/
Luau Road
Assessment
Revenus:
Intergovernmental $ -
Interest -
Total revenues -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 21
Capital outlay -
Total expenditures 21
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures (21}
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Tolal other financing sources (uses})
Net change in fund balance (21)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,773
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,752

65

Improvernent

$

587,294

T 583,461

General
Capital

597,294

583,461

13,833

13,833

164,267

178,100
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EXHIBIT B-11
Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Bay Education Vehicle and 2005 Projects
Center Equipment Ceitificate of Funds (See
Construction Replacement Obligation Exhibil B-2)
$ $ § - $ 597,294
187 6,236 6,423
187 6,236 603,717
- - 21
148,015 - 731,476
- 148,015 - 731,497
-~ {147,828} 6,236 (127,780)
- 189,700 - 189,700
- 189,700 - 189,700
- 41,872 6,236 61,920
20,557 208,682 2,485,232 2,880,511
$ 20,557 $ 250,554 $ 2,491,468 $ 2,942,431
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assets;
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capitaf assets:
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilittes:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
BDue to other funds
Gustomer deposits
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Total liabilitfes

NET ASSETS:
Investment in Capitat Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

Enterprise Enterprise Total
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-8)
$ 248,236 $ 1,974 $ 250,210
204,562 214 204,776
452,798 2,188 454,986
104,300 104,300
- 1,944,240 1,944 240
- 19,688 19,689
(853,487} (853,487}
1,214,742 1,214,742
452,798 1,216,930 1,669,728
$ 422,311 $ 5,186 $ 427,497
- 1,935 1,935
- 356 356
- 698 688
422,311 8,175 430,486
422,311 8,175 430,486
30,487 {131,298) (100,809)
$ 30,487 $ 1,208,755 $ 1,239,242
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EXHIBIT B-i2
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contractual services
Maintenance
Supplies
Other
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income {Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Intergovernmental revenue
Total Non-operating Revenues {Expenses)
Net Income {Loss) before Operating Transfers

TRANSFERS:
interfund transfers in
Interfund fransfers out

Change in Net Assels

Net Assets, beginning of year
Net Assets, end of year

Enterprise Enterprise Fotal
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-9)

16,994 $ 165,231 $ 182,225
16,994 165,231 182,225

- 173,743 173,743

- 26,471 26,471
27,418 27,418

102,593 102,593

1,384 1,384

-- 66,066 66,066
397,675 397,675
16,994 (232,444} (215,450)
40,750 40,750

-- 40,750 40,750
16,994 {191,694) {174,700}

- 132,155 132,155
16,994 (59,539} {42,545)
13,493 1,268,294 1,281,787
30,487 $ 1,208,755 % 1,239,242
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EXHIBIT B-13
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Actlvities:
Cash Received from Cuslomers
Cash Receipts {(Payments) for Operaling
Transactions with Other Funds
Cash Payments to Employees

Cash Payments o Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-caplital Financing Activities:
Operaling Grants Received
Transfers From Other Funds
Transtfers To Other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activitles:

Proceeds from sale of assels
Purchase of equipment

Net Cash Provided by Capital & Refated Financing
Aclivities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Actlvitles:
Operaling income {Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income fo Nel
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase} in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
increase {Decrease) in Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Totat Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Cperating Activities

EXHIBIT B-14
Total
Nonmajor
Communily Enterprise
Sanitation Aguatic Funds {See
Fund Center Exhibit A-10}

$ 16,984 § 165,231 $ 182,225
- (173,643) (173,643)
(15,342) (156,172) (171,514)
1.652 {164,584) (162,932)

- 40,750 40,750

- 132,155 132,155

- 172,805 172,805
(6,587) {6,597)
- (6,597} {6,597)

1,652 1,724 3,376

246,584 250 246,834

$ 248,238 % 1,974 $ 250,210
$ 16,994 § (232,344) % {215,350)

66,066 66,066

(21,548} - (21,546)

6,204 1,775 7.979

- 356 356

-- {437) (437)

{15,342) 67,760 52,418
$ 1,652 § (164,584) $ (162,932}
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Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considerad a part of the basic financial statements. i may, howsver, include information which is
required by other entities.




Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 E. MARKET
P.0. BOX 1266

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3545
FAX (361} 790-9692

ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the City CouncH:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the financial statemenis of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements and have issued our report dated February 18, 2015

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Rockport, Texas's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumslances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of Cily of Rockport, Texas's inlernal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Rockport, Texas's internal

control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entily’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a malerial weakness,
yet important enough to merit atiention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed o idenlify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal conirol that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that

have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether Cily of Rockport, Texas's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed lesls of its compliance wilth certain provisions of laws,
regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tesls disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matlers that are required
to be reported under Government Audiling Standards.

City of Rockport, Texas's Response to Findings

City of Rockport, Texas's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Rockport, Texas's response was not subjected io the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion

onit.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effecliveness of the enltily's internal
control or on compliance. This reporl is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectiully submitied,

RS A A

Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 £. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3545
FAX  (361) 720-8602

P.0O. BOX 1266
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the City Council:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Rockport, Texas's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compfliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of City of Rockport, Texas's major tederal programs City of Rockport, Texas's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned cosls.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiiily is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Rockport, Texas’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits conlained in Government Auditing Siandards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Slales, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require Ihat we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Rockport, Texas's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Rockport, Texas's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Rockporf, Texas compiied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and malerfal efiect on each of its major federal
programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying scheduie of findings and

questioned costs
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Rockport, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Rockport, Texas's internat control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Gircular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Rockport, Texas's internal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal controf over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a malerial weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Cur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the fimited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiences. We did not identify any defictencies In internal
control over compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal conirol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that tesling based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

YA F ], P

Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

A. Summary of Auditor's Resulls

1.

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified?

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material {o financial
statements noted?

Faderal Awards
Internal conirol over major programs:;
One or more material weaknesses identified?

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337

Identification of major programs:

133

nmodifi

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported
nmodifi

Yes X No

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14 Community Development Block Grant

Dollar threshold used to dislinguish between
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

B. Financlal Statement Findings

NONE
C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
NONE
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Management's Explanation
Finding/Recommendalion Current Status if Not imptemented

NONE

75




135

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

N/A

76




136

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS EXHIBIT C-1
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through Aransas Coounty, Texas:

Operation Stonegarden{OPSG} 97.067 -- $ 306,205
Total U.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 306,905

L. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Passed Through Texas General Land Ofifice:

Communily Development Block Grant * 14.228 378,056
Passed Through Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs:

Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 -- 267,998
Total U. 8. Department of Housing & Urban Development 646,054
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5 952,959

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Basis of ntation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of
Rockport, Texas and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audils of Siates,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial
stalements.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Rockport, Texas's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 79

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 83
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's
ability to generate its property and sales taxes.
Debt Capacity 86
These schedules present information lo help the reader assess the affordability of the Cily's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additionat debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 95
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicalors to help the reader understand
how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and
with other governments.
96

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City provides

and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Rockport, Texas
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Year Ended September 30, 2014
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TABLE D-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Property Sales & Use Franchise Occupancy Other
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Total
2005 $ 2,190,191 $ 1,624,228 % 560,227 § 503,818 $ 158,898 § 5,037,363
2006 2,451,332 1,718,155 657,696 472,166 170,545 5,469,894
2007 2,793,123 1,714,042 712,156 533,215 175,044 5,927,580
2008 3,455,073 1,842,730 753,400 540,624 164,319 6,756,146
2009 3,837,024 1,726,846 803,466 467,038 180,616 7,014,990
2010 3,096,528 1,737,375 731,583 477,688 217,649 7,160,823
2011 4,011,625 1,799,286 801,629 647,278 180,877 7,440,695
2012 4,152,465 1,929,948 795,072 662,330 178,672 7,718,487
2013 4,380,000 2,051,342 844,466 698,934 199,923 8,174,665
2013 4,453,504 2,231,798 803,439 839,931 * 189,923 8,602,188

Percent

Change

2005-2014 103.3% 37.4% 43.4% 66.7% 25.8% 70.8%
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE D-9
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED
2014 2005
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Qaks at Bentwater, LP $ 7,663,740 1 0.5338% $ - - -
Wal-Mant Real Estate Bus Tr 7,132,010 2 0.4967% -- -
Rockpont Harborfront, LP 6,954,274 3 0.4844% 4,374,642 2 0.5852%
H E Butt Grocery 6,457,480 4 0.4498% 9,301,259 1 1.0942%
C H Marina and Drystack LP 5,725,958 5 0.3988% - -
Lokseva, Inc 5,513,770 6 0.3840% - - -
Wai-Mart Stores East #440 5378973 7 0.3746% 2,538,004 7 0.2886%
Heritage Hotels Rockport LP 4,665,180 8 0.3249% 3,329,770 4 0.3917%
AEP Texas Central Comp 4,498,050 9 0.3133% 3,501,660 3 0.4119%
J&S Lagoons RV LLC 3,585,575 10 0.2497% - - -
Southwestern Bell Telephone - - - 2,975,860 5 0.3501%
Bracht Lumber Go., Inc. -- - - 2,649,261 6 0.3117%
Rackbay Properties LTD -- = - 2,509,850 8 0.2953%
Sea Mist, LTD -- = - 2,402,440 g 0.2826%
White Marlin of Rockport LP - -- -- 2,301,300 o 0.2707%
Tolal $ 57,675,010 4.0101% § 36,484,046 4.2920%

Source: Aransas County Appraisal District
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal
Year

2004
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed and Estimaled Actual Value.
{2) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demegraphic and Economic Statistics.

$

General Bonded Debt Cuistanding

Generaf Debt Net
Bonded Service Bonded
Debt Funds Debt
11,532,001 $ 277,024 $ 11,254,977
20,540,001 259,152 20,280,849
36,521,001 542,935 35,078,066
35,405,001 365,215 35,039,786
34,282,001 363,863 33,918,038
43,287,001 293,651 43,580,652
41,345,050 344,532 41,689,582
38,290,062 525,338 39,815,400
36265000 451153 36,716,153
38,661,237 528,104 38,133,133

80

TABLE D-12
Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value of Per
Property(1) Capita(2)

1.32% $ 1,442

2.13% 2,243

3.17% 3,584

2.88% 3,718

2.64% 3,457

3.30% 4,442

3.05% 4,455

291% 4,255

2.68% 3,824

2.66% 4,075
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
UNAUDITED

Governmentaf Unit

Debt Repaid With Propeity Taxes
Aransas County Independent Schoot District
Aransas County
Aransas County Navigation District

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt

City Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the Cily.
The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by the percent of area of each government that

is within the boundaries of the City,

TABLE D-13
Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable Debi
$ 34,889,925 65.030% § 22,688,918
17,880,651 49,990% 8,938,537
4,720,000 49.990% 2,359,528
33,986,984
_ 38,661,287
$_ 72648221

Information oblained from entities audited financial statements and Aransas County Appraisal District.

g1

152




153

44

“uoren[EA PASSaSSe 00 LE sad DS Zg S pesodind | 0l aYel xe)
wniuxew au) ‘uoeindod DO’ Jo S8wIo 0} ajgeoidde uoRNIISUCD SEXD] JO B1BIS BUL JO § UOIDAS ‘X 291y JApUr

“wet Ag payL
Jou 51 SEX8 | ‘oo 4O AID 9l A PSNSS! 3G UBS YIyM IGRP JO JUNWR 3u 'AlLD) JSUBYD) B|flk SWOH € Sy

801807 & aonies
1Gap uonebigo [e1sual 10) pepuadxa JUNCLUE [BNIOY

0BL'2.8'68 30195 100p Bumpniow
sasodund |[e 10} SENUBABL XB) BTRliEAR WNWIXER

052 UCHEN[BA PI$SESSE (014 Jod el Xel wnwnepy

Si9°/88'FEYL  $ aNEA PISSISSY

Jeaj {easly Waung Ay 104 ucnenore) uibiey 199q eban

£L1'ge9'se 9P0'EEC'CE L2'9L9°0E 0g0'vreEe 956'601°1E 588'957'0E 99°LvL8e ZGL08PLE 925'%96'22 8.5'095'02 $580X3

¥80'190'2 185'0P02 8E£9'E80'2 YEV'EY6'L YOL'0EE'L 059'629'1 9/1'689°L LBS'EEB 52.'226 0EL'v69 19ap uonebigo jessush
10} papudxa JUNOWE [Bnoy

LET'669LE $ L29'C/2GE  § 6UB'6BI'ZE S PSL'E6L'YE  $ 099'0FO'EE  $ GEC'9EL'ZE  $ OFE'ZOM'0S  § BPE'VOE'SZ  § 1GZU8R'SZ  $ R0LPSTLZ 20193 Juep Buipniou
sasodund je Joy
SINUDAIL XB] I)|Ge(IBAR LUNWIXEN

v102 £10e Loz L10g 010g 8002 8002 4008 900z S002
JB9 )\ [ROSI4

a3LianvynNn
SHVIA TvOSId N3L 1SV
NOILLYWHOINI NIDHYIN L8340 TvD31

SVX3L ‘1HOdMDO0Y 40 ALID
¥~ 3NgvlL




154

£6

"Aluo spuog snusaal Jo 1sassiul pue [ediound sepniou (2)

1saueu pue uoneicaldap jo aasnox3 (i)
868'90L°E QLE'CLL'D ¥.8'612'6 7102
VN - 560'269'2 giv'oLe's £26°L06'8 £10e
VIN - SiL'0L8'e 628'v60'L YY6'v06's cLoz
ViIN - L1£'189'2 12 A S98'201°0} LLo2
¥IN - 8P veL'e 8666559 9.L1'02¢E'8 1]1¢74
Py LL SLE'I0Z B8Y0P0L'2 02152, 95.°195'6 6002
811 ZrL'e6t 198" LvE'2 LBG'28r'S 895'¥ee'L 8002
<601 Y661 Seg'pLLE ZBLLLEY LL9°285°9 £L002
S6'0L 20¥'v02 26L'182°2 601995t LOB'E08'9 9002
BLLL SYE'P0S $ zcig'egg'z $ oeE'BEEr  $ 89S'MEG'9 $ S0OE
afeisnnn  (Z)sluswainbay BNUBASY (1)sosuadxgy safieyn Jeaj
EERTSETS B|BHBAY Bugeiado aoIneg feosidq

1929 13N 18594 Ayan

SpUOY BNUIASY JOMAS DUE JO1BM

. aaLanynNn
SHYIA T¥OSIA NIL LSV
OVHIAOD INNIATY-03DAT

$1-Q 37avL SYX3L ‘LHOdMDO0H 40 ALID



155

¥6
"IGEJRAR JOU S| UOKBLLIOI] PBRIWQ
S2UBWILOY JO JaqWRYD ueyng-podiooy  (g)
UOISSILIWIOD @0I0p0pn SBXE]  (Z)
uodwoon jo Aun (1)
1$304N04 Bleg
%2 9 %L %L %t L %t L %6'9 %8y %2 1 %8P %8G (Zhuswiordwaury
LEE'E Leg'e leg's 8pg'e 916'¢ leg's Le'e y10'e 620'S AN awjjoiug [ooyog
- - - - - - = - " - Buliooyos jo sizap
Ul [9A37 uogeonpy
0'6¥ 0'6p 0’6k 0'9F o9y Ler L2y L2y farad - (€)eby ueipsy
(spuesnoyl ui)
LSY'EEZ  § LSY'EEZ  $ ISK'EEZ  $ ISY'EEE  § 09LVPZ § 091 %R §2T6SC  § L6L'¥SZ  $ v99'Sve  $ 1E6'ZEZ  §  SwIooU] jRUOSIag endes Jag
0S6'v2 $ 086'v2 $ 068'te § 056'v2 $ 056'v2 $ 056'v2 y05'L2 $ P05'2E $ v0S5'22 $ 05’22 ¢ (€)awoou| reuosray
15€'6 158'6 LSE'8 L8£'8 018'6 018'6 SeP'6 ¥92'6 Lv0'6 69t'8 (Ljuoneindog
7102 gLz z102 1102 0102 8002 8002 2002 8002 §002
d3LanynNn
SHYIA HYONIIVD NIL LSV
SOILSILYLS DINONCOI ANY JIHdYHDOWI0
91-3 3igvL

SVX3AL ‘LHOdMO0H 40 ALID



156

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE D-17
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED
2014 2005
Percentage Percentage
of Total Gity of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Aransas County ISD 496 1 - -
Wal-Mart 232 2 - -
Wood Group Production Ser 225 3
H.E.B. 180 4
Aransas Gounty 178 5
City of Rockport 139 6 - -
Slate of Texas 107 7 - -
Rockport Coaslal Care Center 80 8
Gulf Poine Plaza 73 9 - -
Oak Crest Nursing Center 70 10
Total 1,780 - -

Source: Rockport Fulion Chamber of Comimerce

Omitted information is not available.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 9

Deliberate and act on first reading of an Ordinance amending Article 4 of the City of Rockport
Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of land located at 1903 Mathis Street;
also known as parts of Lots 5-13, 1.525 acres, Block 103, Manning Addition, out of the John
Kettle Survey A-91-92, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, from R-2 (2nd Single Family Dwelling
District) to B-1 (General Business District).

SUBMITTED BY: Building and Development Department Director Mike Donoho

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: On November 18, 2014, the City received a request from Mr. Greg Walsh to
rezone property located at1903 Mathis St, from an R-2 (2" Single Family Dwelling District) to
B-1 (General Business District). Purpose of the request is for highest and best use consistent
with the rest of the block and other properties in the area.

A joint public hearing with City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) was
held February 10, 2015. P&Z met February 16, 2015, and reviewed Mr. Walsh’s request for a
rezone and voted to recommend that this request be accepted by the Council.

Please see the accompanying memo from P&Z, ordinance, and the zoning application for
additional information.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval on first reading the ordinance amending
Article 4 of the City of Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of
land located at 1903 Mathis Street; also known as parts of Lots 5-13, 1.525 acres, Block 103,
Manning Addition, out of the John Kettle Survey A-91-92, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas,
from R-2 (2™ Single Family Dwelling District) to B-1 (General Business District), as presented.

Ordinance 1903 Mathis Rezoning - Feb 24, 2015 Council Meeting Page 1 of 1
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 4 OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT ZONING ORDINANCE NUMBER 1027 BY CHANGING
THE ZONING OF LAND LOCATED AT 1903 MATHIS STREET; ALSO
KNOWN AS PARTS OF LOTS 5-13, 1525 ACRES, BLOCK 103,
MANNING ADDITION, OUT OF THE JOHN KETTLE SURVEY A-91-92,
ROCKPORT, ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM R-2 (2"° SINGLE
FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT) TO B-1 (GENERAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT); REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT
THEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, an application for a zoning change to property located at 1903 Mathis Street;
also known as parts of Lots 5-13, 1.525 acres, Block 103, Manning Addition, out
of the John Kettle Survey A-91-92, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, was
received in the office of Building & Development Services Department, City of
Rockport, Texas; and

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2015, notice was posted on the bulletin board at Rockport City
Hall, 622 E. Market Street and on the City’s webpage www.cityofrockport.com;
and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2015, notice was mailed to affected property owners within 200" of
subject property; and

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2015, the City caused to be published “Notice of Joint Public
Hearing” in the official newspaper of the City notifying area residents and the
public in general to participate and make their views known regarding this
request; and

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., the Rockport City Council and the Planning
& Zoning Commission did hold a Joint Public Hearing; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2015, the Planning & Zoning Commission did meet and said
Commission did vote by majority to recommend to the City Council approval of
this request for a rezone.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT, TEXAS:

SECTION 1 - AMENDMENT

That, pursuant to Article 4 of the City of Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027, the
current zoning of land located at 1903 Mathis Street; also known as parts of Lots 5-13, 1.525
acres, Block 103, Manning Addition, out of the John Kettle Survey A-91-92, Rockport, Aransas

Ordinance No. Page 1of 3
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County, Texas; be changed from R-2 (2™ Single Family Dwelling District) to B-1 (General
Business District).

SECTION 2 - REPEALER.

Any previously adopted ordinances, and any subsequent amendments to them, which are in
conflict with this Ordinance, are all hereby repealed.

SECTION 3 - SEVERABILITY

It is the intention of the City Council of the City of Rockport that if any phrase, sentence, section
or paragraph of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not
affect any of the remainder of this Ordinance since the same would have been enacted by the
City Council without the incorporation of the unconstitutional or invalid phrase, sentence,
section or paragraph.

SECTION 4 - EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption by second and final reading.
APPROVED and PASSED on first reading this 24™ day of February 2015.

CITY OF ROCKPORT:

Charles J. Wax, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Ordinance No. Page 2 of 3
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APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this day of March 2015.

CITY OF ROCKPORT:

Charles J. Wax, Mayor
ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Ordinance No. Page 3 of 3
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Memo
To: Mayor C.J. Wax and City Council
From: Planning & Zoning Commission
CC: City Manager Kevin Carruth
Date: 02/19/2015
Re: Rezone request for property located at; 1903 Mathis Street

At our meeting held February 16, 2015, the Planning & Zoning Commission deliberated on the
request for a rezone of property located at; 1903 Mathis Street, from R-2 (2" Single family
dwelling District) to B-1 (General Business District). The motion to grant the rezone request
passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Lynch, Chairman



JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Rockport City Council
and
Planning & Zoning Commission

NOTICE is hereby given that the Rockport City Council and the Planning & Zoning
Commission will hold a Joint Public Hearing on Tuesday, February 10, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., at
Rockport City Hall, 622 E. Market St., Rockport, Texas, to consider a request for rezoning from
R-2 (2“CI Single-Family Dwelling District) to B-1 (General Business District) on property located
at 1903 Mathis St.; also known as parts of Lots 5-13 (1.525 acres) of John Kettle Survey A-91-
92, Block 103, Manning Addition, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas.

The City encourages citizens to participate and make their views known at this Public Hearing.
For further information on this request, please contact the Building Department at (361) 790-
1125. This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.
Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this
meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s office at (361) 729-2213 ext. 225 or FAX (361)
790-5966 or e-mail citysec@cityofrockport.com for further information. Braille is not available.

POSTED this 16th day of January, 2015, by 5:00 p.m., on the bulletin board at Rockport City
Hall, 622 E. Market Street, and on the website www.cityofrockport.com. PUBLISHED in The

Rockport Pilot in the Saturday, January 24, 2015, Edition, in accordance with the Rockport
Zoning Ordinance.

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

Unge2,

Teresa Valdez, City Secretdef

JPH 1903 Mathis
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JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Rockport City Council
and
Planning & Zoning Commission

NOTICE is hereby given that the Rockport City Council and the Planning & Zoning
Commission will hold a Joint Public Hearing on Tuesday, January 13, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., at
Rockport City Hall, 622 E. Market St., Rockport, Texas, to consider a request for rezoning from
R-2 (2™ Single-Family Dwelling District) to B-1 (General Business District) on property located
at 1903 Mathis St.; also known as parts of Lots 5-13 (1.525 acres) of John Kettle Survey A-91-
92, Block 103, Manning Addition, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas.

The City encourages citizens to participate and make their views known at this Public Hearing.
For further information on this request, please contact the Building Department at (361) 790-
1125. This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.
Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this
meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s office at (361) 729-2213 ext. 225 or FAX (361)
790-5966 or e-mail citysec@cityofrockport.com for further information. Braille is not available.

POSTED this 16th day of December, 2014, by 5:00 p.m., on the bulletin board at Rockport City
Hall, 622 E. Market Street, and on the website www.cityofrockport.com. PUBLISHED in The
Rockport Pilot in the Saturday, December 20, 2014, Edition, in accordance with the Rockport
Zoning Ordinance.

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

Un2s,

Teresa Valdez, City Secretdry

JPH 1903 Mathis
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THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT | HAVE CONSULTED THE FEDERAL FLOOD HAZARD MAP DATED
3-4-85_, AND FOUND THAT THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREIN IS ___[OR) IS NOT _X
LOCATED i A "SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA” ZONE _B , BASE ELEVATION _N/A,

PANEL NO, 0781C , COMMUMITY NO. 485452 . THIS INFORMATION IS BASED ON SCALING THE
LOCATION OF THIS SURVEY ON THE ABOVE REFERENCED MAP AND IS INTENDED TO BE USED TO
DETERMINE INSURANGE RATES GNLY, AND NOT TO IDENTIFY SPECIFIG FLOODING CONDITIONS,
BEARINGS BASED DN NAD B3, TEXAS STATE PLANE SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE.

SURVEYOR HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR INDEPENDENT SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS

OF RECORD, ENCUMBRANGES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS OR OWNERSHIP OF TITLE

EVIDENCE, SURVEYOR DID NCT REVIEW EXCEPTIONS IN SCHEDULE "B” OF THE TITLE
WHETHER THEY DO OR DO HOT AFFECT SUBJECT PROPERTY.

COPYRIGHT NOTICE

ANY COPY OF THIS DRAWING MUST BEAR THE SURVEYOR'S ORIGINAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE
1N RED INK OR THE DRAWING IS AN UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION WHICH MAY HAVE BEEN
ALTERED OR ouT EDGE.

THIS ORIGINAL WORK IS PROTECTED UNDER COPYRIGHT LAWS, TITLE 17, UNITED STATES
CODE SECTIONS 101 AND 102. ALL VIOLATORS WILL BE PROSECUTED TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT OF THE LAW.

FRACTIONAL BLOCK 103, LYING EAST OF S.H. LOOP 70, AND
SIXTH STREET LYING BETWEEN BLOCKS 102 & 104,
MANNING ADDITION
ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 1, PAGE 7, PLAT
RECORDS OF ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS

AND A PORTION OF 1.525 ACRE TRACT, BEING PART OF THE 100 FOOT

WIDE STRIP OF LAND, AS DESCRIBED IN A DEED OF RECORD UNDER
CFit287455, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS.

W bsurveyor com

(G Briffith & Brundrett | owre MemBEam

Surveying & Engineering, inc. | SCALE:_____ 17=d40"
Y ckpor Tocas e FILE NAME: __ 131701883

£ 361-729-

&g REVISED

@ :jerrybiigbsurveyorcom DATE:

PREPARED FOR:
GREG WALSH
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CITY OF ROCKPORT
ZONING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

INSTRUCTION: Please fill out completely. if more space is needed, attach
additional pages. Please print or use typewriter.

A. REQUESTING:  Rezoning {><} Conditional Permit [ ]
Planned Unit Development (P.U.D.) by Conditional Permit [ ]

B. ADDRESS AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY

1902 Wl ST (o) ST U T52%2

C.  GURRENT ZONING OF PROPERTY: R=2 £ U\wv\@/\e&
= -

D.  PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY: NN <& — \/&L’.@.\/\'%

E. ZONING DISTRICT REQUESTED: & —

F.

CONDITIONAL USE REQUESTED: A\j / ﬁH‘

G. LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (Fill in the one that applies)

o Lot or Tract Rusile ot S-1\3 Block AR Wleanini e

21,525 e & T Min Kt s Servey X241 -) \D—(’i%
Prdet> V4, 94D og T % £ Ol T2sldf the
Survey as'per metes and bounds (field notes attached)
Survey K lic_af;\

o |f other, attacfi 'copy of survey or legal description from the Records of
Aransas County or Appraisal District.

;&“’i W

H.  NAME OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT (if applicable) Ve b e

. TOTAL ACREAGE OR SQ. FT. OF SITE(S), _ — ,
L. Vever Mt <t LKW

J. REASON FOR REQUEST AND DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT:
(Please be specific)

H% hest & Qo Oge g:gnﬁts_\alﬂ— w'\’\/\.
; A R |\ \
The il o8 Ve Wade § e Difesties

o R ] 2,
o=
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K. OWNER’S NAME: (Please print)
ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE: @@d@M\”\f‘Y Tad 382
PHONE NO T\ <2\

i REPRESENTATIVE: (if Other Than Owner)
ADDRESS:
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE:
PHONE NO

NOTE: Do you have property owner’s permission for this request?

YES NO
M. FILING FEE:
REZONING $150.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT $200.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
P.U.D. REVISION $200.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
CONDITIONAL PERMIT $150.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE

(Make check payable to the City of Rockport)

e . Submit application and filing fee to the Department of Building &
Development, City of Rockport; 2751 S.H. 35 Bypass, Rockport, Texas

78382.
Signed:
(Owner or Representative)
(FOR CITY USE)
Received by: Date: Fees Paid: §
Submitted Information ( accepted) ( rejected) by:

if rejected, reasons why:

Receipt No.
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FF338/22

CORRECTION QUITCLAIM DEED

THE STATE OF TEXAS - § KNOW ALL MEN BY
) g §
COUNTY OF ARANSAS § THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, by Quitclaim Deed dated the 25" day of September 2014, ("the
Original Quitclaim Deed"), which appears of record under File No. 337690 in the records
of the County Clerk in Aransas County, Texas, attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and
incorporated herein for all purposes, City of Rockport, a Texas Home Rule Municipal
Corporation ("Grantor") QUITCLAIMED unto Greg F. Walsh, III ("Grantee") all right,
title, interest, claim and demand in and to that certain tract of land described therein as:

Being a 14,940 square foot portion of Sixth Street bordered
on the east by Mathis Street, Manning Addition, City of
Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, as shown on the attached
Plat of Survey attached hereto. And incorporated herein for
any all purposes.

WHEREAS, the Original Quitclaim Deed was incorrect where it made reference
to "any past, present or future utility easements belonging to the City of Bastrop" instead

of making reference to "any past, present or future utility easement belonging to the City
of Rockport, Texas."

WHEREAS, this Correction Quitclaim Deed is executed to correct and be
effective from the same date as the Original Quitclaim Deed dated the 25 day of
September 2014 from City of Rockport, Texas, unto Greg F. Walsh, TIT and recorded as
File No. 337690 in the records of the County Clerk in Aransas County, Texas.

In all other respects, the prior Quitclaim Deed is confirmed. Grantor quitclaims to
Grantee all of Grantor's right, title, interest, claim and demand in and to the above

described property, save and except of any past, present or future utility easements
belonging to the City of Rockport.

IN NESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused this instrument to be executed on this the
/ ay of October 2014.

THIS IS A PURPORTED COPY OF AON L
DOCUMENT FILED FOR RECORD ON THi

THE_ %/ DAY OF _ rtstres A
AT 2:56 ., P\

PEGGY L. FRIEBELE i




STATE OF TEXAS §

: . §
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Charles "C.J."
Wax, Mayor of City of Rockport, Texas, and being known to me to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed

the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, as the act and deed of said
corporation, and in the capacity therein stated.

_ GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the | day of
Ockelbe ~ 2014

TERESA M. VALDEZ l;

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES i y AT
Decarmber 15, 2014 i ( {;)W.iz’" ({ ﬁwﬁw:ﬁc.,,,}%
C Notary Public, State of Texas &~

My Commission Expires: 12-\S- 2l \*{’

GRANTEE:

GREG F. WALSH, 111
19 Bahama South
Rockport, TX 78382

(Sgnefture T

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Greg F. Walsh,
I, of Rockport, Texas, and being known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed

to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the

purposes and consideration therein expressed, as the act and deed of said corporation, and in
the capacity therein stated.

e GIVE\N UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the l”’l{bday of
%2014 o

TERESA M. VALDEZ

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
Decermber 15, 2014

Notary Public, State of Texas—"

My Commission Expires: \Q-\3-Jo\\
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EXHIBIT"A"
337690
File M
QUITCLAIM DEED R e e
THE STATE OF TEXAS § KNOW ALL MEN BY
. §
COUNTY OF ARANSAS § THESE PRESENTS:

That, the City of Rockport, of the County of Aransas, State of Texas, hereinafter referred
to as Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Four Thousand Eight Hundred
Dollars ($4,800.00)and other good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand paid by
Greg F. Walsh, III, hereinafter referred to as Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, was Quitclaimed and do by these present Bargain, Sell, Release and
forever Quitclaim unto Grantee, all of Grantor’s right, title, interest, claim and demand in
and to a portion of Sixth Street in the City of Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, save and
except for any past, present or future utility easements belonging to the City of Bastrop,
and more particularly described as:

Being a 14,940 square foot portion of Sixth Street bordered
on the east by Mathis Street, Manning Addition, City of
Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, as shown on Exhibit
“A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein for any and
all purposes.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD for said purposes together with all and singular the rights,
privileges, and appurtenances thereto in any manner that does not interfere with the City’s
access to and use of any public easements belonging unto Grantee forever.

SAVE AND EXCEPT FOR any past, present, or future utility easements located above,
on or below said property, belonging to the City of Rockport, Aransas County, Texas.

U
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed on this the g3~ day of
Xe vy 2014.

GRANTOR:
CITY OF ROCKPORT




STATE OF TEXAS 337690

173

§
) o § File No,
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Charles "C.]J."
Wax, Mayor ofCity of Rockport, Texas, and being known to me to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed
the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, as the act and deed of said
corporation, and in the capacity therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the 2.5 = Hay of
o y = S S
Yerarer-\ae

TERESAM.VALDEZ

LY
1Y COMMISSION EXPIRES é?;sf\_ﬁf _ u O s

ber 15, 2014
e Notary Public, State of Texas &

My Commission Expires: | v~ |S - bt

GRANTEE:
GREG F. WALSH, 111

B&wfiiﬁybf) fQ—:Q@ T

(Signature) .
9 %\D\-\B ey Seotia
Rex b=y, TA TI¥3¥Y
STATE OF TEXAS

§

§
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Greg F. Walsh,
IIT, of Rockport, Texas, and being known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the

purposes and consideration therein expressed, as the act and deed of said corporation, and in
the capacity therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this the &S %jay of
3‘:«? Xew e, 2014, , &

TERESA M. VALDEZ
1Y COMMIESION EXPIRES
Decamber 15,2014

_&w&/ud%

Notary Public, State of Texas \_)

My Commission Expires: \Q - \ S - 21\

=

County Cierk. Aransas Courty, Taxzg ..
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Rezone Request

1903 Mathis Street




STATE OF TEXAS

SOUNTY OF ARANSAS
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333217

File No, 3
County Clerk, Aransas County Tovs GE#O0I018-1657 | ) )

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM
ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT
IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER
OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

WARRANTY DEED

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §

THAT, REYES TORRES, JR. and MANDY LYNN TORRES, hereinafter called Grantor
(whether one or more), for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS and other
good and valuable considerations to Grantor in hand paid by GREG F, WALSH, hereinafter called Grantee
(whether one or more), whose mailing address is: / ‘? /35?/74} Viale S(‘(mj/‘\_’
é,f?ﬁ("k Dor7 7_,)( XS , the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has GRANTED,
SOLD/and CONVEYED, and by these presents does GRANT, SELL and CONVEY unto Grantee, the
following described real estate, together with all improvements thereon, situated in Aransas County, Texas,
being more particularly described as follows, to-wit:

TRACT ONE:
Fractional Lots No. FIVE (5) through THIRTEEN (13), both inclusive; Block No.
ONE HUNDRED THREE (103), MANNING ADDITION, Aransas County, Texas,
according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 1, Page 7, Plat Records, Aransas
County, Texas.

TRACT TWO:

BEING 1.525 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, OUT OF THE JOHN
KEETELS SURVEY A-91 AND THE JOHN KEETELS SURVEY A-92, ARANSAS
COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT 100.0 FOOT WIDE
STRIP OF LAND DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM ARANSAS PASS LAND
COMPANY TO THE SAN ANTONIO AND ARANSAS PASS RAILROAD
COMPANY, PREDECESSOR TO UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY,
RECORDED MAY 19, 1890 IN VOLUME “J”, PAGE 230, DEED RECORDS OF
ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS, WITH SAID 1.525 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS IN THE EXHIBIT
“A” ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN AS IF WRITTEN
VERBATIM.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described premises, together with all and singular the rights
and appurtenances thereunto in anywise belonging, unto the said Grantee, Grantee’s heirs, successors and/or
assigns forever. And Grantor does hereby bind Grantor, Grantor’s heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and/or assigns TO WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the said premises
unto the said Grantee herein, Grantee’s heirs, successors and/or assigns, against every person whomsoever
lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof.

This conveyance and the warranties of title given herein are made subject to any and all restrictions,
easements, setback lines, covenants, conditions and reservations, of record affecting the property herein
conveyed.

——— A~ T T Ak T AT YT TVUST T o ANYYTTRN TN TS A ﬂ/ﬁ o m a A 1"\ o 2 ) D fa ; ;?‘\
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(ACKNOWLEDGEMENT) pioe__ 399<17
STATE OF TEXAS §

County Clerk, Aransas County, Texes
COUNTY OF ARANSAS §

, This instrument was ACKNOWLEDGED before me, on this the 3 l day of
OC ¢anloes 20 )3, by REYES TORRES, JR. and MANDY LYNN TORRES.

NOTARY PUBLIC Not
STATE OF TEXAS otary Public, State of Texas

My Comm. Exp. 06/30/2015

(B ASHAGROADNEN tl!l!xllxiutnu-

@ DEBORAH JORDAN | /D Q/[ﬁ)/]d/‘v W&,)

HEIESELIRE
YSOOCOOY

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: Prepared in the Law Offices of:

9 Rahame Dovthe Honr & Hnr

” _ ey . Attorneys at Law, P.C.
f;’ ockpor 7;}} /5( 7 f58>_ 2929 Mossrock, Suite 204

San Antonio, Texas 78230



Fila No. 333217 A

ST AT Wi AR
County Clerk, Arznsas Courty, Texay -
FIELD NOTES

SEPTEMBER 18, 2006

BEING 1.525 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF PORTIONS OF THE JOHN KEETELS
SURVEY A-91 AND JOHN KEETELS SURVEY A-92, ARANSAS COUNTY,
TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT 100.0 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND
DESCRIBED IN THE DEED FROM ARANSAS PASS LAND COMPANY TO THE
SAN ANTONIO AND ARANSAS PASS RAILROAD COMPANY, PREDECESSOR
TO UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY RECORDED IN VOLUME *J”, PAGE
230, DEED RECORDS OF ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS, WITH SAID 1.525 ACRE
TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS
AS FOLLOWS:

BEGIN af a 5/8” steel rebar set in the East R,O.W, line of Texas State Highway Loop 70
and being at the point of intersection of said East R.O.W. line of Loop 70 and the
Westerly projection of the North boundary of Block No. 104, Manning Subdivision,
according to the Map Recorded in Volume 1, Page 7, Plat Records of Aransas County,
Texas, and being the SOUTHWEST corner and PLACE OF BEGINNING of this survey;

THENCE, North 43°32°30" East along and with the East R.O, W, line of Texas State
Highway Loop 70 at 110.94 feet pass the Westerly projection of the North R.O. W, line of
Sixth Street and in all a distance of 664.16 feet to a 5/8” steel rebar set in the South
boundary of Block No, 102, of said Manning Subdivision and being the North boundary
of Fifth Street lying South of and adjacent to said Block No. 102 and being the
NORTHWEST corner of this survey;

THENCE, South 71°30°45" East along and with the North R.O.W. line of Fifth Street a
distance of 110.37 feet to a 5/8” steel rebar found for the NORTHEAST corner of this
survey,

THENCE, South 43°32'30” West along and with the original East R.O.W. line of sald
San Antonic and Aransas Pass Railroad R.O.W. pass a 5/8” steel rebar found at the point
of intersection of the East R.O.W, line of said San Antonio and Aransas Pass Railroad
R.O.W, and the West R.O.W. line of Mathis Street at 553.22 feet pass a 5/8" steel rebar
found in the South boundary line of said Bleck No. 103, Manning Subdivision, and the
North R.O.W. line of Sixth Street and in all a distance of 664.16 feet to a point for the
SOUTHEAST corner of this survey;

THENCE, North 71°30'45" West along and with the Westerly projection of the North
boundary of Block No. 104, Manning Subdivision, at 1,56 feet pass an old concrete

monument found and in all a distance of 110.37 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and
containing 1.525 acres of land more or less,

Unless this Field Note description, including preamble, seal and signature, appears in its
entirety, in its original form, surveyor assumes no responsibility or liability for its
accuracy, s

Aﬁ‘f’f (. Q ‘:—};‘b
SRR TE
m ¥ ;{}(ﬁ g.

e

SO
J. L. Brundrett, Jr,, R, P, L. S.
Reg. Na. 2133

STATE OF TEXAS
060918d5fn

COUNTY OF ARANSAS

179

| hereby certify that this instrument was FILED on the date

and at the time affixed hereon by me and was duly
RECORDED in the OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECOR!
COUNTY, TX. as stamped hereon by me on,

Poggy. . Sealels

DS of ARANSAS

DA 2oy,

PEGGY L. FRIEBELE, COUNTY CLERK

ARANSAS COUNTY, TEXAS

FILED FOR RECORD iN OPR
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ALSULA PROPERTIES, LLC
602 E. MARKET ST.
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78382-2530

GREG WALSH
19 BAHAMA ST. S.
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78382-7686

VILLAGE BY THE BAY LTD
15481 S. PADRE ISLAND DR.
DR STE 101

CORPUS CHRISTI, TX 78418

KENNETH JAMES
16520FALLS RD
ELMENDORF, TX 78112-5106

DARCY & STACY DORN
140 JOSEPH LN.
NEW WHITE LAND, IN 46184-9753

MRS INGENHUETT & ROY PERKINS
PO BOX 244
COMFORT, TX 780130244

ROGER & BETTY BURUBE
401 E5™ ST,
ROCKPORT, TX 78382-2125

GARY MCCLENAGHAN
50 FLAMINGO POINT
ROCKPORT, TX 78382-6751

GREG WALSH
19 BAHAMA SOUTH
ROCKPORT, TX 78382




CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 10

Deliberate and act on first reading of an Ordinance amending Article 4 of the City of Rockport
Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of land located at 1124 Patton Street;
also known as 1130-1150 Patton Street, 0.801 acre, out of the TT Williamson Survey A-221,,
Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, from R-1 (1% Single Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (2™
Single Family Dwelling District).

SUBMITTED BY: Building and Development Department Director Mike Donoho

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: On December 2, 2014, the City received a request from Mr. William H.
Fisher, representing W. Dale Morris, owner of 1124 Patton Street, to rezone property located at
1124 Patton Street, from an R-1 (1 Single Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (2™ Single Family
Dwelling District). Purpose of the request is to construct homes on smaller lots, consistent to the
neighborhood.

A joint public hearing with City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) was
held February 10, 2015. P&Z met February 16, 2015, and reviewed Mr. Fisher’s request for a
rezone and voted to recommend that this request be accepted by the Council.

Please see the accompanying memo from P&Z, ordinance, and the zoning application for
additional information.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval on first reading the ordinance amending
Article 4 of the City of Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027 by changing the zoning of
land located at 1124 Patton Street, also known as 1130-1150 Patton Street, 0.801 acre, out of the
TT Williamson Survey A-221, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, from R-1 (1% Single Family
Dwelling District) to R-2 (2™ Single Family Dwelling District) as presented.

Ordinance 1124 Patton Rezoning - Feb 24, 2015 Council Meeting Page 1 of 1
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 4 OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT ZONING ORDINANCE NUMBER 1027 BY CHANGING
THE ZONING OF LAND LOCATED AT 1124 PATTON STREET; ALSO
KNOWN AS 1130-1150 PATTON STREET, 0.801 ACRE, OUT OF THE
TT WILLIAMSON SURVEY A-221, ROCKPORT, ARANSAS COUNTY,
TEXAS, FROM R-1 (1°T SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT)
TO R-2 (2"° SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT); REPEALING
ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, an application for a zoning change to property located at 1124 Patton Street; also
known as 1130-1150 Patton Street, 0.801 acre, out of the TT Williamson Survey
A-221, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas, was received in the office of
Building & Development Services Department, City of Rockport, Texas; and

WHEREAS, on January 19, 2015, notice was posted on the bulletin board at Rockport City
Hall, 622 E. Market Street and on the City’s webpage www.cityofrockport.com;
and

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2015, notice was mailed to affected property owners within 200" of
subject property; and

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2015, the City caused to be published “Notice of Joint Public
Hearing” in the official newspaper of the City notifying area residents and the
public in general to participate and make their views known regarding this
request; and

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., the Rockport City Council and the Planning
& Zoning Commission did hold a Joint Public Hearing; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2015, the Planning & Zoning Commission did meet and said
Commission did vote by majority to recommend to the City Council approval of
this request for a rezone.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKPORT, TEXAS:

SECTION 1 - AMENDMENT

That, pursuant to Article 4 of the City of Rockport Zoning Ordinance Number 1027, the
current zoning of land located at 1124 Patton Street; also known as 1130-1150 Patton Street,
0.801 acre, out of the TT Williamson Survey A-221, Rockport, Aransas County, Texas; be
changed from R-1 (1 Single Family Dwelling District) to R-2 (2" Single Family Dwelling
District).

Ordinance No. Page 1of 3
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SECTION 2 - REPEALER.

Any previously adopted ordinances, and any subsequent amendments to them, which are in
conflict with this Ordinance, are all hereby repealed.

SECTION 3 - SEVERABILITY

It is the intention of the City Council of the City of Rockport that if any phrase, sentence, section
or paragraph of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not
affect any of the remainder of this Ordinance since the same would have been enacted by the
City Council without the incorporation of the unconstitutional or invalid phrase, sentence,
section or paragraph.

SECTION 4 - EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption by second and final reading.
APPROVED and PASSED on first reading this 24™ day of February 2015.

CITY OF ROCKPORT:

Charles J. Wax, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Ordinance No. Page 2 of 3
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APPROVED, PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this day of March 2015.

CITY OF ROCKPORT:

Charles J. Wax, Mayor
ATTEST:

Teresa Valdez, City Secretary

Ordinance No. Page 3 of 3
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Memo
To: Mayor C.J. Wax and City Council
From: Planning & Zoning Commission
CC: City Manager Kevin Carruth
Date: 02/19/2015
Re: Rezone request for property located at; 1124 Patton Street

At our meeting held February 16, 2015, the Planning & Zoning Commission deliberated on the
request for a rezone of property located at; 1124 Patton Street, from R-1 (1% Single family
Dwelling District) to R-2 (2" Single Family Dwelling District). The motion to grant the rezone
request passed unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Lynch, Chairman
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oIy of ROCKPORYT, TEXag

e OB

| EREIVIE|
DEC ~ 7 20t4

CITY OF ROCKPORT BY'
ZONING AND LAND DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

INSTRUCTION: Please fill out completely. If more space is needed, attach

A.

mom o O

@

additional pages. Please print or use typewriter.
REQUESTING: Rezoning [ ] Conditional Permit [ ]
Planned Unit Development (P.U.D.) by Conditional Permit [ ]

ADDRESS AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY __ //2Y 7a éent

CURRENT ZONING OF PROPERTY: R 7

PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY:

ZONING DISTRICT REQUESTED: K 2Z-

CONDITIONAL USE REQUESTED:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (Fill in the one that applies)

e Lot or Tract .80/ Block

e Tract Grace Let ny Troct of the
Survey as per metes and bounds (field notes attached)

e If other, attach copy of survey or legal description from the Records of
Aransas County or Appraisal District.

NAME OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT (if applicable)

TOTAL ACREAGE OR SQ. FT. OF SITE(S): Q0! eccres

REASON FOR REQUEST AND DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT:
(Please be specific)

Ao Cots€eowe ticn o f- 4 orae PSR
S i [fle Jets . SAoes ey sl dl e Sy tece o
v "
i L S P &3 the ofber A CANET ot g

1 L2y 'gtx /"3 © L\ce:(vk
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K. OWNER’S NAME: (Please print)

ADDRESS:
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE:
PHONE NO
L. REPRESENTATIVE: (if Other Than Owner) . () freos = istier
~ ADDRESS: 80/ S. Church S¢.
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE: Rochpek Texes T787&T
PHONE NO 36t - 727 ~ 9SG

NOTE Do you have property owner’s permission for this request?

YES___~ NO
M. FILING FEE:
REZONING $150.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT $200.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
P.U.D. REVISION $200.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE
CONDITIONAL PERMIT $150.00 + $10.00 PER ACRE

(Make check payable to the City of Rockport)

° Submit application and filing fee to the Department of Building &
Development, City of Rockport; 2751 S.H. 35 Bypass, Rockport, Texas

78382.
Signed: (T bl on & Ficbo o
(Owner of Representative)>
(FOR CITY USE)

Received by: ’YY\C[NA, D.  Date 13-a- |Y Fees Paid: $_|SDO-
Submitted Informatlon( v accepted) ( rejected) byW\‘@

If rejected, reasons why:

Receipt No. DA |11
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Letter of Agent

Nov. 24,2014

i, W. Dale Morris, owner of 1124 Patton St. Rockport Tx. Aransas County, Hereby authorize
© Alan Lee Copeland and or William Fisher to Act on my behalf regarding the Surveying and Re-
platting of 1124 Patton to separate R-3 lots for the purpose of constructing single family homes.

"

W % 11 B P
W. Dale Morris__n~ /o Joo N\ date_ /1 i\z*‘é { f'{”

"E'WW' WMM 3
§ 4FLEp.  JACKIE L BAXLEY
| i NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF TEXAS
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The purpose of the request for rezoning is to allow the construction of moderate priced housing
that matches the type of housing currently existing in this neighborhood. The rezone will allow
the construction of six houses on this piece of property that will be similar to the ones currently
in the neighborhood and in the older section of old Rockport. The rezone will allow the price
per house to-be reduced by-the price of smaller lots. Rockport needs more affordable housing.
and this is a great location for this type of housing. .
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ARANSAS COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT PROPERTY APPRAISAL INFORMATION 2015 Entities Values :
PROPERTY 8817762 R 12/02/2014 OWNER ID MORRIS W DALE CAD  100% IMPROVEMENTS 0
Legal Description 119007 602 E SANTA ROSA ST gig ]883’ LAND MARKET + 104,680
] o - ___
A221 T T Williamson Survey 221, ACRES 0.801 SWNERSHI VICTORIA, TX 77901-8266 WG o MARKET VALUE Z 104,680
0
100.00% ol PRODUCTIVITY LOSS - 0
Ref ID1: 42779 _ APPRAISED VALUE = 104,680
6440-221-037-000 MapID A-3 ACRES: .8010
EFF. ACRES: HS CAP LOSS - 0
SITUS 1130-1150 PATTON ST ROCKPORT, TX 78382 APPR VAL METHOD: Cost ASSESSED VALUE = 104,680
GENERAL EXEMPTIONS
UTILITIES LASTAPPR. KD :
TOPOGRAPHY  Level & Low LASTAPPR.YR 2013
ROADACCESS Paved LAST INSP. DATE  11/27/2012
ZONING NEXT INSP. DATE ;
NEXT REASON SKETCH COMMANDS
REMARKS
BUILDING PERMITS
ISSUE DT PERMITTYPE PERMITAREA ST PERMIT VAL
SALEDT PRICE  GRANTOR DEED INFO
11/25/2014 e MATSON MABELL WD/ /
09/19/2014 ***=* MATSON EDWARD MEFF / /
11/05/1986 =+ LANG GRACE MISS CONV / 151871/ 53552
SUBD: A221 100.00% NBHD: IMPROVEMENT INFORMATION IMPROVEMENT FEATURES

# TYPE DESCRIPTION

MTHD CLASS/SUBCL AREA UNIT PRICEUNITS BUILT EFFYR COND.VALUE DEPR PHYS ECON

LAND INFORMATION  [RRWells: 0 Capacity: 0
DIMENSIONS UNIT PRICE GROSS VALUE ADJ MASSADJ VAL SRC

IRR Acres:

FUNC COMP ADJ ADJVALUE

0

l2/z /14

Oil Wells: 0

MKT VAL AGAPPLY AG CLASS AGTABLE AG UNITPRC AG VALUE

SUBD: A221 100.00% NBHD:
L# DESCRIPTION CLS TABLE SC HS METH
1. RESIDENTIAL SFT-S5550-IGMDEN SQ

Page 1 of 1

34,891.5600 SQ 3.00

Effective Date of Appraisal: January 1

104,680 1.00

1.00 A

Date Printed: 12/02/2014 10:30:15AM

104.680

104,680

NO

by TONIC

0.00 0
0

True Automation, Inc.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 11

Hear and deliberate on presentation of City of Rockport Police Department 2014 Racial Profiling
Report

SUBMITTED BY: Police Chief Tim Jayroe

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: The accompanying report is presented in compliance with Texas Code of
Criminal Procedure Article 2.134 related to Statutory Prohibition of Racial Profiling. Chief
Jayroe will give the presentation and be available to answers any questions.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Not an action item.

Racial Profiling Report — Feb 24, 2015 Council Workshop Meeting Page 1 of 1
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RACIAL PROFILING ANALYSIS

2014

ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT



Executive Summary

Article 2.132 (7) of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure requires the annual reporting to the
local governing body of data collected on the race or ethnicity of individuals stopped and issued
citations or arrested for traffic violations and whether or not those individuals were searched. Since
the law provides no clear instruction to a governing body on how to review such data, the Rockport
Police Department developed this analysis and review to assist the City Council in reviewing the
data.

The analysis of material and data from the Rockport Police Department revealed the following:

® A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF THE ROCKPORT PoOLICE DEPARTMENT’S BIAS BASED
PROFILING POLICY SHOWS THAT THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN
COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 2.132 OF THE TEXAS CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

® A REVIEW OF THE INFORMATION PRESENTED AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
REVEALS THAT THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH
TEXAS LAW ON TRAINING AND EDUCATION REGARDING RACIAL PROFILING.

® A REVIEW OF THE DOCUMENTATION PRODUCED BY THE DEPARTMENT REVEALS THAT
THE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE TEXAS LAW ON THE
RACIAL PROFILING COMPLAINT PROCESS AND PUBLIC EDUCATION ABOUT THE
COMPLAINT PROCESS.

® ANALYSIS OF THE DATA REVEALS THAT THE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE
WITH APPLICABLE TEXAS LAW ON THE COLLECTION OF RACIAL PROFILING DATA.

® THE ANALYSIS OF STATISTICAL INFORMATION FROM ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
REVEALS THAT THERE ARE NO METHODOLOGICALLY CONCLUSIVE INDICATIONS OF
SYSTEMIC RACIAL PROFILING BY THE DEPARTMENT.

® THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE
TEXAS LAW CONCERNING THE PROHIBITION OF RACIAL PROFILING.

® THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE
TEXAS LAW CONCERNING THE REPORTING OF INFORMATION TO TCOLE.
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Introduction

This report details an analysis of the Rockport Police Department’s policies, training, and
statistical information on racial profiling for the calendar year 2014. This report has been prepared
to specifically comply with Article 2.132 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure (CCP)
regarding the compilation and analysis of racial profiling data. Specifically, the analysis will
address Articles 2.131 — 2.135 of the CCP and make a determination of the level of compliance
with those articles by the Rockport Police Department in 2014. The full copies of the applicable
laws and regulations pertaining to this report are contained in Appendix A.

This report is divided into six analytical sections: Rockport Police Department’s bias based
profiling policy; Rockport Police Department’s training and education on racial profiling;
Rockport Police Department’s complaint process and public education on racial profiling; analysis
of statistical data on racial profiling; analysis of Rockport Police Department’s compliance with
applicable laws on racial profiling; and a final section which includes completed data and
information reporting forms required to be sent to TCOLE beginning in 2011.

For the purposes of this report and analysis, the following definition of racial profiling is used:
racial profiling means a law enforcement-initiated action based on an individual's race, ethnicity,
or national origin rather than on the individual's behavior or on information identifying the
individual as having engaged in criminal activity (Texas CCP Article 3.05).

Rockport Police Department Policy on Racial Profiling

A review of Rockport Police Department’s “Bias Based Profiling” policy revealed that the
department has adopted policies in compliance with Article 2.132 of the Texas CCP (see Appendix
B). There are seven specific requirements mandated by Article 2.132 that a law enforcement
agency must address. All seven are clearly covered in Rockport Police Department’s bias based
profiling policy. Rockport Police Department policies provide clear direction that any form of
racial profiling is prohibited and that officers found engaging in inappropriate profiling may be
disciplined in accordance with chapter 2.02 of the Rockport Police Department Policies and
Procedures pertaining to receipt, processing, investigation, and adjudication of complaints. The
policies also provide a very clear statement of the agency’s philosophy regarding equal treatment
of all persons regardless of race, ethnicity, or national origin. Appendix C lists the applicable
statute and corresponding Rockport Police Department regulation.

A COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT’S BIAS BASED PROFILING
PoLicy sHOWS THAT THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH
ARTICLE 2.132 OF THE TEXAS CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

Rockport Police Department Training and Education on Racial Profiling

Texas Occupation Code § 1701.253 and § 1701.402 require that curriculum be established and
training certificates issued on racial profiling for all Texas peace officers. Documentation
provided by Rockport Police Department reveals that racial profiling training and certification is
current for all officers in 2014. The department has also identified officers who will need updated
training in 2014 and has planned for those officers to attend the training. All Rockport Police

197



Department officers are trained and instructed on the racial profiling law in Texas. In addition,
officers also receive mandatory cultural diversity training. All officers have been instructed on the
policies and procedures regarding racial profiling and the accompanying complaint process as
well.

A REVIEW OF THE INFORMATION PRESENTED AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION REVEALS THAT
THE ROCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH TEXAS LAW ON TRAINING
AND EDUCATION REGARDING RACIAL PROFILING.

Rockport Police Department Complaint Process and Public Education on
Racial Profiling

Article 2.132 §(b)3-4 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure requires that law enforcement
agencies implement a complaint process on racial profiling and that the agency provide public
education on the complaint process. Rockport Police Department’s Bias Based Profiling Policy
Section 1.06 covers this requirement. The City of Rockport Police Department has also taken the
following actions to ensure that the information relating to the policy disallowing racial profiling
has been made known to the public:

1. Created a complaint form which are available at any time from any officer or at any time
from the lobby of the police station; and

2. Officers of the department have been instructed on the racial profiling law and are
available to, and have answered requests about, the law and complaint procedure.

A REVIEW OF THE DOCUMENTATION PRODUCED BY THE DEPARTMENT REVEALS THAT THE
DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE TEXAS LAW ON THE RACIAL PROFILING
COMPLAINT PROCESS AND PUBLIC EDUCATION ABOUT THE COMPLAINT PROCESS.

Rockport Police Department Statistical Data on Racial Profiling

Article 2.132(b) 6 requires that law enforcement agencies collect statistical information on traffic
citations and detentions with specific information on the race of the person cited. In addition,
information concerning searches of persons and whether or not the search was based on consent is
also collected. Rockport Police Department submitted statistical information on all vehicle stops
resulting in a citation or arrest in 2014 and accompanying information on the race of the person
stopped. Accompanying this data was the relevant information on searches and arrests.

ANALYSIS OF THE DATA REVEALS THAT THE DEPARTMENT IS FULLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH
APPLICABLE TEXAS LAW ON THE COLLECTION OF RACIAL PROFILING DATA.
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Analysis of the Data

The chart below depicts the percentages of people stopped by race including Whites, Hispanics,
Blacks, Asians, and Others.? White drivers constituted 96 percent of all drivers stopped, whereas
Whites constituted 74.0 percent of the city population and 69.4 percent of the county population.?
The chart shows that White drivers were stopped at a rate that is slightly below the percentage of
Whites in the city population and almost the same as the percentage of Whites in the county
population. Hispanic drivers constituted 25 percent of all drivers stopped, whereas Hispanics
constituted 20.8 percent of the city population and 25.5 percent of the county population.
Hispanics were stopped at rates higher than the percentage of Hispanics found in the city and
almost the same as Hispanics found in the county populations. Black drivers constituted 3 percent
of all drivers stopped, whereas Blacks constituted 1.5 percent of the city population and 1.7 percent
of the county population. Asian drivers constituted 1 percent of those stopped while they account

for 2.4 percent and 2.1 percent, respectively, of the population in Rockport and Aransas County.

Race of Persons Stopped & Race of Residents
120.0%
100.0% -+—96.0%
B Percentage of Stopped
H City of Rockport
80.0% Aransas County
60.0%
40.0%
25.5%
20.0%
3.0%  1.7% 2.4% 3.7%, ..
1.5% 1.0% 2.1% o.o'y.-3-1ﬁ
0.0% T )
White, Non- Hispanic Black Asian Other
Hispanic
Sources: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census; Rockport Police Department

The following graph shows the race of persons stopped data in an alternate way.

1 The total number of violations is comprised of 12,294 citations and 40 arrests for a total of 12,334 violations resulting

in a citation or arrest. See the TCOLE forms at the end of this report.

2 City and County population figures are derived from the 2010 Census from the U.S. Census Bureau.
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The different rates within racial groups between U.S. Census figures and those stopped by police
are not significant and can be accounted for by two factors. First, it is important to note that the
racial and ethnic composition in the counties surrounding Rockport and Aransas County is
significantly different. Specifically, the Hispanic populations of the surrounding counties are:

Calhoun County — 44 %
Nueces County — 59%
Refugio County — 46%
San Patricio County — 52%

Second, the economy of Rockport is based on tourism and on any given day there are as many
visitors as there are permanent residents and during certain times of the year more than twice the
number of visitors. This is reflected by the 48 percent of stops that were of non-residents. Between
these two factors, variation within groups is expected.

As the chart shows, easy determinations regarding whether or not Rockport police officers have
“racially profiled" a given motorist are impossible given the nature of the data that has been
collected and presented for this report. The law dictates that police agencies compile aggregate-
level data regarding the rates at which agencies collectively stop motorists in terms of their
race/ethnicity. These aggregated data are to be subsequently analyzed in order to determine
whether or not individual officers are “racially profiling” motorists. This methodological error,
commonly referred to as the "ecological fallacy,” defines the dangers involved in making
assertions about individual officer decisions based on the examination of aggregate incident level
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data. In short, one cannot "prove" that an individual officer has “racially profiled” any individual
motorist based on the rate at which a department stops any given group of motorists.

Additional interpretation problems remain in regards to the specific measurement of “racial
profiling” as defined by Texas state code. For example, officers are currently forced to make
subjective determinations regarding an individual's race based on his or her personal observations
because the Texas Department of Public Safety does not provide an objectively-based
determination of an individual's race/ethnicity on the Texas driver's license. The absence of any
verifiable race/ethnicity data on the driver's license is especially troubling given the racial diversity
within the city of Rockport. The validity of any racial/ethnic disparities discovered in the
aggregate level data becomes threatened in direct proportion to the number of subjective "guesses”
officers are forced to make when trying to determine an individual's racial/ethnic background.

In addition, the data collected for the current report does not allow for an analysis that separates
(or disaggregates) the discretionary decisions of officers to stop a motorist from those that are
largely non-discretionary. For example, non-discretionary stops of motorists based on the
discovery of outstanding warrants should not be analyzed in terms of whether or not "profiling"”
has occurred simply because the officer who has stopped a motorist as a result of the discovery of
an outstanding warrant does not independently make the decision to stop, but rather, is required to
stop that individual regardless of any determination of race. An officer cannot be determined to
be “racially profiling” when organizational rules and state codes compel them to stop regardless
of an individual's race/ethnicity. Straightforward aggregate comparisons of stop rates ignore these
realities, and fail to distinguish between discretionary and non-discretionary law enforcement
actions. In the future, this validity issue could be lessened by the collection of data indicating the
initial reason for the traffic stop, whether it be an observed traffic violation, other criminal activity,
the existence of an outstanding warrant, or some other reason.

Finally, there has been considerable debate as to what the most appropriate population “base-rate”
is in determining whether or not racial/ethnic disparities exist. As the current analysis shows in
regards to the use of city and county population base-rates, the outcome of analyses designed to
determine whether or not disparities exist is obviously dependent on which base-rate is used. In
addition, recent population changes in the city of Rockport exacerbates problems associated with
determining appropriate base-rates because measures derived from the U.S. Census can become
quickly outdated. Although this report utilized the more recent 2010 Census, this population
measure will become quickly outdated as well.

Related to the above, the determination of valid stop base-rates becomes multiplied if analyses fail
to distinguish between residents and non-residents who are stopped, because the existence of
significant proportions of non-resident stops will lead to invalid conclusions if racial/ethnic
comparisons are made exclusively to resident population figures.

In short, the methodological problems outlined above point to the limited utility of using aggregate
level comparisons of the rates at which different racial/ethnic groups are stopped in order to
determine whether or not racial profiling exists within a given jurisdiction.

The table below reports the summaries for the total number of persons stopped and searched
subsequent to being stopped by the Rockport Police Department for traffic offenses in 2014
(12,334). In addition, the table shows the number of individuals who granted consent to search
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and those drivers who were arrested at the conclusion of the stop. The table shows that 97 percent
of all drivers searched were White (124/128 total searches), and 3 percent (4/128) were Black. It
is clear from the table that the vast majorities of the total number of drivers stopped (including
White, Black, and Hispanic groups) were not searched, as 98.97 percent of all drivers who were
stopped were not searched (12,206/12,334).

White

Action (Non-Hispanic)  Hispanic Black Asian Other Total
Total Stops* 8,673 3,134 317 176 34 12,334
Total Searches 124 0 4 0 0 128
Consent Searches 100 0 4 0 0 104
Incident to Arrest 3 0 0 0 0 3
Probable Cause 21 0 0 0 0 21
Warnings 7,264 2,380 233 154 28 10,059
Arrests 37 0 0 0 0 37

*Includes 2,275 Citations & 10,059 Warnings

The bar chart below presents the percentage of drivers that provided consent to search within each
racial category. The chart indicates that drivers who were stopped were rarely consent searched
across the racial categories. For example, 96 percent of all White drivers who were stopped were
also searched by consent (100 total consent searches), 0 percent of all Hispanic drivers who were
stopped were searched by consent (0 total consent searches), and 4 percent of all Black drivers
who were stopped were searched by consent (4 total consent searches).
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Percentage of Drivers Stopped Granting Consent to be Searched
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Analysis of Racial Profiling Compliance by Rockport Police Department

The foregoing analysis shows that the Rockport Police Department is fully in compliance with all
relevant Texas laws concerning racial profiling, including the existence of a formal policy
prohibiting racial profiling by its officers, officer training and educational programs, a formalized
complaint process, and the collection of data in compliance with the law. Finally, internal records
indicate that the department received no complaints in reference to racial profiling for the year
2014.

In addition to providing summary reports and analysis of the data collected by the Rockport Police
Department in 2014, this report also included an extensive presentation of some of the limitations
involved in the level of data collection currently required by law and the methodological problems
associated with analyzing such data for the Rockport Police Department as well as police agencies
across Texas. The Rockport Police Department should continue its educational and training efforts
within the department on racial profiling. Finally, the department should conduct periodic
evaluations to assess patterns of officer decision-making on traffic stops. The final section of this
report includes newly required TCOLE reporting information by Texas law enforcement
organizations.
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Appendix B

Racial Profiling Statutes and Laws

Art. 3.05. RACIAL PROFILING.

In this code, "racial profiling” means a law enforcement-initiated action based on an individual's
race, ethnicity, or national origin rather than on the individual's behavior or on information
identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal activity.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 2, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Art. 2.131. RACIAL PROFILING PROHIBITED.

A peace officer may not engage in racial profiling.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Art. 2.132. LAW ENFORCEMENT POLICY ON RACIAL PROFILING.

(@) In this article:

(1) "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of the state, or of a county, municipality, or other
political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make motor vehicle stops in the

routine performance of the officers' official duties.

(2) "Motor vehicle stop” means an occasion in which a peace officer stops a motor vehicle for an
alleged violation of a law or ordinance.

(3) "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,
Asian, Native American, or Middle Eastern descent.

(b) Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a detailed written policy on racial
profiling. The policy must:

(1) clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;

(2) strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial profiling;

(3) implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the agency if the
individual believes that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling
with respect to the individual;

(4) provide public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

(5) require appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the

agency who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the
agency's policy adopted under this article;
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(6) require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a citation is issued
and to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:
(A) the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;
(B) whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented
to the search; and
(C) whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before
detaining that individual; and

(7) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected,
employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision
(6) to:

(A) the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education; and

(B) the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency

is an agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

(c) The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not constitute
prima facie evidence of racial profiling.

(d) On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law enforcement agency shall examine the
feasibility of installing video camera and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law
enforcement motor vehicle regularly used to make motor vehicle stops and transmitter-activated
equipment in each agency law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor vehicle
stops. If a law enforcement agency installs video or audio equipment as provided by this
subsection, the policy adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for
reviewing video and audio documentation.

(e) A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include identifying information about a
peace officer who makes a motor vehicle stop or about an individual who is stopped or arrested by
a peace officer. This subsection does not affect the collection of information as required by a
policy under Subsection (b)(6).

(f) On the commencement of an investigation by a law enforcement agency of a complaint
described by Subsection (b)(3) in which a video or audio recording of the occurrence on which the
complaint is based was made, the agency shall promptly provide a copy of the recording to the
peace officer who is the subject of the complaint on written request by the officer.

(9) On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report required
under Subsection (b)(7), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the chief
administrator.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.
Amended by: Acts 2009, 81st Leg., R.S., Ch. 1172, Sec. 25, eff. September 1, 2009.

Art. 2.133. REPORTS REQUIRED FOR MOTOR VEHICLE STOPS.

(@) In this article, "race or ethnicity” has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a).
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(b) A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or ordinance shall
report to the law enforcement agency that employs the officer information relating to the stop,
including:

(1) aphysical description of any person operating the motor vehicle who is detained as a result of
the stop, including:
(A) the person's gender; and
(B) the person's race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or, if the person does not state
the person's race or ethnicity, as determined by the officer to the best of the officer's ability;

(2) the initial reason for the stop;

(3) whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether the person
detained consented to the search;

(4) whether any contraband or other evidence was discovered in the course of the search and a
description of the contraband or evidence;

(5) the reason for the search, including whether:
(A) any contraband or other evidence was in plain view;
(B) any probable cause or reasonable suspicion existed to perform the search; or
(C) the search was performed as a result of the towing of the motor vehicle or the arrest of
any person in the motor vehicle;

(6) whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a statement
of whether the arrest was based on a violation of the Penal Code, a violation of a traffic law or
ordinance, or an outstanding warrant and a statement of the offense charged;

(7) the street address or approximate location of the stop; and

(8) whether the officer issued a written warning or a citation as a result of the stop.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.
Amended by: Acts 2009, 81st Leg., R.S., Ch. 1172, Sec. 26, eff. September 1, 2009.

Art. 2.134. COMPILATION AND ANALYSIS OF INFORMATION COLLECTED.

(@) Inthis article:

(1) "Motor vehicle stop” has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a).

(2) "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a).

(b) A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the information contained in each report
received by the agency under Article 2.133. Not later than March 1 of each year, each law
enforcement agency shall submit a report containing the incident-based data compiled during the
previous calendar year to the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education

and, if the law enforcement agency is a local law enforcement agency, to the governing body of
each county or municipality served by the agency.

207


http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/81R/billtext/html/HB03389F.HTM

(c) A report required under Subsection (b) must be submitted by the chief administrator of the law
enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or appointed,
and must include:

(1) a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to:

(A) evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable
jurisdiction, of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who
are not recognized as racial or ethnic minorities; and

(B) examine the disposition of motor vehicle stops made by officers employed by the
agency, categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, as
appropriate, including any searches resulting from stops within the applicable jurisdiction;
and

(2) information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer
employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling.

(d) A report required under Subsection (b) may not include identifying information about a peace
officer who makes a motor vehicle stop or about an individual who is stopped or arrested by a
peace officer. This subsection does not affect the reporting of information required under Article
2.133(b)(2).

(e) The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education, in accordance with
Section 1701.162, Occupations Code, shall develop guidelines for compiling and reporting
information as required by this article.

(F) The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements of this article shall not constitute
prima facie evidence of racial profiling.

(9) On a finding by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that
the chief administrator of a law enforcement agency intentionally failed to submit a report required
under Subsection (b), the commission shall begin disciplinary procedures against the chief
administrator.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.
Amended by: Acts 2009, 81st Leg., R.S., Ch. 1172, Sec. 27, eff. September 1, 2009.

Art. 2.135. PARTIAL EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO AND AUDIO
EQUIPMENT.

(@) A peace officer is exempt from the reporting requirement under Article 2.133 and the chief
administrator of a law enforcement agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected,
employed, or appointed, is exempt from the compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements
under Article 2.134 if:

(1) during the calendar year preceding the date that a report under Article 2.134 is required to be
submitted:
(A) each law enforcement motor vehicle regularly used by an officer employed by the
agency to make motor vehicle stops is equipped with video camera and transmitter-
activated equipment and each law enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make motor
vehicle stops is equipped with transmitter-activated equipment; and
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(B) each motor vehicle stop made by an officer employed by the agency that is capable of
being recorded by video and audio or audio equipment, as appropriate, is recorded by using
the equipment; or

(2) the governing body of the county or municipality served by the law enforcement agency, in
conjunction with the law enforcement agency, certifies to the Department of Public Safety, not
later than the date specified by rule by the department, that the law enforcement agency needs
funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as
described by Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state funds or video
and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency to accomplish
that purpose.

(b) Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law enforcement agency that is exempt
from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain the video and audio or audio documentation
of each motor vehicle stop for at least 90 days after the date of the stop. If a complaint is filed
with the law enforcement agency alleging that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged
in racial profiling with respect to a motor vehicle stop, the agency shall retain the video and audio
or audio record of the stop until final disposition of the complaint.

(c) This article does not affect the collection or reporting requirements under Article 2.132.
(d) In this article, "motor vehicle stop" has the meaning assigned by Article 2.132(a).

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.
Amended by: Acts 2009, 81st Leg., R.S., Ch. 1172, Sec. 28, eff. September 1, 2009.

Art. 2.136. LIABILITY.

A peace officer is not liable for damages arising from an act relating to the collection or reporting
of information as required by Article 2.133 or under a policy adopted under Article 2.132.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Art. 2.137. PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT.

(@) The Department of Public Safety shall adopt rules for providing funds or video and audio
equipment to law enforcement agencies for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment
as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), including specifying criteria to prioritize funding or
equipment provided to law enforcement agencies. The criteria may include consideration of tax
effort, financial hardship, available revenue, and budget surpluses. The criteria must give priority
to:

(1) law enforcement agencies that employ peace officers whose primary duty is traffic
enforcement;

(2) smaller jurisdictions; and

(3) municipal and county law enforcement agencies.
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(b) The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an institution of higher education to
identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose
of installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A). The collaboration
may include the use of a survey to assist in developing criteria to prioritize funding or equipment
provided to law enforcement agencies.

(c) To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of installing video
and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body of a county or
municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county or municipality,
shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency needs funds or
video and audio equipment for that purpose.

(d) On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the state for the purpose of installing
video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body of a county
or municipality, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency serving the county or
municipality, shall certify to the Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency has
installed video and audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the
equipment as required by Article 2.135(a)(1).

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Art. 2.138. RULES.

The Department of Public Safety may adopt rules to implement Articles 2.131-2.137.

Added by Acts 2001, 77th Leg., ch. 947, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 2001.

Art. 2.1385. CIVIL PENALTY.

(@) If the chief administrator of a local law enforcement agency intentionally fails to submit the
incident-based data as required by Article 2.134, the agency is liable to the state for a civil penalty
in the amount of $1,000 for each violation. The attorney general may sue to collect a civil penalty
under this subsection.

(b) From money appropriated to the agency for the administration of the agency, the executive
director of a state law enforcement agency that intentionally fails to submit the incident-based data

as required by Acrticle 2.134 shall remit to the comptroller the amount of $1,000 for each violation.

(c) Money collected under this article shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the
general revenue fund.

Added by Acts 2009, 81st Leg., R.S., Ch. 1172, Sec. 29, eff. September 1, 20009.
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Appendix C

Rockport Police Department
Racial Profiling Policy

COMMENT: It has been the long standing practice of officers of the Rockport Police Department
to treat all individuals with respect and courtesy. The Rockport Police Department
Code of Conduct was established in September, 1989 to “promote efficiency,
discipline, and good public relations” (Code of Conduct 1.2) and “to maintain the
confidence, respect, and support of the public” (Code of Conduct 2.1). Chapter VI
of the Code of Conduct describes the responsibilities of all personnel in dealings
with the public.

Effective September 1, 2001 Article 2.131 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure
established a prohibition against racial profiling as follows:
“A peace officer may not engage in racial profiling”.
Racial Profiling is defined in Article 3.05 as
“A law enforcement initiated action based on an individual’s race, ethnicity,
or national origin rather than on the individual’s behavior or on information
identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal behavior”.

1.00 RACIAL PROFILING
For the purpose of this policy all prohibitions, definitions and stipulations of Code
of Criminal Procedure Article 2.131, 2.132, 2.133, 2.134, 2.135, 2.136, and 3.05
are applicable.

1.01 PURPOSE
The purpose of the policy is to reaffirm the Rockport Police Department’s
commitment to unbiased policing in all its encounters between officers and any
person; to reinforce procedures that serve to ensure public confidence and mutual
trust through the provision of services in a fair and equitable fashion; and to protect
our officers from unwarranted accusations of misconduct when they act within the
dictates of departmental policy and the law.

1.02 POLICY

It is the policy of this department to police in a proactive manner and, to
aggressively investigate suspected violations of law. Officers shall actively enforce
city ordinances and state and federal laws in a responsible and professional manner,
without regard to race, ethnicity or national origin. Officers are strictly prohibited
from engaging in racial profiling as defined in this policy. This policy shall be
applicable to all persons, whether drivers, passengers or pedestrians.

Two of the fundamental rights guaranteed by both the United States and Texas
constitutions are equal protection under the law and freedom from unreasonable
searches and seizures by government agents. The right of all persons to be treated
equally and to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures must be respected.
To assure protection of these rights officers shall conduct themselves in a dignified
and respectful manner at all times when dealing with the public. Racial profiling
is an unacceptable patrol tactic and will not be condoned.
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This policy shall not preclude officers from offering assistance, such as upon
observing a substance leaking from a vehicle, or someone who appears to be ill,
lost or confused. Nor does this policy prohibit stopping someone suspected of a
crime based upon observed actions and/or information received about the person.

1.03 DEFINITIONS
Racial Profiling — A law enforcement-initiated action based on an individual’s
race, ethnicity, or national origin rather than on the individual’s behavior or on
information identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal activity.

Race or Ethnicity — Of a particular decent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic,
Asian, or Native American.

Pedestrian Stop — An interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is
being detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual
is not under arrest.

Traffic Stop — Stopping of a motor vehicle for a violation of a law or ordinance
regulating traffic.

1.04 EXAMPLES OF PROFILING

a. Citing a driver who is speeding in a stream of traffic where most other drivers
are speeding because of the cited driver’s race, ethnicity or national origin;

b. Detaining the driver of a vehicle based on the determination that a person of
that race, ethnicity or national origin is unlikely to own or possess that specific
make or model of vehicle; or

c. Detaining an individual based upon the determination that a person of that race,
ethnicity or national origin does not belong in specific part of town or a specific
place.

d. Racial profiling pertains to persons who are viewed as suspects or potential
suspects of criminal behavior. The term is not relevant as it pertains to
witnesses, complainants or other citizen contacts.

e. The prohibition against racial profiling does not preclude the use of race,
ethnicity or national origin as factors in a detention decision. Race, ethnicity or
national origin may be legitimate factors in a detention decision when used as
part of an actual description of a specific suspect for whom an officer is
searching. However, detaining an individual and conducting an inquiry into
that person’s activities simply because of that individual’s race, ethnicity or
national origin is racial profiling.

1.05 TRAINING

Officers are responsible to adhere to all Texas Commission on Law Enforcement
Officer Standards and Education (TCOLE) training requirements as mandated by
law.

All officers shall complete TCOLE training and education program on racial
profiling not later than the second anniversary of the date the officer is licensed
under Chapter 1701 of the Texas Occupations Code or the date the officer applies
for an intermediate proficiency certificate, whichever date is earlier. A person who
on September 1, 2001, held a TCOLE intermediate proficiency certificate, or who
had held a peace officer license issued by TCOLE for at least two years, shall



complete a TCOLE training and education program on racial profiling not later than
September 1, 2003.

The chief of police, as part of the initial training and continued education for such
appointment, will be required to attend the Law Enforcement Management Institute
of Texas or other TCOLE approved program on racial profiling.

An individual appointed as a police chief before the effective date of this Act shall
complete the program on racial profiling established under Subsection (j), Section
96.641, Education Code, as added by this Act, not later the September 1, 2003.

1.06 COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION

1.07

1.08

a.

The department shall accept complaints from any person who believes he or she
has been stopped or searched based on racial, ethnic or national origin profiling.
No person shall be discouraged, intimidated or coerced from filing a complaint,
nor discriminated against because he or she filed such a complaint.

Any employee who receives an allegation of racial profiling, including the
officer who initiated the stop, shall record the person’s name, address and
telephone number, and forward the complaint through his/her immediate
supervisor to his division commander or direct the individual(s) to an on duty
supervisor. Any employee contacted shall provide to that person a form
explaining the department process for filing a complaint. All employees will
report any allegation of racial profiling to their superior before the end of their
shift.

Investigation of a complaint shall be conducted in a thorough and timely
manner. All complaints will be acknowledged in writing to the initiator who
will receive disposition regarding said complaint within a reasonable period of
time. The investigation shall be reduced to writing and any reviewer’s
comments or conclusions shall be filed with the chief of police.

If a racial profiling complaint is sustained against an officer, it will result in
appropriate corrective and/or disciplinary action, up to and including
termination.

Any departmental video or audio recording of the events upon which a
complaint of racial profiling is based, shall, upon commencement of an
investigation by this department into the complaint and written request of the
officer made the subject of the complaint, be copied and a copy promptly
provided to that officer.

PUBLIC EDUCATION

This department will inform the public of its policy against racial profiling and the
complaint process. Methods that may be utilized to inform the public may include the
news media, service or civic presentations, the Internet, as well as governing board
meetings. Additionally, information will be made available as appropriate in languages
other than English.

CITATION DATA COLLECTION & REPORTING
Officers will collect information relating to traffic stops in which a citation is issued. On
the citation officers must include:

a

b.
C.
d.

the violators race or ethnicity;

whether a search was conducted,;

was the search consensual; and

arrest for this cited violation or any other violation
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By February 1 of each year, a report will be prepared and presented to the Chief of Police
that includes the information gathered by the citations. The report will include:
a. a breakdown of citations by race or ethnicity;
b. number of citations that resulted in a search;
c. number of searches that were consensual; and
d. number of citations that resulted in custodial arrest for this cited violation or
any other violation.

1.09 USE OF VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT

A. Each motor vehicle regularly used by this department to make traffic and
pedestrian stops is equipped with a video camera and transmitter-activated
equipment.

B. Each traffic and pedestrian stop made by an officer of this department that is
capable of being recorded by video and audio, or audio, as appropriate, shall
be recorded.

C. This department shall retain the video and audiotapes, or the audiotape of each
traffic and pedestrian stop for at least ninety (90) days after the date of the
stop. If a complaint is filed with this department alleging that an officer has
engaged in racial profiling with respect to a traffic or pedestrian stop, this
department shall retain the video and audiotapes, or the audiotape of the stop
until final disposition of the complaint.

D. Supervisors will ensure that officers of this department are recording their
traffic and pedestrian stops. A recording of each officer will be reviewed at
least once every ninety (90) days.

E. If the equipment used to record audio and/or video of traffic or pedestrian
stops is malfunctioning or otherwise not operable, the officer making the stop
will properly record and report the information as follows:

1. A physical description of each person detained as result of the stop, including:
a) The person’s gender;
b) The person’s race or ethnicity, as stated by the person or as
determined by the officer to the best of his/her ability.
2. The street address or approximate location of the stop. The suspected offense or
the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated.
3. Whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether
the person detained consented to the search.
4. Whether probable cause to search existed and, if so, the fact(s) supporting the
existence of that probable cause.
5. Whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search and, of so
they type of contraband discovered.
6. Whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop and/or search, and, if
S0, a statement of the offense charged.
7. Whether the officer issued a warning or a citation as a result of the stop and, if
S0, a statement of the offense charged.



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 215
Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 24, 2015

AGENDA ITEM: 12

Reports from Council and Staff

At this time, the City Council will report/update on all committee assignments which may include the following:
County Storm Water Committee; Community Park, Park & Leisure Advisory Board, Chamber of Commerce,
Coastal Bend Council of Governments, Coast Bend Bays & Estuaries, Texas Maritime Museum, Fulton Mansion,
Rockport Center for the Arts, Aransas County, Aransas County Independent School District, Aransas County
Navigation District, Town of Fulton, and Texas Municipal League. Staff reports include the following: Building &
Development — bi-weekly code enforcement, pending development report; Accounting & Finance — update on liens
collection, financial and investment information, monthly financial reports; Police Department — grant update,
quarterly police reports, Fulton law enforcement; Public Works — Building Maintenance, Construction Updates;
Park & Leisure Services — grant updates, park projects; Municipal Court; Administration — interlocal agreements,
public information, website, compressed natural gas fueling station, and hotel occupancy report. No formal action
can be taken on these items at this time.

SUBMITTED BY: Council and Staff.

APPROVED FOR AGENDA: PKC

BACKGROUND: See the accompanying reports for detailed information.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: N/A.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff Rpts — Feb 24, 2015 Council Mtg. Page 1 of 1



DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT
CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT AS OF 2/18/15

216

ESTIMATED
ALLEGED DATE OF leti DATE OF
PROPERTY (ALLEGED | DATEOF ACTION TAKEN/FOLLOW UP ACTION completion | DATEOF
1913 Cochran Ln. JUNK & TRASH 5/28/14 1/29/15 Charges filed against property owners for code and zoning
1.B. violations by Code Enforcement Staff. Waiting on court date.
1800 N. Live Oak HIGH 9/8/14 1/21/15 RE-inspected property. Mowing is complete. Junk & trash 3/15/15
St. GRASS AW. is 80% complete. Granted request for 2 week extension to
AND/OR complete cleanup and to secure structures. 2/18/15 cleanup is
WEEDS, complete. Structures still need to be secured. Will notify owner.
JUNK &
TRASH,
UNSECURED
STRUCTURES
2105 Crescent St. HIGH GRASS 11/17/14 1/6/15 re-inspected, hire contractor to mow. 1/26/15 hired 2/3/15
AND/OR AW. contractor to mow. 2/2/15 re-inspected. Mowed by contractor.
WEEDS Complete.
2104 Picton Ln. ILLEGAL USE 11/21/14 | 2/16/15 owner spoke with staff in office. Stated he will clean up 3/5/15
OF PROPERTY AW. and build privacy fence on north side of back yard. 2-17-15 sent
1/29/15 | |etter to confirm timeline for abatement of issues in yard and
building new fence on north side of backyard as complaints
continue.
2501 San Antonio ZONING 12/15/14 | 1/7/15 2nd citizen complaint received. Placed stop work order at 2/28/15 | 2/16/15
St. VIOLATION; AW. location. 1/9/15 observed no new work has been done. 1/15/15
WORKING W/O owner came into office and spoke with building inspector. They are
PERMIT applying for a conditional use permit for medical hardship within
the next two weeks. This case is scheduled to be heard by the
Planning & Zoning Commission on February 16, 2015.
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DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT
CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT AS OF 2/18/15

1021 Raven Dr. ILLEGAL USE 1/6/15 Property owner has spoken with Code Enforcement and Building 3/3/15
OF PROPERTY .B. Inspector and has given permission for property owner to move RV
within 30 days and comply with Zoning Violation.

1035 S. Church St. HIGH GRASS 1/14/15 | Certified letter receipt received signed by property owner on 2/12/15
AND/OR I.B. 1/26/15.
WEEDS Extension granted due to rain.
TRASH

712 E. Orleans St. HIGH GRASS 1/29/15 | Certified letter receipt received signed by property owner on 2/23/15
AND/OR I.B. 2/12/15.
WEEDS

NEW

1204 E. Orleans St | JUNK & TRASH 2/2/15 2/2/15 send letter. Sent letter 2-10-15 giving property owner 10 2/20/15
AW. days from receipt of letter to remove tree debris..

1713 W. Terrace Blvd. | |LLEGAL USE 2/4/15 Citizen complaint at this location being used as a boat repair shop. 2/27/15
OF PROPERTY I.B. Staff investigated and found a violation of illegal use of property.
2/17/15 Letter mailed to property owner to advise they will have 10
days to correct violation.
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BUILDING ABATEMENT REPORT
2/17/15
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ESTIMATED
PROPERTY ADDRESS ALLEGED DATE OF ACTION TAKEN/FOLLOW UP ACTION DATE OF DATE OF
VIOLATION INSPECTION COMPLETION | COMPLETION
402 E HACKBERRY | WORK W/O 1/20/14 Court date 2/3/15, court gave 10 days to comply or 2500.00 fine will 2/13/15 2.12.15
PERMIT be enforced. Permit issued 2.12.15, B131658. Complete
1107 S FUQUA ST SUBSTANDARD 1/23/14 Letter sent 1.20.15, Letter returned 2.17.15 unsigned. City will 2/28/15
BLDG hire contractor.
814 N ANN ST SUBSTANDARD 1/23/14 Owner’s agent requested permit B130791 be extended 60 days. 5/20/15
BLDG Extension granted 2/2/15.
2324 LADY CLAIRE | SUBSTANDARD 5/28/14 Property transferred to the State of Texas. State reviewing bids to 3/30/15
STRUCTURE demo.
1909 COCHRAN DILAPIDATED 712114 Charges filed with the Building and Standards Commission. 2/28/15
STRUCTURE
1721 BAYSHORE SUBSTANDARD 9/3/14 Will schedule with Building and Standard Commission. 2/28/15
BUILDING
1913 COCHRAN ZONING 10/10/14 | Waiting on court date. 2/28/15
VIOLATION
111 PALM WORK W/O 10/20/14 | Court date 2/3/15, court gave 10 days to comply or 200 a day fine 2/28/15 2/3/15
PERMIT will be enforced. Permit issued 2.3.15, #B131629, complete
123 PALM WORK W/O 10/20/14 | Waiting on court decision. Permit issued 2.3.15 #B131521, 2/28/15 2/3/15
PERMIT complete.




CITY OF ROCKPORT
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT
2751 S.H. 35 BYPASS - ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78382

(361) 790-1125 — FAX (361) 729-6476

PENDING DEVELOPMENT REPORT: ENDING DATE OF 2/17/15

ADDRESS TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT NAME OF DEVELOPMENT DATE OF PROJECT TYPE OF
FILING VALUATION APPLICATION

317 SFULTON BEACH | HISTORICAL FULTON MANSION 6/1/13 $1,491,420 BUILDING
2796 HWY 35 S RESTAURANT NAME UNKNOWN 2/13/14 $706,000 BUILDING
1302 HWY 35N RESTAURANT - REMODEL MCDONALDS 4/28/14 $350,000 BUILDING
STADIUM DR CNG FACILITY ROCKPORT CNG STATION 6/10/14 $1.877,000 BUILDING
1602 HWY 35N OFFICE REAL ESTATE 6/20/14 $64,000 BUILDING
2347 HWY 35N LIQUOR STORE W B LIQUOR 8/11/14 $47,000 BUILDING
2517 SH 35 BYPASS | STORAGE BUILDING COOL STORAGE 11/24/14 $300,000 BUILDING
2355 HWY35 N CAFE TROPICAL SMOOTHIE CAFE 12/1/14 $120,000 BUILDING
1927 HWY 35N RESTAURANT - REMODEL DOMINO’S PIZZA 1/30/15 $125,000 BUILDING
2399 HWY 35N RETAIL AT&T 1/22/15 $95,000 BUILDING
3813 HWY 35S BAR & GRILL HIDE OUT 2/17/14 $8000 BUILDING

Pending Development Report/2004Forms
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CITY OF ROCKPORT BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT - PLAN REVIEW STATUS AS

OF 2/17/15

PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT _| DATE N
62 NASSAU SCHEUMACK X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
11/14/2014 | | 1171872014
[ [ NEED ENGINEER 2 HR PARAPIT FIRE WALL
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW | REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
| pATEOUT ] DATE IN
2124 HWY 35S WESTERN STEEL x x [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
11/18/2014 | 1118014 |
| | NO SITE PLAN
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT | DATE N
445 S FUQUA PETER MORIN X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
12/15/2014 | 12m6r2014 |
01/13/2015| _ 01/13/2015 | [ VIOLATES METEL BUILING ORDINANCE
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
DATEOUT _| DATEIN
903 DUNES MIKE FRANCIS X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/0212015 02/0212015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
| pATEOUT ] DATE IN
1237 N MOLINE ELIZABETH ADKINS X X [ [
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/04/2015 02/08/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
DATEOUT | DATE N
1107 S MAGNOLIA PADIER CONST X X [ [
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/11/2015 02/11/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
| pATEOUT ] DATE IN
1815 BROADWAY KAREY BUTTERWORTH X [ [
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/11/2015 02/13/2015 | |
| | DEMOLISION
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT _| DATE N
527 N TERRT TOMMY KING X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/11/2015 02/11/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
DATEOUT _| DATE N
708 N LIVE OAK LEE CONST X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/1212015 | 027015 |
| | NO BEDROOM EGRESS
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION |
DATE OUT DATEIN
1229 WATER UHR REAL ESTATE X x [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/1212015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW | REMODEL | ADDITION |
| pATEOUT ] DATE IN
20 CATALINA JR GIMLER X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/13/2015 02/13/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW | REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT _| DATEIN
450 SANCTUARY GREG KARL X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/13/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT | DATEIN
440 SPANISH WOOD RICK DUNGAN X X [ [
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/13/2015 02/17/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
| pATEOUT ] DATE IN
3813HWY 35S MCMAHAN X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/17/2015 02/17/2015 | |
PROJECT ADDRESS [ APPLICANT [RESIDENTIAL [COMMERCIAL [ NEW [ REMODEL | ADDITION | ENGINEER
DATEOUT | DATEIN
2029 MATHIS SHORELINE X X [ |
PLAN REVIEWED
DATE ELAPSED BUSINESS DAYS ACTION TAKEN
COMPLETED | RETURNED | ONHOLD
02/17/2015 | |
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